

# FRANKLIN TEMPLETON FUNDS

An authorised open-ended investment company with variable capital (PRN: 184169)

PROSPECTUS 23 May 2025

**REACH FOR BETTER** 

Name of Fund	PRN
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available	803936
for investment)	
Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for	636356
investment)	
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund	976453
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund	976454
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund	976455
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund	976456
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund	772815
FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund	772816
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund	636365
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer	976457
available for investment)	
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer	976458
available for investment)	
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund	976459
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund	976460
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund (previously	636367
known as FTF Franklin UK Equity Income Fund)	
FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund (previously	636368
known as FTF Franklin UK Managers' Focus Fund)	
FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund (previously known	636369
as FTF Franklin UK Mid Cap Fund)	
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (previously	636370
known as FTF Franklin UK Opportunities Fund) (no	
longer available for investment)	000000
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund (previously known as FTF Franklin UK Rising Dividends Fund)	636366
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund	626274
(previously known as FTF Franklin UK Smaller	636371
Companies Fund)	
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund	976462
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund	976463
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	636360
FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	636354
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no	636362
longer available for investment)	000002
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund (previously known as	976461
FTF Martin Currie Japan Equity Fund)	373101
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no	976464
longer available for investment)	3.3.4

#### IMPORTANT INFORMATION

If you are in any doubt as to the meaning of any information contained in it, you should consult Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited, as the Authorised Corporate Director, on its Client Dealer Services Freefone number 0800 305 306 or if calling from outside the UK on +44 20 7904 1843. Alternatively you should consult a professional financial adviser.

Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited, the authorised corporate director (ACD) of the Company, is the person responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of its knowledge and belief (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained herein does not contain any untrue or misleading statement or omit any matters required by COLL to be included in it. Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited accepts responsibility accordingly.

The Prospectus is based on information, law and practice at the date hereof. The Company is not bound by any out of date prospectus when it has issued a new prospectus or an addendum to the prospectus and investors should check that they have the most recently published prospectus and addendum (if any).

Copies of this Prospectus have been sent to the Financial Conduct Authority and the Depositary. Except for the information about itself as Depositary, the Depositary is not a person responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus and accordingly does not accept any responsibility for such information under COLL or otherwise.

No person has been authorised by the Company to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the offering of Shares other than those contained in the Prospectus or any Key Investor Information Document prepared by the ACD and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied on as having been made by the Company. The delivery of this Prospectus (whether or not accompanied by any reports) or the issue of Shares shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the affairs of the Company have not changed since the date hereof.

This Prospectus has been prepared solely for, and is being made available to investors for the purposes of evaluating an investment in Shares in the Funds. Investors should only consider investing in the Funds if they understand the risks involved including the risk of losing all capital invested.

If you are not normally resident in the UK, and are considering investing in Franklin Templeton Funds please ensure that you are fully aware of, and comply with, any of your local legal, tax or exchange control legislation, including if appropriate any governmental or other consents required.

The UK government has enacted legislation enabling it to comply with its obligations in relation to automatic exchange of information to improve international tax compliance, including, where relevant and applicable, European Union directives, agreements with jurisdictions outside of the EU and the United States provisions commonly known as "FATCA". As a result, the Company may need to disclose the name, address, taxpayer identification number and investment information relating to certain Shareholders to HMRC, who will in turn exchange this information with the tax authorities in jurisdictions where the account holder is or appears to be tax resident, where applicable. By signing the application form to subscribe for Shares, each prospective Shareholder is agreeing to provide information upon request to the Company or its agent. If a Shareholder does not provide the necessary information, the Company will be required to report it to HMRC.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes are required by the Company to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

The Company is not registered in the United States of America under the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) ("the 1933 Act") or the securities laws of any of the states of the United States of America, nor is such registration contemplated. The Shares may not be offered, sold or delivered directly or indirectly in the United States of America or any of its territories or possessions or areas subject to its jurisdiction or to or for the account or benefit of any "US Person" except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the 1933 Act and any applicable state laws. US Persons are not eligible to invest in the Company. Any re-offer or resale of any of the Shares in the United States of America or to US Persons may constitute a violation of US law. Intending investors shall be required to declare that they are not a US Person and are not applying for Shares on behalf of any US Person. In the absence of written notice to the Company to the contrary, if a prospective investor provides a non-US address on the application form for investment in the Company, such investor shall be deemed to be a non-US Person and such investor will continue to be a non-US Person unless and until the Company is otherwise notified of a change in the investor's US Person status. The term "US Person" shall mean any person that is a United States person within the meaning of Regulation S under the 1933 Act, or as defined by the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission for this purpose, as the definition of such term may be changed from time to time by legislation, rules, regulations or judicial or administrative agency interpretations.

Distribution of this Prospectus in certain jurisdictions will require that this Prospectus be translated into the official language of those jurisdictions. Where such translation is required, the translated version of this Prospectus shall only contain the same information and shall only have the same meaning as in this Prospectus. All communications in relation to this Prospectus shall be in English.

Potential investors should not treat the contents of this Prospectus as advice relating to legal, taxation, investment or any other matters and are recommended to consult their own professional advisers concerning the acquisition, holding or disposal of Shares.

The provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation are binding on each of its Shareholders (who are taken to have notice of them).

This Prospectus has been approved for the purpose of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 by Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited. Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

# PROSPECTUS OF FRANKLIN TEMPLETON FUNDS

The Company is incorporated as an Investment Company with Variable Capital (ICVC) and is authorised by the FCA under reference number 184169.

This document is a Prospectus and is dated and is valid as at 23 May 2025 and has been prepared in accordance with the rules contained in the FCA Rules which forms part of the FCA's handbook of rules and guidance and complies with the requirements of 4.2.2.R. of the FCA Rules. The Company is also subject to the OEIC Regulations.

The Company has been constituted so as to comply with the UCITS Regulations, and subsequent related regulations.

# **Franklin Templeton Funds**

#### **Head Office**

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6HL

#### Authorised Corporate Director, Administrator and Registrar

Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6HL

#### **Depositary**

The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited 160 Queen Victoria Street London EC4V 4LA

#### **Investment Managers**

#### **Brandywine Global Investment Management,**

LLC 1735 Market Street 18th Floor Philadelphia, PA 19103, USA

#### ClearBridge Investments, LLC

620, 8th Avenue New York, New York 10018, USA

# **ClearBridge Investments Limited**

Level 13 35 Clarence Street Sydney NSW 2000, Australia

#### Franklin Advisers, Inc.

One Franklin Parkway San Mateo, CA 94403 USA

# Franklin Mutual Advisers, LLC

101 John F. Kennedy Parkway Short Hills, NJ 07078 USA

#### Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6HL

# Franklin Templeton Investments (Asia) Limited

17th Floor, Chater House, 8 Connaught Road Hong Kong

#### **Martin Currie Investment Management Limited**

5 Morrison Street, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 8BH

#### Royce & Associates, LP

745 Fifth Avenue New York, New York 10151, USA

#### **Templeton Global Advisors Limited**

PO Box N-7759 Lyford Cay, Nassau Bahamas

# **Templeton Asset Management Ltd**

7 Temasek Boulevard 38-03 Suntec Tower One Singapore 038987

#### **Western Asset Management Company Limited**

10 Exchange Square, Primrose Street London EC2A 2EN England

# **Franklin Templeton Investment Management**

Limited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6HL

**Hedging Agent** The Bank of New York Mellon 240 Greenwich Street, 3rd Floor East, New York New York 10286, USA

# **Auditors**

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Atria One 144 Morrison Street Edinburgh EH3 8EX

# **Contents**

Definitions	8
The Company	13
Directors of the Company	13
The Depositary	14
The Investment Managers	16
The Administrator and Registrar	17
The Auditors	18
The Constitution of the Funds	18
Minimum Shareholdings	19
Share Denominations	19
Investment Objectives and Policies of the Funds	19
Risk Factors	80
Typical Investor Profile	95
Accounting Reference and Other Dates	95
List of Eligible Markets	97
Investment and Borrowing Powers and Restrictions	97
Termination of a Fund: Winding Up of the Company	97
The Characteristics of Shares in the Funds	97
Shareholder Meetings and Voting Rights	103
Powers of a Shareholders' Meeting	104
Class and Fund Meetings	104
Variation of Class and Fund Rights	104
Valuation	105
Fair Value Pricing	106
Dilution Adjustment	106
Fees and Charges	108
Income	111
Anti-Money Laundering and Fraud Prevention	112
The Issue and Redemption of Shares in the Funds	113
Suspension of Dealings	116
Restrictions and Compulsory Transfer and Redemption	116
Conversion and Switching of Shares	117
Market Timing	119
Taxation	120
Additional Information	122
Appendix 1	126
Appendix 2	131
Appendix 3	149
Appendix 4	150
Appendix 5	154

#### **Definitions**

"Accumulation Share" A share in respect of which income is accumulated and added to the capital

property of the Company

"ACD" Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited, the Authorised

Corporate Director of the Company

"Act" Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

"Auditors" PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

"BGIM" Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC

"Business Day" Monday to Friday (except for a bank holiday in England and Wales) being

a day on which the London Stock Exchange is open for business

"CBI" ClearBridge Investments, LLC

"CBIL" ClearBridge Investments Limited

"Class" in relation to Shares, means (according to the context) all of the Shares of

a particular Fund or a particular class or classes of Share of a particular Fund

"COLL" refers to the appropriate chapter or rule in the Collective Investment

Schemes Sourcebook (the "COLL Sourcebook" or "FCA Rules" as defined below) issued by the FCA as amended from time to time

"Company" Franklin Templeton Funds (which is an investment company with variable capital)

"Conversion" the conversion of Shares in one Class in a Fund to Shares of another Class in

the same Fund and "Convert" shall be construed accordingly

"Currency of Return" A currency on which a Fund bases its investment strategy and which is different

from this Fund's base currency

"Currency of A currency in which securities held by a Fund are denominated and which is

different from this Fund's base currency

"Data Protection Laws" means, including, but not limited to: the European Union's General Data

Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 ("GDPR"), the United Kingdom's Data Protection Act 2018, (i.e. the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 and as amended by the Data Protection, Privacy and Electronic Communications (Amendments etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019) ("UK GDPR") and any other applicable privacy laws, each as may be amended, restated or replaced from time

to time.

"Data Protection Officer" a person appointed as a data protection officer in accordance with Data

Protection Laws.

"Dealing Day"

A Business Day unless the ACD decides otherwise with the approval of the

Depositary

"Depositary" The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited

"EEA" The European Economic Area

"EEA State" An EU Member State and any other state which is within the EEA, as defined in

the Glossary

"EEA UCITS Scheme" A collective investment scheme established in accordance with the UCITS

Directive in an EEA State

"Eligible Derivatives

Markets"

Investment"

Derivatives markets which the ACD, after consultation with the Depositary, has decided are appropriate for the purpose of investment of, or dealing in, the scheme property in accordance with the relevant criteria set out in the FCA Rules and with regard to the Guidance on Eligible Markets issued by the FCA

as amended from time to time

"Eligible Markets" Eligible Derivatives Markets and/or Eligible Securities Markets

"Eligible Securities

Markets"

Securities markets which the ACD, after consultation with the Depositary, has decided are appropriate for the purposes of investment of, or dealing in, the scheme property in accordance with the relevant criteria set out in the FCA Rules and with regard to the Guidance on Eligible Markets issued by the FCA as amended from time to time

"Equity Funds" Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF

ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund; FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund; and FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund; FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund; FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund; FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund; FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund; FTF Martin Currie

UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund, FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund and FTF Templeton Japan Equity

Fund

"EU Member States" Member States of the European Union

"EUWA" The European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018

"FAI" Franklin Advisers, Inc.

"FAI Investment

**Management Agreement**"

An agreement made between the ACD and FAI dated as of 1 April 2015, as may

be amended from time to time

"FCA" Financial Conduct Authority

"FCA Handbook" The handbook of rules and guidance issued by the FCA as amended from time to

time

"FCA Rules" The Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook issued by the FCA as amended

from time to time

"Fixed Income Funds" Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF

> Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund; FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund; FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund; FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment); and FTF Western Asset Global Multi

Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)

"FMA" Franklin Mutual Advisers, LLC

"FMA Investment

**Management Agreement**"

An agreement made between the ACD and FMA dated 1 April 2015, as may be

amended from time to time

"Franklin Resources, Inc." The ultimate holding company of the ACD and each of the holding company's

subsidiaries

"FTFML" Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited

"FTIA" Franklin Templeton Investments (Asia) Limited

"FTIML" Franklin Templeton Investment Management Limited

"FTIML Investment

**Management Agreement**"

An agreement between the ACD and FTIML dated 21 May 2014, as may be

amended from time to time

"Funds" Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment);

Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF

Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund; FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund; FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund; FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund; FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund; FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund; FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund; FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund; FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund; FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund; FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund; FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)

"Global Custodian"

The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited

"Global Sub-Custodians"

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV and/or The Bank of New York Mellon

"Glossary"

The glossary contained in the FCA Handbook

"Grouping Period"

The period from the last record date to the next record date

"Hedged Share"

A Share which Class includes a hedging strategy as more fully described

under "The Characteristics of Shares in the Funds"

"HMRC"

HM Revenue & Customs

"Income Share"

Net paying Shares, denominated in base currency, in the fund as may be in issue from time to time in respect of which income allocated is distributed periodically to the Shareholders pursuant to the FCA Rules net of any tax deducted or accounted for by the fund

"Investment Grade"

Securities rated BBB or higher by S&P, those carrying comparable ratings issued by another recognised rating agency, or unrated securities as determined by the ACD to be of comparable quality

"Investment Manager"

Any of the ACD, BGIM, CBI, CBIL, FAI, FMA, FTIML, FTIA, Martin Currie, RAL, TAML, TGAL and WAMC

"ISA"

Individual Savings Account pursuant to the Individual Savings Account Regulations 1998 as amended

"KIID"

Key investor information document as amended from time to time

"Martin Currie"

Martin Currie Investment Management Limited

"Net Asset Value" or "NAV"

the value of the Scheme Property of the Company (or any Fund, as the context requires), less the liabilities of the Company (or any Fund, as the context requires), as calculated in accordance with the Company's Instrument of Incorporation

"OECD"

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

"OEIC Regulations"

Open-Ended Investment Companies Regulations 2001 as amended from

time to time

"RALP"

Royce & Associates, LP

"Registrar"

FTFML

"Regulated Activities

Order"

The Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order

The property of the Company to be given to the Depositary for safe-keeping,

2001 S12000/544

"S&P"

Standard & Poor's Corporation

"Scheme Property"

Franklin Templeton

as required by the FCA Rules

"Service Agreement" An agreement between the Company and the ACD and dated effective from

17 October 2011

"Share" A Share in the Company (including larger or smaller denomination shares)

"Shareholder" A holder of Shares

"SIPP" Self-Invested Personal Pension

"Sub-Investment Grade" Securities rated below Investment Grade

"SDR" refers to the appropriate chapter or rule of the Environmental, Social and

Governance sourcebook ("ESG Sourcebook") issued by the FCA, as amended

from time to time.

"Switch" The exchange, where permissible, of Shares of one Fund for Shares of another Fund

"TAML" Templeton Asset Management Ltd

"TAML and FTIML

Co-Investment Management

Agreement"

An agreement between the ACD, TAML AND FTIML effective from 31 July 2019,

as may be amended from time to time

"TAML, FTIA and TGAL Co-Investment Management

Agreement"

An agreement between the ACD, TAML, FTIA and TGAL effective from

15 September 2020, as may be amended from time to time

"TGAL" Templeton Global Advisors Limited

"UCITS" An Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities which is

either a UK UCITS or an EEA UCITS Scheme, as the context requires

"UCITS Depositary

**Regulations**" The UK version of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/438 of

17.12.2015 supplementing Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to obligations of depositaries, which is part of UK law

by virtue of the EUWA, as amended by section 8 of the EUWA

"UCITS Directive" Council Directive on the co-ordination of laws, reputations and administrative

provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (85/611/EEC), as may be amended from time to time, which

applies to EEA UCITS Schemes

"UCITS Regulations" The Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook and the Collective

Investment Schemes (Amendment etc) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 No.325,

as may be amended or updated from time to time

"UK" The United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

"UK UCITS" In accordance with sections 236A and 237 of the Act, a collective investment

scheme which may consist of several sub-funds, which is either an authorised unit trust scheme, an authorised contractual scheme, or an authorised openended investment company with the sole object of collective investment of capital raised from the public in transferable securities or other liquid financial assets, operating on the principle of risk-spreading, with units which are, at the request of

holders, repurchased or redeemed, directly or indirectly, out of those

undertakings' assets, and which has identified itself as a UCITS in its prospectus

and has been authorised accordingly by the FCA

"Valuation Point" The point on any Dealing Day, whether on a periodic basis or for a particular

valuation of the Scheme Property for the Company or a Fund (as the case may be), at which a valuation is carried out for the purpose of determining the price at

which Shares of a Class may be issued, cancelled or redeemed

"VAT" Value Added Tax

"WAMC"

Western Asset Management Company Limited

### The Company

The Company is an open-ended investment company with variable capital incorporated with limited liability and registered in Scotland under number SI2. Its Shareholders are not liable for its debts beyond the amount subscribed. The address of its head office is Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL. This is also its United Kingdom address for service of notices on the Company (or other documents required or authorised to be served on it).

The effective date of the authorisation order made by the FCA in respect of the Company was 3 February 1998. The Company's duration is unlimited and its relevant category is that of an umbrella company.

The base currency for the Company is British Pounds (GBP) and the maximum size of its capital is £50,000,000,000 and the minimum size is £300,000.

The operation of the Company is governed by the OEIC Regulations, the FCA Rules, the Company's Instrument of Incorporation and this Prospectus and any addendum to this Prospectus.

# **Directors of the Company**

The ACD of the Company is Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited, a private company incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985. Its registered office is at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL and its head office is at 2nd Floor, Toronto Square, Infirmary Street, Leeds, LS1 2HJ. Its ultimate holding company is Franklin Resources, Inc., which is incorporated in the United States of America.

The ACD was incorporated on 13 August 1985 and has an issued share capital of £100,000 fully paid.

The ACD is authorised and regulated by the FCA.

The directors of the ACD are: Andrew Ashton, Nigel Anderson, David Brigstocke, Fionnuala Doris, Grace Carbery, Gwen Shaneyfelt, and Euan Wilson. The directors of the ACD may act as directors of companies other than the ACD (including companies that are within the same group of companies as the ACD) but do not engage in business activities that are not connected with the Company that would be significant to the Company's business.

The Company has no Directors other than the ACD. The ACD was appointed by the Company pursuant to the terms of a Service Agreement, available to Shareholders upon request, which may be terminated on service of three months' notice by either party. The Service Agreement will terminate with immediate effect if the ACD ceases to hold office as a Director. The ACD is not however permitted voluntarily to terminate its appointment except on the appointment of another authorised corporate director.

The ACD's principal activity is investment management. It has authority, as a delegate of the Company, to make decisions on the Company's behalf including:

- (a) the management, investment, realisation and reinvestment of any property of the Funds of the Company in accordance with the investment objectives and policies of these Funds;
- (b) the reclaiming of, or enabling the Depositary to reclaim, all refunds due of tax associated with dividends and interest or otherwise in respect of the property of the Funds.

The ACD is authorised to deal on behalf of the Funds. No commission is payable to the ACD for any such deal. The ACD is not a broker fund adviser in relation to the Company.

Where there is no other Director, the ACD's appointment will also terminate if notice of termination is given by the Depositary to the ACD and to the Company upon any of the following events:

- (a) the ACD goes into liquidation (except a voluntary liquidation for the purpose of reconstruction or amalgamation upon terms previously approved in writing by the Depositary); or
- (b) a receiver is appointed of the undertaking of the ACD or any part thereof; or
- (c) an administration order is made in relation to the ACD under section 8 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

The Company will indemnify the ACD against any liability incurred by it as a Director other than in respect of its failure to exercise due care and diligence in the discharge of its functions in respect of the Company, or in defending any proceedings in which judgement is given in its favour or it is acquitted, or in connection with any application under the OEIC Regulations pursuant to which relief is granted to it by the Court.

The ACD may provide investment services to other funds and clients and also acts as the authorised corporate director of other open-ended investment companies as set out below:

• Franklin Templeton Funds II

### The Depositary

The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited is the Depositary of the Company and for the avoidance of doubt also acts as the Global Custodian to the Company. The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales on 9 August 1996. Its ultimate holding company is The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, a public company incorporated in the United States. The registered and head office of the Depositary is at 160 Queen Victoria Street, London, EC4V 4LA.

The principal business activity of the Depositary is the provision of custodial, banking and related financial services. The Depositary is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and is dual-regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

#### **Terms of Appointment**

The ACD is required to enter into a written contract with the Depositary to evidence its appointment.

The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited is appointed as Depositary of the Company under an amended and restated depositary agreement between the ACD, BNY Mellon Trust & Depositary (UK) Limited and the Company effective as of 18 March 2016 as novated to replace BNY Mellon Trust & Depositary (UK) Limited with The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited as Depositary with effect from 2 January 2018 and as amended from time to time (the "Depositary Agreement") pursuant to which the ACD, the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited agreed to carry out various functions in order to comply with, and facilitate compliance with, the requirements of the UCITS Depositary Regulations.

Details of the Depositary's remuneration are set out in the section headed "Fees and Charges".

#### **Duties of the Depositary**

The Depositary is responsible for the safekeeping of the Scheme Property, monitoring the cash flows of the Company, and must ensure that certain processes carried out by the ACD are performed in accordance with the applicable rules, the Instrument of Incorporation and the Prospectus.

# Delegation

The Depositary acts as Global Custodian and may delegate safekeeping of the Scheme Property to one or more global sub-custodians (such delegation may include the powers of sub-delegation).

The Depositary has delegated the safekeeping of the Scheme Property to the Global Sub-Custodians.

In turn, the Global Sub-Custodians may sub-delegate safekeeping of assets in certain markets in which the Company may invest to various sub-delegates. A list of the sub-delegates is given at Appendix 4. Investors should note that, except in the event of material changes requiring a prompt update of this Prospectus, the list of sub-delegates is updated only at each Prospectus review. An updated list of sub-delegates is maintained by the ACD and is available from the ACD upon request.

### **Conflicts of Interest**

For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

"BNY Mellon Affiliate" means any entity in which The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (a Delaware corporation with registered office at 240 Greenwich St, New York, New York 10286, U.S.A) controls (directly or indirectly) an interest of no less than 30% in the voting stock or interests in such entity.

"Link" means a situation in which two or more natural or legal persons are either linked by a direct or indirect holding in an undertaking which represents 10% or more of the capital or of the voting rights or which makes it possible to exercise a significant influence over the management of the undertaking in which that holding subsists.

"Group Link" means a situation in which two or more undertakings or entities belong to the same group within the meaning of Article 2(11) of Directive 2013/34/EU, as implemented or given direct effect in the UK, or international accounting standards adopted in accordance with Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002, as it forms part of the law of the UK by virtue of the EU Withdrawal Act 2018, as amended, modified and reinstated from time to time, and any succeeding UK law or regulation which becomes enforceable by law from time to time.

# Company, ACD and Shareholders

The following conflicts of interests may arise between the Depositary, the Company and the ACD.

A Group Link where the ACD has delegated certain administrative functions to the Depositary or any BNY Mellon Affiliate.

The Depositary shall ensure that policies and procedures are in place to identify all conflicts of interest arising from such Group Link(s) and shall take all reasonable steps to avoid such conflicts of interest. Where such conflicts of interest cannot be avoided, the Depositary and the ACD will ensure that such conflicts of interest are managed, monitored and disclosed in order to prevent adverse effects on the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

To the extent that a Link exists between the Depositary and any Shareholders in the Company, the Depositary shall take all reasonable steps to avoid conflicts of interest arising from such Link, and ensure that its functions comply with the UCITS Depositary Regulations as applicable.

# **Depositary Conflicts of interest**

The Depositary or any BNY Mellon Affiliate may have an interest, relationship or arrangement that is in conflict with or otherwise material in relation to the services it provides to the ACD and the Company. Conflicts of interest may also arise between the Depositary's different clients.

As a global financial services provider, one of the Depositary's fundamental obligations is to manage conflicts of interest fairly and transparently. As a regulated business, the Depositary is required to prevent, manage and, where required, disclose information regarding any actual or potential conflict of interest incidents to relevant clients.

The Depositary is required to and does maintain and operate effective organisational and administrative arrangements with a view to taking all reasonable steps designed to prevent conflicts of interest from adversely affecting the interests of its clients.

The Depositary maintains an EMEA Conflicts of Interest Policy (the "Conflicts Policy"). The Conflicts Policy (in conjunction with associated policies):

- (a) identifies the circumstances which constitute or may give rise to a conflict of interest entailing a risk of damage to the interests of one or more clients;
- (b) specifies the procedures or measures which should be followed or adopted by the Depositary in order to prevent or manage and report those conflicts of interest;
- (c) sets out effective procedures to prevent or control the exchange of information between persons engaged in activities involving a risk of a conflict of interest where the exchange of that information may harm the interests of one or more clients;
- (d) includes procedures to ensure the separate supervision of persons whose principal functions involve carrying out activities with or for clients and whose interests may conflict, or who otherwise represent different interests that may conflict, including with the interests of the Depositary;
- (e) includes procedures to remove any direct link between the remuneration of individuals principally engaged in one activity and the remuneration of, or revenues generated by, different individuals principally engaged in another activity, where a conflict of interest may arise in relation to those activities;
- (f) specifies measures to prevent or limit any person from exercising inappropriate influence over the way in which an individual carries out investment or ancillary services or activities; and
- (g) sets out measures to prevent or control the simultaneous or sequential involvement of an individual in separate investment or ancillary services or activities where such involvement may impair the proper management of conflicts of interest.

Disclosure of conflicts of interest to clients is a measure of last resort to be used by the Depositary to address its regulatory obligations only where the organisational and administrative arrangements established by the Depositary (and any BNY Mellon Affiliates where applicable) to prevent or manage its conflicts of interest are not sufficient to ensure, with reasonable confidence, that the risks of damage to the interests of clients will be prevented.

The Depositary must assess and review the Conflicts Policy at least once per year and take all appropriate measures to address any deficiencies.

The Depositary shall make available to its competent authorities, on request, all information which it has obtained while performing its services and which may be required by the competent authorities of the Company.

#### **Delegation**

The following conflicts of interests may arise as a result of the delegation arrangements relating to safekeeping outlined above:

A Group Link where the Depositary has delegated, or where any Global Sub-Custodian has sub-delegated, the safekeeping of the Scheme Property to a BNY Mellon Affiliate.

The Depositary shall ensure that policies and procedures are in place to identify all conflicts of interests arising from such Group Links and shall take all reasonable steps to avoid such conflicts of interests. Where such conflicts of interests cannot be avoided, the Depositary will ensure that such conflicts of interests are managed, monitored and disclosed in order to prevent adverse effects on the interests of the Company and its investors.

The Depositary may, from time to time, act as the depositary of other open-ended investment companies with variable capital and as trustee or custodian of other collective investment schemes.

# **Updated Information**

Up-to-date information stated above with regards to the Depositary will be made available to investors on request.

# **The Investment Managers**

The ACD acts as investment manager for the Funds save for where it has appointed Investment Managers to manage the Funds as follows:

FTIML has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund and FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund. FTIML is a company incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales with its registered office at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL. Its principal activity is investment management. The FTIML Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time on the giving of three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

FAI has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund, FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) and Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) pursuant to the FAI Investment Management Agreement. FAI is a company incorporated with limited liability in California, USA, with its registered office at c/o C T Corporation System, 818 West Seventh Street, Los Angeles, California, 90017, United States and principal office at One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA 94403, USA. Its principal activity is investment management. The FAI Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time on the giving of three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

FMA has been appointed as Investment Manager to Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment) pursuant to the FMA Investment Management Agreement. FMA is a limited liability company organised in Delaware, USA, with its registered office at c/o The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, New Castle County, Delaware, 19801, United States and principal office at 101 John F. Kennedy Parkway, Short Hills, NJ 07078, USA. Its principal activity is investment management. The FMA Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time on the giving of three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

TAML and FTIML have been appointed as Co-Investment Managers to FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund pursuant to the TAML- FTIML Co-Investment Management Agreement. TAML is a corporation organised under the laws of and based in Singapore with its registered office at 7 Temasek Boulevard, No. 38-03 Suntec Tower One, Singapore 038987. Its principal activities are investment management and marketing and distributing collective investment schemes in Singapore. The TAML-FTIML Co-Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time on the giving of three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

TAML, FTIA and TGAL have been appointed as Co-Investment Managers to FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund pursuant to the TAML, FTIA and TGAL Co-Investment Management Agreement. FTIA is a company organised in Hong Kong with its registered office at 17<sup>th</sup> Floor, Chater House, 8 Connaught Road, Hong Kong. Its principal activity is investment management. TGAL is a company organised in the Bahamas with its registered office at P.O. Box N-7759, Lyford Cay, Nassau, Bahamas. Its principal activity is investment management. The TAML, FTIA and TGAL Co-Investment Management Agreement may be terminated at any time on the giving of three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

BGIM has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund. BGIM is a company incorporated with limited liability in Pennsylvania, USA, with its registered office at 1735 Market Street, 18th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, USA and principal office at 1735 Market Street, 18th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, USA. Its principal activity is investment management.

CBI has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund and FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund. CBI is a company incorporated with limited liability in New York, USA, with its registered office at 620, 8th Avenue, New York, New York 10018, USA and principal office at 620, 8th Avenue, New York, New York 10018, USA. Its principal activity is investment management.

CBIL has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund. CBIL is a company incorporated with limited liability in Australia, with its registered office at Level 13, 35 Clarence Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia and principal office at Level 13, 35 Clarence Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia. Its principal activity is investment management.

Martin Currie has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund, FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment) and FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund. Its principal activity is investment management. Martin Currie is a company incorporated in Scotland with registered address 5 Morrison Street, Edinburgh EH3 8BH. The investment management agreement appointing Martin Currie may be terminated at any time on the giving of at least three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

TAML has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund. The investment management agreement appointing TAML may be terminated at any time on the giving of at least three months' notice or immediately without notice where this is in the interests of Shareholders.

RALP has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund. RALP is a limited partnership established in New York, USA, with its registered office at 745 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10151, USA and principal office at 745 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10151, USA. Its principal activity is investment management.

WAMC has been appointed as Investment Manager to FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment). WAMC is a company incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales with its registered office at 10 Exchange Square, Primrose Street, London, EC2A 2EN. Its principal activity is investment management.

The above Investment Managers are associates of the ACD by virtue of each being a body corporate in a group of which the ACD is a member.

BGIM, CBI, FAI, FMA and RALP are regulated by the US Securities and Exchange Commission but are not authorised by the FCA. CBIL is regulated by the Australian Securities & Investments Commission but is not authorised by the FCA. TAML is regulated by the US Securities and Exchange Commission, the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and the Monetary Authority of Singapore but is not authorised by the FCA. TGAL is regulated by the Securities Commission of the Bahamas and the US Securities and Exchange Commission but is not authorised by the FCA. FTIA is regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission but is not authorised by the FCA.

The Investment Managers have authority, by virtue of their respective Investment Management Agreements, to provide certain investment management services in relation to the following:

- (a) the management, investment, realisation and reinvestment of any property of the respective Funds to which they have been appointed Investment Manager in accordance with the investment objectives and policies of the Funds; and
- (b) the reclaiming of, or enabling the Depositary to reclaim, all refunds due of tax associated with dividends and interests or otherwise in respect of the property of the relevant Funds.

All the Investment Managers are authorised to deal on behalf of the Funds to which they have been appointed Investment Manager. No commission is payable to the Investment Managers for any such deal. The Investment Managers are not broker fund advisers in relation to the Company.

### **The Administrator and Registrar**

The Administrator and Registrar of the Company is the ACD at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL. The Register of Shareholders of the Company can be inspected within the Registrar's office at this address during normal business hours.

The ACD has appointed Platform Securities LLP to provide transfer agency services to the ACD, in respect of the Company. The fees of Platform Securities LLP are paid by the ACD.

The ACD has delegated fund accounting, fund tax and related fund reporting services to The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited whose address is at 160 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4LA, United Kingdom. The fees of The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited are paid by the ACD.

### **Hedging Agent**

The ACD has appointed The Bank of New York Mellon as hedging agent under an agreement dated 1 April 2022, to manage the foreign currency exposure in respect of each Hedged Share Class. The Hedging Agent has its principal place of business at 240 Greenwich St, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor East, New York, New York 10286 USA, and is supervised and regulated by the New York State Department of Financial Services and the Federal Reserve and authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority of the United Kingdom. The Hedging Agent acts on behalf of the ACD and the relevant Funds in entering into hedging transactions in respect of the Hedged Shares.

#### **The Auditors**

The Auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, whose address is at Atria One, 144 Morrison Street, Edinburgh, EH3 8EX.

#### The Constitution of the Funds

The Company is structured as an umbrella company and authorised as a UK UCITS for the purposes of the UCITS Regulations.

The Instrument of Incorporation of the Company provides that the contributions of the participants and the profits or income out of which payments are to be made to them are pooled in relation to the separate parts of the property, subject to the collective investment scheme constituted by the Company.

#### The Funds

The current Funds of the Company are Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment); Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund; FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund; FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund; FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund; FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund; FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund; FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund; FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund; FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund; FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund; FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund; FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment); FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund; FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment).

Applications can be made for the purchase of Shares of the available Classes in any of the Funds at a price calculated by reference to the net asset value thereof (plus a preliminary charge as described under the heading "Fees and Charges" in the Prospectus). Shares will be issued at the price prevailing on the relevant Dealing Day.

# **Additional Funds**

As the Company is structured as an umbrella company, different Funds may be established from time to time by the ACD with the approval of the Financial Conduct Authority. On the introduction of any new Fund, a revised prospectus will be prepared setting out the relevant details of each Fund. Approval by the FCA in this context refers only to approval under the OEIC Regulations 2001 (as amended) and does not in any way indicate or suggest endorsement or approval of the Funds as an investment.

# Allocation of Assets and Liabilities to Funds

The assets of a Fund belong exclusively to that Fund and shall not be used or made available to discharge (directly or indirectly) the liabilities of, or claims against, any other person or body, including the Company and any other Fund and shall not be available for any such purpose.

Subject to the above, each Fund will be charged with the liabilities, expenses, costs and charges of the Company attributable to that Fund, and within the Funds, charges will be allocated between Classes in accordance with the terms of issue of Shares of those Classes. Any assets, liabilities, expenses, costs or charges not attributable to a particular Fund may be allocated by the ACD in a manner which is fair to the Shareholders of the Company generally but they will normally be allocated to the Funds pro rata to the value of the net assets of the relevant Funds.

Please also see the paragraph below "Liabilities of the Company and the Funds", in the "Risk Factors" section.

# **Minimum Shareholdings**

The minimum initial subscription (net of preliminary charges) for EB Shares is £50,000,000. The minimum initial subscription (net of preliminary charges) for W Shares is £1,000. The minimum initial subscription for Y Shares is as agreed with the ACD from time to time. The minimum additional subscription in each case is £250.

Redemption requests may be for a minimum value of £250 of Shares (unless the ACD is asked to redeem all of the Shares of a Shareholder). If by doing so, the holding of W Shares in a Fund would be less than a minimum value of £500 or the holding of EB Shares in a Fund would be less than a minimum value of £50,000,000, all the holding of Shares in that Fund may be required to be redeemed.

The Company may waive the requirements of the preceding two paragraphs in any particular case prescribed by it.

#### **Share Denominations**

The rights attaching to the Shares in any of the Funds are expressed in two denominations, being larger denomination Shares and smaller denomination Shares. The smaller denomination Shares are whole Shares, but with fractional rights. The proportion of a larger denomination Share represented by a smaller denomination share is one-thousandth of the larger denomination Share.

# **Investment Objectives and Policies of the Funds**

None of the Funds intend to have an interest in any immovable property or tangible movable property. Each Fund may, on an ancillary basis, hold liquid assets. Such assets may be kept in the form of cash deposits or in short-term money market instruments. Full particulars of the Investment and Borrowing Powers of the Company are set out in Appendix 2.

The Funds established by the Company and their investment objectives and policies are listed below. The investment objectives and policies should be considered in conjunction with the Risk Factors section.

To avoid any doubt, where a Fund's investment objective includes the phrase 'grow in value', this refers to capital growth.

Each of the Funds are subject to the ACD's policy regarding controversial weapons. This policy can be found on the ACD's website at <a href="www.franklintempleton.co.uk">www.franklintempleton.co.uk</a> in the "About Us" – "Sustainable Investing and Stewardship" – "Policies" tabs.

#### FRANKLIN ABSOLUTE RETURN BOND FUND (no longer available for investment)

#### What the Fund Aims to Deliver (Fund Objective):

The Fund seeks a positive return (through a combination of income and capital growth) each calendar year. In addition, over a three to five-year period, the Fund aims to outperform the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 3 Month (GBP) Index by 2% after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period; capital invested in the Fund is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# **How we Invest (Investment Policy)**

The Fund intends to achieve its objective by investing at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in:

- debt securities or bonds (a type of debt obligation) issued by governments, government-related entities, supranational organisations and corporations in any industry, anywhere in the world. The Fund will typically limit exposure to bonds that are rated as below investment grade (rated below BBB- by Standard & Poor's or Baa3 by Moody's) to no more than 50% of the total portfolio. These bonds generally pay a high yield (interest rate) but are considered by rating agencies to be lower quality and carry more risk than investment grade bonds.
- derivatives (investments whose value is linked to another investment or the performance of another variable factor, such as interest rates, currencies of any country or indices).

The Fund's managers seek to generate returns from various sources and as such the assets of the Fund may be diversified also by risk type, including credit sectors, currency and duration (a measure of how much a bond's price will change if interest rates change).

The Fund can also invest in distressed securities which may be in, or close to, bankruptcy or administration but still present diverse opportunities to grow in value.

The Fund uses derivatives with the aim of growing capital, providing cost-effective access to different types of investment, reducing short term changes in value or risk and preserving capital and to increase the efficiency of managing the portfolio. The types of derivatives used include but are not limited to: options, futures, forward currency contracts, credit default swaps, interest rate swaps, total return swaps and contracts for difference. The Fund may take long and short positions in currencies, debt related markets, securities, groups of securities and indices through derivative and forward currency contracts.

To help the Fund's managers in their aim to meet the Fund's objective they have the freedom to invest a substantial amount of the Fund's assets in any class of debt securities.

Up to 30% of the Fund's Net Asset Value can be invested in currencies other than the British Pounds (GBP). This does not include currencies hedged back to GBP.

The Fund may also invest in:

- bonds whose value is secured by mortgages or other assets (mortgage or asset-backed securities)
- bonds that can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation (convertibles)
- structured products (a type of fixed-term investment whose payout depends on the performance of something else, such as another security or currency)
- other transferable securities, cash and cash equivalents, money market instruments, and other collective investment schemes.

The Fund will normally seek to manage the level of portfolio risk within a volatility range of 1 to 3% on an annualised ex ante basis (the estimated future risk over a year). This is with the aim of optimising the level of risk taken for the potential reward.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

The Fund's performance target is the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 3 Month (GBP) Index plus 2%. The London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 3 Month (GBP) reflects the rate of return investors could typically expect from money markets. The Fund seeks to outperform this rate by 2% over a three to five-year period after allowing for management fees.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Collective Investment Schemes Risk
- · Credit-Linked Securities Risk
- Credit Risk
- Defaulted Debt Securities Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Fixed Income Securities Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities Risk
- Mortgage Dollar Roll Risk
- · Pre-Payment Risk
- Short Selling Risk
- Sub-Investment Grade Risk
- Swap Agreements Risk

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

The expected level of exposure that could be subject to total return swaps amounts to 5% of the Fund's net assets, subject to a maximum of 50%.

#### FRANKLIN MUTUAL SHARES FUND (no longer available for investment)

**Investment Objective:** The Fund's primary objective is long-term capital appreciation by investing primarily in US equity and related debt securities. Income generation is a secondary consideration.

The Fund will pursue these objectives primarily through investment in equity and debt securities of US corporate issuers that are listed or traded on Eligible Markets which the Investment Manager believes are available at market prices less than their value based on certain recognised or objective criteria ("intrinsic value"). A significant portion of the debt securities in which the Fund invests is expected to be Sub-Investment Grade debt or equivalent unrated securities.

Following this value-orientated strategy, the Fund primarily invests in:

(a) Undervalued equities – common and preferred stock, and securities convertible into common or preferred stock, trading at a discount to intrinsic value;

to a lesser extent, the Fund also invests in:

- (b) Merger arbitrage and companies undergoing restructuring equity and debt securities of companies that are involved in restructurings such as mergers, acquisitions, consolidations, liquidations, spin-offs, or tender or exchange offers; and
- (c) Distressed securities debt securities of companies that are, or are about to be, involved in reorganisations, financial restructurings, or bankruptcy.

The Fund's investments in distressed companies typically involve the purchase of lower-rated (or comparable unrated) or defaulted debt securities or other indebtedness, such as syndicated bank debt, of such companies. The Fund generally invests in such debt instruments to achieve capital appreciation, rather than to seek income. Such investments may be made when the Investment Manager determines that such securities might be subject to an exchange offer or a plan of reorganisation pursuant to which Shareholders of the distressed securities could receive securities or assets in exchange for such securities. Generally, the Fund will invest in such securities at a price which represents a significant discount from the principal amount due at maturity. Investments by the Fund in distressed or defaulted debt securities shall be considered to be investments in securities which are not traded on Eligible Markets and shall therefore be subject to the restriction that such investments, together with other investments which fall into this category, may not exceed 10% of the net asset value of the Fund.

The Investment Manager employs a research-driven fundamental value strategy for the Fund. In choosing equity investments, the Investment Manager focuses on the market price of a company's securities relative to the Investment Manager's own evaluation of the company's asset value, including an analysis of book value, cash flow potential, long term earnings, and multiples of earnings of comparable securities of both public and private companies. Value stock prices are considered "cheap" relative to the company's perceived value and are often out of favour with other investors. The prices of debt obligations of distressed companies also may be "cheap" relative to the value of the company's assets. The Fund invests in such securities if the Investment Manager believes the market may have over-reacted to adverse developments or failed to appreciate positive changes. The Investment Manager examines each investment separately and there are no set criteria as to specific value parameters, asset size, earnings or industry type. A portion of the assets of the Fund, which will generally be not more than 20% of its net asset value, may be invested in the securities of non-US issuers, including issuers in emerging markets.

The Fund will limit its investments in transferable securities which are not traded on one or more Eligible Markets to not more than 10% of its net asset value as of the time of investment.

In addition, at the ACD's discretion, the Fund may also invest a proportion of its portfolio in other types of transferable securities including cash and near cash, money market instruments, and other collective investment schemes.

It is not currently intended that derivatives will be used for any purpose other than the efficient portfolio management (including hedging) of the Fund. However, the Fund may, in the future and subject to the ACD giving not less than 60 days' notice to shareholders in the Fund, use derivatives in pursuit of its investment objective as well as for efficient portfolio management. It is not intended that the use of derivatives for efficient portfolio management will cause the Fund's existing risk profile to rise. Where the use of derivatives in pursuit of the Fund's investment objective may cause the Fund to have higher volatility or otherwise cause its existing risk profile to rise, a notification to that effect shall be included within the 60-day prior notice to be sent to shareholders in the Fund.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

The Fund's performance is compared to the S&P 500 Index as it is widely available and reflects investments in the US stock market.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Defaulted Debt Securities Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Fixed Income Securities Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Restructuring Companies Risk
- Sub-Investment Grade Risk
- Swap Agreements Risk

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### FTF BRANDYWINE GLOBAL INCOME OPTIMISER FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and preserve capital over periods of five years or more, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in any of:

- Debt securities or bonds (a type of debt obligation) issued by governments, government-related or supranational organisations and corporations in any industry, anywhere in the world, including China. The Fund can invest more than 35% of its assets in bonds issued by any government of a country which is a member of the OECD.
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Bonds whose value is secured by mortgages or other assets (mortgage or asset-backed securities).
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.
- Derivatives (investments whose value is linked to another investment or the performance of another variable factor, such as interest rates, currencies of any country or indices), including synthetic short positions (a technique where the Fund seeks to profit from decreases in value of securities, indices, currencies and/or index rates).

The Fund's principal asset class is the bonds and debt securities referred to above, and the 80% exposure may solely be to these investments, or may be to a combination of these investments with the collective investment schemes and derivatives referred to above.

The Fund may invest in bonds and debt securities which are Investment Grade as well as those which are not Investment Grade. Bonds and debt securities which are not Investment Grade generally pay a higher yield (interest rate) but are considered by rating agencies to be lower quality and carry more risk than Investment Grade bonds.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other transferable securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents; and
- Money market instruments.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth), as well as for more speculative investment purposes, to help achieve the Fund's investment objectives.

At least 80% of the Fund's assets will be denominated in, or hedged back to, British Pounds (GBP).

# Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund may invest anywhere in the world including emerging markets.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager seeks to select what it considers to be the most attractive assets, focusing on sectors which have an appropriate risk profile and high yields after inflation. The Investment Manager assesses macro-economic conditions alongside the investment case for specific issuers, including

looking at a wide range of factors at the level of the relevant company, its sector, and the broader economy, with the aim of identifying the most attractive investment opportunities. This approach is intended to enable the Investment Manager to best identify potential anomalies in valuations at a company and sector level. The Investment Manager will invest across the global investment universe of the Fund, and will invest flexibly in sectors and in assets with varying durations and investment quality to achieve the Fund's investment objective.

#### ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting the majority of the Fund's investments, the Investment Manager assesses prospective investments against various ESG factors, to identify whether the issuer's ESG practices present a financial opportunity or risk. The Investment Manager focuses on environmental and social factors, for example:

- Environmental factors, such as deforestation and land usage, climate change vulnerability, greenhouse gas emissions and reliance on fossil fuel exports.
- Social factors, such as safety and environmental standards and breaches, product liabilities, breaches involving potential business risks, civil and political rights and private sector oversight and regulation.

Certain factors will be relevant to specific types of investment, depending on their features, for example government versus corporate bonds.

In addition to the integration of ESG factors described above, the Investment Manager also applies these factors to establish a scoring methodology based on external data sources which it uses to screen the universe of potential investments for the Fund. At least 90% of the issuers in the Fund's portfolio are assigned a score, and at least 80% of the Fund's investment universe is screened and scored.

Investments which are in the bottom 10% of the scoring system are automatically excluded from the Fund's portfolio. Ratings are reviewed quarterly for government debt securities, and daily for all other debt securities, and the Fund's managers will adjust the Fund within a month to exclude an issuer if a change in that issuer's score results in the bottom 10%. Investments in the bottom 10%-20% may be included in the Fund's portfolio, but the Investment Manager continually monitors these investments and will seek to engage with these issuers for improvement in environmental and social factors. If such improvement does not materialise in respect of corporate issuers, the Investment Manager may consider reducing or selling such investments.

The Fund will not invest in issuers that the Investment Manager considers have significant direct involvement in any of the following activities:

- Tobacco:
- Thermal coal;
- Nuclear energy; and
- Adult entertainment materials.

The Fund will not invest in any issuer if the issuer:

- Is assessed as 'fail' under the United Nations Global Compact; or
- Is a sovereign issuer identified in the United Nations Security Council Sanctions or as a high-risk jurisdiction by the Financial Action Task Force; or
- Is involved in the production, sales and distribution of controversial weapons, including nuclear weapons.

The Fund does not automatically exclude fossil fuels from the portfolio and such investments are subject to the above assessment criteria. Corporate issuers in the fossil fuel sector could therefore be included in the Fund's portfolio, if they score higher than the bottom 10% according to the Investment Manager's ESG scoring system.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

- We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).
- We measure performance against the Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged) (the "Index"), as it is widely available and reflects the performance of investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest and is closely aligned with the Fund's opportunity set. The Index provides a broad based measure of the global fixed income bond market. The Fund does not base its investment process upon the Index and is not managed by reference to the Index, so it will not have exposure to every bond in the Index and may also have exposure to bonds that do not form part of the Index. As such, the Fund's portfolio and returns may vary (substantially at times) from the Index
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association £ Strategic Bond sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

# **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80

for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- China Bond Connect Risk
- Credit Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Hedging Risk
- High Yield Securities
- Interest Rate Risk
- LIBOR Transition
- Liquidity Risk
- Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

The expected level of exposure that could be subject to total return swaps will vary but will not generally exceed 0% of the Fund's net assets, subject to a maximum of 100%.

The expected level of exposure that could be subject to repurchase transactions will vary but will not generally exceed 0% of the Fund's net assets, subject to a maximum of 100%.

Depending on market conditions and the strategies employed at any point in time, the actual proportion of the Fund's assets subject to each type of transaction may be significantly higher than the range stated above. The actual proportion of the Fund's assets subject to total return swaps and repurchase transactions may be zero at times.

# **SDR Information**

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The names of issuers in the bottom 10-20% of the scoring system of the underlying portfolio that the Fund has engaged with on ESG factors.
  - The number of investments in the underlying portfolio that have been sold as a result of such investments falling into the bottom 10% of the scoring methodology

(as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above).

#### FTF CLEARBRIDGE GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE INCOME FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and increase in value through investment growth. Over periods of five years, the Fund seeks to achieve an average annual return of OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%, before the deduction of all fees and costs.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least 80% of the Fund's assets in a diverse range of shares of companies listed on the stock exchanges of developed countries. Such companies will operate across a variety of infrastructure sub-sectors, which may include gas, electricity, water, toll-roads, airports, rail and communication.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Recently issued shares of companies which are not yet listed but which are expected to be listed within
   12 months of purchase;
- Other transferable securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). Up to 10% of the Fund may be invested in derivatives and recently issued securities.

While the Fund will normally be invested in accordance with the limits set out above, the Investment Manager has the freedom to invest outside of these limits, sometimes significantly, where the Investment Manager considers that, due to prevailing market conditions, it is in the interests of the Fund and its shareholders to do so.

# Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund may invest in companies operating anywhere in the world.

Up to 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in shares of companies, including depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies), issued by companies in emerging markets (countries whose economy and financial markets are still developing).

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund. The Fund usually invests in shares of around 30 - 60 companies, although the Investment Manager may invest in fewer or more companies where it considers this to be in the interests of the Fund.

The Investment Manager selects securities based on their potential return and risk characteristics and role in achieving the Fund's investment objective. The portfolio is not constrained by any market index. The Investment Manager seeks to select infrastructure and utility companies which operate under a regulatory regime, or concession arrangement which provides the Investment Manager with a predictable cash flow and minimum yield. In considering yield, the Investment Manager looks at the dividend yield, the dividend per share expectations over a five year period, and the relationship of a company's dividends and cash flows, over an estimated holding period.

#### ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

The Investment Manager integrates financial and non-financial considerations in its assessment of a prospective investment. In selecting the Fund's investments, the Investment Manager assesses prospective investments against various ESG factors, depending on the sector of the investee company, for example:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions and energy efficiency initiatives.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety and reliability and pricing of services.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

These ESG factors are used to inform the Investment Manager's wider assessment of the value and financial attractiveness of each potential investment and exposures are adjusted accordingly. In addition, the Investment Manager assesses an investment's ESG credentials both at the point of proposed investment and in terms of projected credentials in 5 years' time, allowing the Investment Manager to identify investments which are expected to improve ESG credentials over time. The Investment Manager also uses the results of these assessments to inform its strategy for engagement with companies included in the portfolio.

#### The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies that derive a significant amount of their revenues (10% or more) from the extraction or production of fossil fuels.
- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of anti-personnel mines and cluster munitions.
- Companies in the following non-infrastructure sectors: mining, explosives, alcohol and gambling.
- Companies that generate more than 5% of their revenues from tobacco.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

- We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).
- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%. The OECD G7 Inflation Index is a measure of inflation across the G7 countries (Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, the UK and the US).
- Shareholders should be aware that the performance target does not take fees and costs into account.
   Accordingly, the return Shareholders will receive will be impacted by the ongoing charges figure
   applicable to their share class. This information can be obtained in the Fund's Key Investor Information
   Document (KIID), which also includes the Fund's past performance, net of all fees and costs. The past
   performance information shown in this Prospectus is also presented net of all fees and costs.
- We also measure performance against the FTSE Global Core Infrastructure 50/50 Index (the FTSE Index).
   The FTSE Index is designed to track companies from around the world chosen to provide a broad representation of the listed infrastructure industry. The Fund does not base its investment process upon the FTSE Index and is not managed by reference to the FTSE Index, so it will not have exposure to every company in the FSTE Index and may also have exposure to companies that do not form part of the FSTE Index. As such, the Fund's portfolio and returns may vary (substantially at times) from the FTSE Index.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global Infrastructure sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Infrastructure Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Overseas Markets Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### **SDR Information**

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The engagement that the Fund has with companies in the underlying portfolio on ESG factors (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above).

#### FTF CLEARBRIDGE US EQUITY INCOME FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and increase in value through investment growth, over periods of five years or more, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least 70% of its assets in shares of US companies.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Preference securities (shares where dividends are paid out in advance of dividends due to other shares in the company)
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Debt securities of any quality.
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money-market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

Although the Investment Manager does not typically expect to use derivatives on a regular basis, the Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset, e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies.

#### Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investments in the US. No more than 20% of the Fund's assets can be invested in investments issued by non-US companies.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in shares of around 40 – 60 companies of any sector or industry. The Investment Manager seeks to select investments in companies which it believes may maintain or increase dividends or income distributions over the longer term. In particular, the Investment Manager seeks to select companies which it believes are undervalued (whether in respect of assets or earning power) by the rest of the market. Typically, the Investment Manager seeks to invest in companies with a market capitalisation of US\$ 10 billion or above, although the Investment Manager has the flexibility to invest in companies with a smaller market capitalisation if considered appropriate.

#### ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses each investee company against various ESG factors, depending on the sector of the investee company, for example:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

These ESG factors are used to inform the Investment Manager's wider assessment of the value and financial attractiveness of each potential investment, and exposures are adjusted accordingly. The Investment Manager also uses the results of these assessments to inform its strategy for engagement with companies included in the portfolio.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of antipersonnel mines and cluster munitions; or
- Companies that generate 5% or more of their revenues from tobacco.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

- We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).
- We measure performance against the S&P 500 Index (the "Index"), as it is widely available and reflects the
  performance of investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest. The Index is a measure of
  the performance of 500 large companies listed in the United States. For hedged share classes that attempt to
  mitigate the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (ending "H2"), we show performance of the hedged
  version of the comparable index.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association North America sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- · Charges to Capital Risk
- Credit Risk
- Equity Risk
- · Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

# **SDR Information**

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The engagement that the Fund has with companies in the underlying portfolio on ESG factors (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above).

#### FTF CLEARBRIDGE US VALUE FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of US companies and debt securities or bonds (a type of debt obligation) issued by US companies. Typically, the Investment Manager seeks to invest in companies with a market capitalisation of US\$ 5 billion or above, although the Investment Manager has the flexibility to invest in companies with a smaller market capitalisation if considered appropriate.

At least 50% of the Fund's assets will be shares of companies (equity).

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other transferable securities, including those issued by non-US issuers;
- Warrants (a type of security which offers the right to purchase certain securities at a fixed price) up to 5% of the Fund's portfolio;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset, e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies. Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

# Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investments in the US. No more than 20% of the Fund's assets can be invested in investments issued by non-US companies.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in investments issued by around 40-70 companies. The Investment Manager takes a long-term approach to investment. The Investment Manager selects investments in companies which it believes are undervalued by the rest of the market, and therefore seeks to purchase securities at discounts to the Investment Manager's assessment of a company's intrinsic value. Intrinsic value in this case is the value of the company measured on factors such as, but not limited to:

- The discounted value of its projected future free cash flows;
- The company's ability to earn returns on capital in excess of its cost of capital;
- Private market values of similar companies; and
- The costs to replicate the business.

#### ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses each investee company against various ESG factors, depending on the sector of the investee company, for example:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

These ESG factors are used to inform the Investment Manager's wider assessment of the value and financial attractiveness of each potential investment and exposures are adjusted accordingly. The Investment Manager also uses the results of these assessments to inform its strategy for engagement with companies included in the portfolio.

#### The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of antipersonnel mines and cluster munitions; and
- Companies that generate 5% or more of their revenues from tobacco.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

- We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).
- We measure performance against the Russell 1000 Value Index (the "Index"), as it is widely available
  and reflects the performance of investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest. The
  Index is a measure of the performance of the large-cap value segment of the investment universe of
  shares in US companies.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association North America sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### **SDR Information**

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The engagement that the Fund has with companies in the underlying portfolio on ESG factors (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above).

33

#### FTF FRANKLIN STERLING CORPORATE BOND FUND

#### What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and increase in value through investment growth. Over periods of five years, the Fund seeks to achieve an average annual return greater than that of the Markit iBoxx GBP Non-Gilts Index, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in corporate bonds (a type of debt security issued by a company) denominated in British Pounds (GBP).

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Bonds which are denominated in currencies other than GBP (up to 10% of the Fund's portfolio)
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset, e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies.

#### Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund can invest anywhere in the world.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund's assets will normally be held in investment grade securities (bonds from companies that have been rated by independent agencies as high quality); however, up to 15% of the Fund's assets can be held in bonds that are rated as below investment grade (below BBB- by Standard & Poor's or Baa3 by Moody's). These bonds generally pay a high yield (interest rate) but are considered by rating agencies to be lower quality and carry more risk than investment grade bonds. In addition, the Fund's managers make their own assessment of both investment grade and non-investment grade bonds to determine whether they believe investors will be adequately rewarded for any risk taken.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the Markit iBoxx GBP Non-Gilts Index as it is widely available and reflects investments in similar debt-related securities.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association £ Corporate Bond sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- Credit Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Fixed Income Securities Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Sub-Investment Grade Risk
- Swap Agreements Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### FTF FRANKLIN UK GILT FUND

#### What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and increase in value through investment growth. Over periods of five years, the Fund seeks to achieve an average annual return greater than that of the FTSE UK Gilts (All) Government Total Return Index, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

#### What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in debt securities or bonds issued by the United Kingdom Government that pay interest (Gilts).

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Bonds or debt securities issued by governments of any nation (up to 20% of the Fund's portfolio);
- Bonds issued by government-related organisations;
- Bonds denominated in currencies other than British Pounds (GBP) (up to 10% of the Fund's portfolio);
   and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset, e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies.

#### Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund's focus is the UK. The majority of the Fund's investments will be in bonds issued by the UK government, although the Investment Manager has discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

The Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund. The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every security in the FTSE UK Gilts (All) Government Total Return Index.

All the investments will be in investment grade securities, (bonds that have been rated by independent agencies as high quality). In addition, the Investment Manager makes its own assessment of bonds to determine whether it believes investors will be adequately rewarded for any risk taken.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the FTSE UK Gilts (All)
   Government Total Return Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in similar debt-related securities.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association UK Gilt sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Fixed Income Securities Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk

# **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Swap Agreements Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### FTF FRANKLIN US OPPORTUNITIES FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of companies of any size, listed on the United States' stock markets.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

## Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund's focus is the US. The majority of the Fund's investments will be in shares in companies listed in the US, although the Investment Manager has discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

## How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Investment Manager focuses on those stocks that it believes have the potential to grow faster than the US economy. Typically, these types of companies do not pay a dividend and instead reinvest any earnings to aid future growth. In assessing potential investments, the Investment Manager evaluates the companies for the above characteristics and assesses a company's value by looking at a wide range of financial and economic factors at the level of the relevant company, its sector and the broader economy (a fundamental approach). The Investment Manager may focus on sectors, such as technology, that have exceptional growth potential and fast-growing, innovative companies within these sectors.

Within each sector, the Investment Manager can invest in any industry but normally try to keep investment in any specific industry to no more than 25% of the portfolio.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses each investee company against various ESG factors, depending on the sector of the investee company, for example:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

These ESG factors are used to inform the Investment Manager's wider assessment of the value and financial attractiveness of each potential investment, and exposures are adjusted accordingly. The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned an ESG rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of AAA (best in class / very good), AA (good), A (fair), and B (needs improvement). Investments with an ESG rating of B (or those which are unrated because they have not met the financial criteria of the Investment Manager) will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness. The Investment Manager also uses the results of these assessments to inform its strategy for engagement with companies included in the portfolio.

#### The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production of tobacco or tobacco related products.
- Companies which generate more than 10% of revenue from thermal coal extraction or coal based power generation.
- Companies which generate more than 10% of revenue from the production and/or distribution of weapons.
- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies assessed by the Fund's managers as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact Principles.
- Companies which the Fund's managers consider do not meet standards on greenhouse gas emissions or board gender diversity.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

The Fund's performance can be compared against:

- the Russell 3000 Growth Index<sup>™</sup>, as it is widely available and reflects growth-oriented investments in the US stock market
- the S&P 500 Index, which reflects the overall stock market performance of 500 large companies listed in the United States
- the Investment Association North American sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Growth Stocks Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk
- Warrants Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metric:
  - The percentage of investments (as an overall percentage of the portfolio) that meet the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above).

# FTF MARTIN CURRIE ASIA UNCONSTRAINED FUND (no longer available for investment)

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of companies (equities) and equity related securities that are:

- Listed or traded on markets located in any of mainland China, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, Pakistan, Philippines, Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, Thailand and Vietnam ("Primary Countries"); or
- Listed or traded on any other market, but which are issued by companies that have significant business operations in, or derive the majority of their business profits from, Primary Countries.

## Equity-related securities includes:

- American and global depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies).
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Warrants (a type of tradeable contract which gives the right to buy a share at an agreed price within a certain timeframe).

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative investment use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

#### Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund has a focus on Asian investments, particularly in the "Primary Countries" listed above. Up to 20% of the Fund's portfolio could be invested outside of the Primary Countries.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

The Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in 20 - 40 companies of any size or industry, and the portfolio is constructed without reference to any benchmark or index.

The Fund invests in companies which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager, may benefit from the potential growth of Asian economies and translate that growth into returns for shareholders. The Investment Manager will ordinarily focus on companies with a business franchise which it believes can grow in value, as measured by the company's free cash flow and retained earnings. The Investment Manager selects companies that it believes offer sustainable growth, strong management and a strategic market position. The Investment Manager focuses on companies which it considers are reasonably valued and which the Fund looks to hold over the long term.

#### **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

In assessing potential investments, the Investment Manager has developed a method of valuing investments which is based on assessing the company's long term cash-generating ability. The Investment Manager undertakes due diligence on potential investments including a review of a company's historic financial records and its corporate governance.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness. Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

#### The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from tobacco production
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from direct involvement in extraction of fossil fuels
- Companies which generate revenue from mining of metals and minerals as defined by GICS subindustries Diversified Metals and Mining, Copper, Gold and Precious Metals and Minerals.
- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the MSCI AC Asia (excluding Japan) Index, which reflects the performance of investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Asia Pacific excluding Japan sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- Equity Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk
- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Volatility Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

# FTF MARTIN CURRIE EMERGING MARKETS FUND (no longer available for investment)

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the MSCI Emerging Markets Index over periods of five years, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of companies which are domiciled or conduct their principal activities in emerging markets (countries whose economy and financial markets are still developing), including China.

Exposure to these shares will typically be direct (purchasing the relevant shares themselves) but may also be indirect (gaining exposure to the shares through other investments). Indirect investments include:

- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies).
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other transferable securities including fixed interest and other debt related securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative investment use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

## Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund has a focus on investments in emerging markets. Up to 20% of the Fund's portfolio could be invested outside of emerging markets.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund's portfolio may include some overlap with the Index but does not intend to replicate it and may vary considerably. The Fund may include shares and countries that are not included in the Index. The Fund typically invests in shares of around 40 - 60 companies of any size or industry.

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager seeks to identify investment opportunities based on the investment merit of each underlying company.

## ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

The Investment Manager uses its proprietary research to identify companies with strong management of ESG risks and a business strategy directed toward sustaining profit growth over the long term.

The Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from tobacco production, distribution or wholesale trading.
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of weapons.
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from coal-based power generation or the mining or distribution of thermal coal.
- Companies involved in the production, sale or distribution of dedicated and key components of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the MSCI Emerging Markets Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in stock markets of emerging markets countries.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global Emerging Markets sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Sustainability Risk / ESG Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the

# **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

underlying individual investments in the Fund.

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE EUROPEAN UNCONSTRAINED FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of companies which are domiciled, listed or conduct a significant proportion of their business in European countries (excluding the United Kingdom).

Exposure to these shares will typically be direct (purchasing the relevant shares themselves) but may also be indirect (gaining exposure to the shares through other investments). Indirect investments include:

- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies).
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Shares of other companies;
- Other equity related securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or costs and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative investment use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). The Fund will not take short positions (a technique where investors seek to profit from decreases in value of securities, indices, currencies and/or index rates). Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

# Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investments in Europe (excluding the UK) although up to 20% of the Fund's investments could be in non-European countries.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

The Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in shares of around 20-40 companies of any size, industry or market capitalisation although the Investment Manager may invest in fewer or more companies where it considers this to be in the interests of the Fund.

The Fund invests in companies which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager:

- Have the potential to generate or sustain a return on invested capital where the return is higher than the cost of capital;
- Have the potential to develop an attractive growth profile and/or cash flow generation over the long

term; and

Have supportive accounting and environmental, social and governance (ESG) practices.

In assessing potential investments, the Investment Manager evaluates the companies for the above characteristics and assesses a company's value by looking at a wide range of financial and economic factors at the level of the relevant company, its sector and the broader economy (a fundamental approach). The Investment Manager focuses on forecasting a company's potential growth and returns, based on research and due diligence and using the Investment Manager's proprietary research platform. In addition, the Investment Manager seeks to identify specific sectors which it believes have the possibility of generating attractive growth or returns.

The Fund aims to hold investments for the long term, with relatively low portfolio turnover. The Investment Manager may also engage with the management of the companies in which the Fund invests or may invest, to discuss potential sources of value creation.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio.

The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from tobacco production, distribution or wholesale trading.
- Companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (I.e. antipersonnel mines, nuclear weaponry, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of conventional weapons.
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of fossil fuels.
- Companies which generate revenue from mining of metals and minerals as defined by GICS subindustries Diversified Metals and Mining, Copper, Gold and Precious Metals and Minerals.
- Companies generating more than 5% revenue from coal based power generation or the mining or distribution of thermal coal.
- Companies that generate 15% or more of their revenues from nuclear power generation.
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the MSCI Europe ex UK Net Dividends Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Europe (excluding UK) sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk
- Volatility Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE GLOBAL UNCONSTRAINED FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of companies which are incorporated or domiciled anywhere in the world, including in China and in emerging markets (countries whose economy and financial markets are still developing, such as those which are included within the MSCI Emerging Markets Index).

Exposure to these shares will typically be direct (purchasing the relevant shares themselves) but may also be indirect (gaining exposure to the shares through other investments). Indirect investments include:

- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies).
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

## Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other collective investment schemes;
- Money market instruments; and
- · Deposits.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or costs and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative investment use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). The Fund will not take short positions (a technique where investors seek to profit from decreases in value of securities, indices, currencies and/or index rates). Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

# Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund can invest anywhere in the world.

## How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund invests in companies which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager:

- Have the potential to generate or sustain a return on invested capital where the return is higher than the cost of capital; and
- Have the potential to develop an attractive growth profile and/or cash flow generation over the long term.

The Fund typically invests in shares of around 20-40 companies of any size, industry or market capitalisation, although the Investment Manager may invest in fewer or more companies where it considers this to be in the interests of the Fund. In assessing potential investments, the Investment Manager evaluates the companies for the above characteristics, and assesses a company's value by looking at a wide range of financial and economic factors at the level of the relevant company, its sector and the broader economy (a fundamental approach). The

Investment Manager focuses on forecasting a company's potential growth and returns, based on research and due diligence and using the Investment Manager's proprietary research platform.

## ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from tobacco production, distribution or wholesale trading.
- Companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, nuclear weaponry, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of conventional weapons.
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of fossil fuels.
- Companies which generate revenue from mining of metals and minerals as defined by GICS subindustries Diversified Metals and Mining, Copper, Gold and Precious Metals and Minerals.
- Companies generating more than 5% revenue from coal based power generation or the mining or distribution of thermal coal.
- Companies that generate 15% or more of their revenues from nuclear power generation.
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the MSCI All Countries World (Net Dividends) Index (the "Index"), as
  it is widely available and reflects the performance of investments in similar assets to those in which the
  Fund will invest. The term "Net Dividends" in the name of the Index means that the Index returns reflect
  the deduction of withholding taxes.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- Equity Risk
- Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk

## **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk
- Volatility Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

# **SDR Information**

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

51

## FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK EQUITY INCOME FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate an income that is higher than that of the FTSE All-Share Index and increase in value through investment growth, over periods of five years, after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange. These companies are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Debt securities or bonds (debt obligations that pay interest) issued by governments, government-related, supranational organisations or corporations;
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

## Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Investment Manager has discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

Typically, the number of holdings in the Fund will vary between 40 to 60 company shares and most of these will be the shares of large (such as those making up the FTSE 100 Index) companies.

The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every company in the FTSE All-Share Index and have the freedom to invest up to 10% of the Fund's assets outside of it.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk.

The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates the Fund's investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep shareholdings in any individual large company to no more than 5% of the Fund's total value, while a shareholding in any individual medium- and small-sized company would typically be no more than 2%.

## ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

• Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.

- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

Where the Investment Manager identifies potential violations of UN Global Compact principles, the Investment Manager will establish a structured engagement process with companies to encourage improvement. The Fund will not invest in companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the FTSE All-Share Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in the UK stock market.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association UK Equity Income sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- Equity Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK MANAGERS' FOCUS FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the FTSE All-Share Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

## Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange that are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK.

The investment portfolio of the Fund will be concentrated, typically comprising the shares of between 35 and 60 companies.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Debt securities or bonds (debt obligations that pay interest) issued by governments, governmentrelated, supranational organisations or corporations;
- Convertible securities (a type of corporate debt security which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents, and money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

## Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

## How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

While the Investment Manager has the freedom to invest up to 10% of the Fund's assets outside of these indices, this would be very unusual, and the result of a very strong opportunity identified in their research or to protect capital in unusual market conditions.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk.

The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates the Fund's investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep shareholdings in any individual company to between 1% and 3% of the Fund's assets.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.

- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

Where the Investment Manager identifies potential violations of UN Global Compact principles, the Investment Manager will establish a structured engagement process with companies to encourage improvement. The Fund will not invest in companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the FTSE All-Share Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in the UK stock market.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association UK All Companies sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Sustainability Risk / ESG Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK MID CAP FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the FTSE 250 (ex-Investment Trusts) Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of medium-sized companies that are constituents of the FTSE 250 (ex-Investment Trusts) Index and that are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK. This will typically be around 30–50 companies.

## Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Debt securities or bonds (debt obligations that pay interest) issued by governments, government-related, supranational organisations or corporations;
- Convertible securities (a type of corporate debt security which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

# Geographic locations (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates the Fund's investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep shareholdings in any individual company between 1.5% and 5% of the Fund's total value.

The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every company in the FTSE 250 (ex-Investment Trusts) Index and, while the Investment Manager has the freedom to invest up to 10% of the Fund's assets outside of it, this is rare and typically has been because of changes to an index composition.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.

 Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

The FTSE 250 (ex-Investment Trusts) Index is the Fund's performance target and constrains the Fund's investment universe. It is widely available and reflects the performance of medium-sized companies. The Fund's performance may also be compared against the Investment Association UK All Companies sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- · Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- · Sustainability / ESG Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

# FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK OPPORTUNITIES FUND (no longer available for investment)

## What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to grow in value by more than the FTSE All-Share Index, from a combination of income and investment growth over a three to five-year period after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

## Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange that are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK. This will typically be around 30–50 companies.

#### Other investments

The Investment Manager may invest up to 10% of the Fund's assets in Continental European companies, although this has historically been a rare occurrence. The Fund may also invest in:

- Debt securities or bonds (debt obligations that pay interest) issued by governments, government-related, supranational organisations or corporations;
- Convertible securities (a type of corporate debt security which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

# Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund. The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every company in the FTSE All-Share Index.

The Investment Manager seeks to achieve the growth objective while maintaining volatility (a measure of the size of short-term changes in the value of an investment) at lower levels than that of the FTSE All-Share Index. This often means that the Fund invests in large- or medium-sized companies listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk.

The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates Fund investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep a shareholding in any individual company to between 1.5% and 5% of the Fund's assets.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

#### **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

Where the Investment Manager identifies potential violations of UN Global Compact principles, the Investment Manager will establish a structured engagement process with companies to encourage improvement. The Fund will not invest in companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the FTSE All-Share Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in the UK stock market.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association UK All Companies sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

## **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- · Sustainability Risk

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK RISING DIVIDENDS FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the FTSE All-Share Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

# Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange that are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK.

## Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Debt securities or bonds (debt obligations that pay interest) issued by governments, government-related, supranational organisations or corporations;
- Convertible securities (a type of corporate debt security which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation);
- Other types of transferable securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- · Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

## Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

## How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund usually invests in 30–50 companies that have grown their dividend in at least 8 of the past 10 years. Typically, most of these investments will be in the shares of large or medium sized companies (such as those making up the FTSE 350 Index).

The Investment Manager will select only those companies from the FTSE All-Share Index that its research suggests will help the Investment Manager to meet the Fund's objective. The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every company in the FTSE All-Share Index and has the freedom to invest up to 10% of the Fund's assets outside of it.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk. The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates Fund investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep shareholdings in any individual large company to no more than 5% of the Fund's total value, while a shareholding in any individual medium-sized company would typically be between 2% and 2.5% and small-sized companies would typically be no more than 1.5%.

# ESG (Environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety,

- reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

Where the Investment Manager identifies potential violations of UN Global Compact principles, the Investment Manager will establish a structured engagement process with companies to encourage improvement. The Fund will not invest in companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the FTSE All-Share Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in the UK stock market.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association UK All Companies sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Charges to Capital Risk
- Equity Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

## FTF MARTIN CURRIE UK SMALLER COMPANIES FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the Numis Smaller Companies ex-Investment Trusts Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in shares of smaller companies which are constituents of the Numis Smaller Companies ex-Investment Trusts Index or are listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) exchange and that are incorporated/domiciled in the UK or which have significant business operations in the UK.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other types of transferable securities;
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

#### Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in the UK although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Investment Manager does not intend to invest in every company in the Numis Smaller Companies ex-Investment Trusts Index or AIM but using its expertise and research, select around 40–50 companies it believes will achieve the Fund's objective.

The Investment Manager tries to further reduce risk by making sure no single company share dominates the Fund's investments. Normally, the Investment Manager tries to keep shareholdings in any individual company between 1% and 5% of the Fund's total value.

Any proportion of the Fund can be invested into specific industry sectors, but the Investment Manager seeks to avoid any unintentional emphasis on a sector in a way that could increase the level of risk.

## ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns. These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

This ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating

#### **Prospectus of Franklin Templeton Funds**

system, and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (I.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

The Numis Smaller Companies ex-Investment Trusts Index is the Fund's performance target and constrains the Fund's investment universe. It reflects the performance of smaller companies. We may also compare the performance of the Fund to the Investment Association UK Smaller Companies sector average as it reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- · Equity Risk
- · Growth Stocks Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

#### FTF MARTIN CURRIE US UNCONSTRAINED FUND

For the purposes of SDR, sustainable investment labels help investors find funds that have a specific sustainability objective. This Fund does not have a UK sustainable investment label because it does not have a specific sustainability objective.

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of US companies.

Exposure to these shares will typically be direct (purchasing the relevant shares themselves) but may also be indirect (gaining exposure to the shares through other investments). Indirect investments include:

- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Depositary receipts (a type of listed security which enables investors to hold shares in foreign companies).
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

## Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- · Cash and cash equivalents; and
- · Money market instruments;

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or costs and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative investment use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. The Fund will not take short positions (a technique where investors seek to profit from decreases in value of securities, indices, currencies and/or index rates). Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

# Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund's focus is the US. The majority of the Fund's investments will be in shares in companies listed in the US, although the Fund's managers have discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in shares of around 20-40 companies of any size, industry or market capitalisation, although the Investment Manager may invest in fewer or more companies where it considers this to be in the interests of the Fund.

The Fund invests in companies which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager:

- have the potential to generate a return on invested capital where the return is higher than the cost of capital; and
- have the potential to develop an attractive growth profile and/or cash flow generation.

In assessing potential investments, the Investment Manager evaluates the companies for the above characteristics and assesses a company's value by looking at a wide range of financial and economic factors at the level of the relevant company, its sector and the broader economy (a fundamental approach). The Investment Manager focuses on forecasting a company's potential growth and returns, based on research and due diligence and using the Investment Manager's proprietary research platform.

## ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses ESG factors that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future sustainable returns.

# These may include:

- Environmental factors, such as a company's environmental practices, greenhouse gas emissions, energy efficiency initiatives and climate risk.
- Social factors such as a company's approach to community relations, occupational health and safety, reliability and pricing of services and gender diversity.
- Governance factors such as the governance structure of the company, management incentives, corporate governance risk, data security and the Fund's alignment with management, board and other shareholders of the company.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system and its direct research and engagement process. The proprietary ESG assessment captures forward looking analysis. Investments are assigned a risk rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors. Investments are assigned a score of 1 to 5 in respect of each of governance and sustainability (meaning environmental and social factors), with 5 denoting high risk. Investments with a governance or sustainability risk rating of 4 or above will not be selected for the portfolio. The Investment Manager's assessment of a company's ESG characteristics may impact the Investment Manager's view of that company's financial valuation and attractiveness.

Where the Investment Manager identifies areas that do not meet expectations of best practice on material governance or sustainability issues, the Investment Manager will engage with companies to encourage improvement.

#### The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from tobacco production, distribution or wholesale trading.
- Companies which generate revenue from the production or distribution of controversial weapons (I.e. antipersonnel mines, nuclear weaponry, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of conventional weapons.
- Companies which generate more than 5% of revenue from the production or distribution of fossil fuels.
- Companies which generate revenue from mining of metals and minerals as defined by GICS subindustries Diversified Metals and Mining, Copper, Gold and Precious Metals and Minerals.
- Companies generating more than 5% revenue from coal based power generation or the mining or distribution of thermal coal.
- Companies that generate 15% or more of their revenues from nuclear power generation.
- Companies assessed as 'fail' under the UN Global Compact.

# **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the MSCI USA (Net Dividends) Index (the "Index"), as it is widely available and reflects investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest. The term "Net Dividends" in the name of the Index means that the Index returns reflect the deduction of withholding taxes. For hedged share classes that attempt to mitigate the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (ending "H2"), we show performance of the hedged version of the comparable index.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association North America sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- · Volatility Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

- No Sustainability Label: Please refer to the disclaimer underneath the Fund's name which confirms that this Fund does not have a sustainable investment label.
- Sustainability Approach: Please refer to the 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' section above in the investment policy for details on the Fund's sustainability approach.
- Sustainability Metrics: The ACD will report on the following metrics:
  - The overall aggregate governance and sustainability risk ratings as determined by the ESG scoring methodology (as described in 'ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors' above) of the underlying individual investments in the Fund.

## FTF ROYCE US SMALLER COMPANIES FUND

## What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in the shares and preference shares of smaller companies (i.e. those with market capitalisations not greater than that of the largest company in the Russell 2000 Index (the "Index") at the time of its most recent reconstitution) headquartered in the U.S. Preference shares are shares where dividends are paid out in advance of dividends due to other shares in the company.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other shares, preference shares, convertible bonds (a type of corporate debt security which can be
  exchanged for shares in the same organisation), other debt securities and warrants, each of which are
  issued by companies in any jurisdiction and of any size;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments;
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). Derivatives are investments whose value is linked to another investment or the performance of another variable factor, such as interest rates, currencies of any country or indices. The Fund may introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future, on 60 days' notice to investors.

## Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund's focus is the US. The majority of the Fund's assets will be invested in shares and preference shares of companies headquartered in the US, although the Investment Manager has discretion to invest in any other country to a lesser extent.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in shares of fewer than 100 companies.

The Fund does not intend to replicate the issuer, sector and industry composition or weightings of the Index. The issuer, sector and industry composition and weightings of the Fund's portfolio are likely to vary considerably from those of the Index. To the extent the Fund is more heavily invested in a particular issuer, sector or industry relative to the Index, its performance may be tied more directly to the success or failure of a relatively smaller or less well-diversified group of portfolio holdings than that of the Index. The Fund may also include shares of companies which are not included in the Index.

The Investment Manager seeks to invest in companies which it believes possess excellent business strengths or prospects, high internal rates of return and whose securities are trading significantly below the Investment Manager's estimate of their current worth. In addition, the Investment Manager looks for companies which it considers have an attractive financial profile, including companies with: (i) conservative balance sheets with low leverage; (ii) prudent capital allocation; and (iii) attractive reinvestment opportunities.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses investee companies against a range of investment factors, including material ESG factors to the extent they represent opportunities or risks that may impact the value of the investment. The Investment Manager defines material ESG factors as those that it believes may impact a company's cash flows, balance sheet, reputation, and/or enterprise value. This assessment enables the Investment Manager to determine whether a company's ESG profile poses a material

risk or creates an opportunity for investment for the Fund.

Sustainability-related risks and opportunities are only taken into account by the Investment Manager to the extent that the Investment Manager believes such factors may impact the financial returns of the portfolio and no assurance is given that any investments made will result in positive sustainability-related impacts or minimise negative impacts. No claim is made that the Fund has any sustainability-related objective, other than the consideration of sustainability risks which may have an impact on the financial value of the investment, alongside a range of other risks, in seeking to achieve the financial objective.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- The Fund's performance can be compared against the Russell 2000 Index, as it is widely available and reflects the overall stock market performance of small-cap companies listed in the United States of America. For hedged share classes that attempt to mitigate the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (ending "H2"), we show performance of the hedged version of the comparable index.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association North America Smaller Companies sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

# FTF TEMPLETON GLOBAL EMERGING MARKETS FUND

## What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in emerging markets (countries whose economy and financial markets are still developing). The Fund typically invests in shares of around 60–80 companies of any size or industry that:

- Are listed on an emerging markets stock exchange, or
- Are domiciled or conduct a significant proportion of their business in emerging markets, or
- Receive a significant amount of their revenues from emerging markets.

To a lesser extent, the Fund may also invest in frontier markets, these are markets that are at earlier stages of their economic and financial market development than emerging markets.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other transferable securities including fixed interest and other debt related securities;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- · Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). However, the Fund can introduce more speculative use of derivatives in the future on 60 days' notice to investors. Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies).

# Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund has a focus on investments in emerging markets. Up to one third of the Fund's portfolio could be invested outside of emerging markets.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Managers do not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Investment Managers use research and experience to identify companies that show more potential to deliver growth over the long-term (5 years) than their market price would suggest.

The Fund's portfolio may include some overlap with the Index but does not intend to replicate it and may vary considerably. The Fund may include shares and countries that are not included in the MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index.

Typically, to help manage risk, the Investment Managers aim to keep exposure to any single company in a range of 5% more or less than the Index and industry and country exposure in a range of 10% more or less than the MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

The Investment Managers assess investee companies against a range of investment factors, including ESG factors to the extent that they represent opportunities or risks that could impact the ability of an issuer to generate future returns, although the Investment Managers may not always include an assessment of ESG factors when considering the financial attractiveness of an investment.

These ESG factors can be used to inform the Investment Managers' assessment of the wider attractiveness of potential investments. The Investment Managers may also use the results of these assessments to inform its strategy for engagement with companies included in the portfolio where applicable.

Sustainability-related risks and opportunities are only taken into account by the Investment Managers to the extent that the Investment Managers believe such factors may impact the financial returns of the portfolio and no assurance is given that any investments made will result in positive sustainability-related impacts or minimise negative impacts. No claim is made that the Fund has any sustainability-related objective, other than the consideration of sustainability risks which may have an impact on the financial value of the investment alongside a range of other risks, in seeking to achieve the financial objective.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments in stock markets of emerging markets countries. The term 'Net Dividends' in the name of the Index means that the Index returns reflect the deduction of withholding taxes.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Emerging Markets sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- · Emerging Markets Risk
- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Frontier Markets Risk
- · Liquidity Risk
- Non-Regulated Markets Risk
- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Undervalued Securities Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

## FTF TEMPLETON GLOBAL LEADERS FUND

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth by more than the MSCI All Country World (Net Dividends) Index over periods of five years after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve this return over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund will invest at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in the shares of a range of companies anywhere in the world that the Fund's portfolio management team regard as established leaders.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Shares in companies that the Investment Manager considers are "emerging leaders" up to a maximum of 30% of the Fund.
- Other transferable securities (including bonds and other debt securities);
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments;
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes; and
- Derivatives (financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies). These derivatives include, but are not limited to, futures, currency forwards and options).

The Fund uses derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth. within the Fund's existing risk profile), as well as for more speculative investment purposes, to help achieve the Fund's investment objective. It is anticipated that where the Fund uses derivatives for speculative purposes, this will be limited to part of the overall strategy.

## Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund can invest anywhere in the world.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Managers do not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

"Established leaders" are companies with dominant market positions, strong competitive advantages, high quality management, solid balance sheets, and positive returns on capital in growing industries that show potential to deliver growth over the long term (5 years) than their market price would suggest. Companies which are "emerging leaders" are in earlier stages of growth that the team believe will become established leaders over time. No more than 30% of the Fund's total value will typically be invested in shares of companies that the Investment Managers consider to be emerging leaders.

Typically, the number of holdings in the Fund will vary between 25-35 companies' shares but the Fund may hold up to 50 companies' shares. These holdings will typically be the shares of companies that have a market capitalisation of over \$10bn. However, the Fund may also invest in companies with market capitalisations of between \$1bn and \$10bn.

The Fund's portfolio may include some overlap with the MSCI All Country World (Net Dividends) Index but does not intend to replicate it and may vary considerably. It seeks to manage risk by avoiding any unintentional emphasis on a single company, industry or country.

# ESG (environmental, social and governance factors)

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses investee companies against a range of investment factors, including ESG factors to the extent that they represent opportunities or risks that may impact the value of the investment.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system and its direct research and engagement process. Investments are assigned a rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors.

The Fund will not invest in companies which produce controversial weapons (i.e. antipersonnel mines, biological and chemical weaponry and cluster munitions).

Sustainability-related risks and opportunities are only taken into account by the Investment Manager to the extent that the Investment Manager believes such factors may impact the financial returns of the portfolio and no assurance is given that any investments made will result in positive sustainability-related impacts or minimise negative impacts. No claim is made that the Fund has any sustainability-related objective, other than the consideration of sustainability risks which may have an impact on the financial value of the investment alongside a range of other risks, in seeking to achieve the financial objective.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Fund's performance target, the MSCI All Country World (Net Dividends) Index, as it is widely available and reflects investments across global stock markets. The term 'Net Dividends' in the name of the Index means that the Index returns reflect the deduction of withholding taxes.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global Equity sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Derivative Risk
- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- · Growth Stocks Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk
- Short Selling Risk
- Undervalued Securities Risk

#### **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

# FTF TEMPLETON GLOBAL TOTAL RETURN BOND FUND (no longer available for investment)

## What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to generate income and increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund will invest at least two thirds (but typically significantly more) in:

- Debt securities or bonds, (a type of debt obligation) issued by governments, government-related, supranational organisations and corporations in any industry, anywhere in the world, including China.
- Derivatives (financial contracts whose value is linked to another investment or the performance of another variable factor, such as interest rates, currencies of any country or indices). The types of derivatives used include but are not limited to: options, futures, forward currency contracts, credit default swaps, interest rate swaps, total return swaps and contracts for difference.

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest in:

- Bonds whose value is secured by mortgages or other assets (mortgage or asset-backed securities);
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate debt security which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation):
- Structured products (a type of fixed-term investment whose payout depends on the performance of something else, such as another security or currency);
- Other transferable securities:
- Cash and cash equivalents;
- · Money market instruments; and
- Other collective investment schemes which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates. The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund uses derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth within the Fund's existing risk profile), as well as for more speculative investment purposes, to help achieve the Fund's investment objective. It is anticipated that where the Fund uses derivatives for speculative purposes, this will be limited to part of the overall strategy.

# Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund can invest anywhere in the world.

#### How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund. The Investment Manager has the freedom to choose securities that their research indicates have the strongest potential to meet the Fund's objective.

The Fund will typically limit exposure to bonds that are rated as below investment grade (below BBB- by Standard & Poor's or Baa3 by Moody's) to no more than 50% of the total portfolio. These bonds generally pay a high yield (interest rate) but are considered by rating agencies to be lower quality and carry more risk than investment grade bonds.

The Fund can also invest in distressed securities (those whose issuers may be in or close to bankruptcy or administration), but still present diverse opportunities to grow in value.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

As part of the overall research process for government debt issuers, the Investment Manager assesses a range of investment factors, including ESG factors using a proprietary rating methodology which incorporates ratings from third party providers alongside the Investment Manager's own views.

These ESG factors are used, alongside a number of others, to inform the Investment Manager's wider

assessment of the investment worthiness of a particular government issuer and opportunities or risks that may impact the value of the investment. While investments with a higher ESG rating or ESG ratings which are projected to be neutral or improving may add weight to an investment being assessed as being financially attractive, a low ESG rating will not automatically result in exclusion from the portfolio if the Investment Manager considers other factors mean the investment is sufficiently financially attractive,

For corporate issuers, the Investment Manager does not always include an assessment of ESG factors, when considering the investment worthiness of the issuer and financial attractiveness of the investment.

The Fund does not automatically exclude any particular investment from the portfolio based solely on its ESG assessment. Whilst an ESG assessment will always be performed on bonds issued by governments, bonds issued by corporates will not always be assessed.

Sustainability-related risks and opportunities are only taken into account by the Investment Manager to the extent that the Investment Manager believes such factors may impact the financial returns of the portfolio and no assurance is given that any investments made will result in positive sustainability-related impacts or minimise negative impacts. No claim is made that the Fund has any sustainability-related objective, other than the consideration of sustainability risks which may have an impact on the financial value of the investment, alongside a range of other risks, in seeking to achieve the financial objective.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

- We measure performance against the Bloomberg Multiverse Index\*, which reflects investments in similar debt-related securities.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global Mixed Bond sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

For hedged share classes that attempt to remove the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (ending GBP-H3), we show performance of the comparable index in US dollars (US\$).

\*Previously known as the Bloomberg Barclays Multiverse Index.

#### **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- China Bond Connect Risk
- Credit-Linked Securities Risk
- Credit Risk
- Defaulted Debt Securities Risk
- Derivative Risk
- · Emerging Markets Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Fixed Income Securities Risk
- · Frontier Markets Risk
- Hedged Shares Hedging Risk
- Hedging Risk (Specific to H3 Shares in FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund)
- Interest Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities Risk
- Mortgage Dollar Roll Risk
- · Non-Regulated Markets Risk
- Pre-Payment Risk
- Unhedged Shares Impact of Hedging Elsewhere in a Fund
- Sub-Investment Grade Risk
- Swap Agreements Risk
- Warrants Risk

## **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

#### FTF TEMPLETON JAPAN EQUITY FUND

## What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to increase in value through investment growth over periods of five years or more after all fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

## What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investment

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in shares of Japanese companies.

#### Other investments

In addition, where, in the Investment Manager's opinion, attractive investment opportunities cannot be found or for liquidity management purposes, the Fund may also invest in:

- Cash or cash equivalents;
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or costs and/or generate extra income or growth). Derivatives are financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset, e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices or currencies. Use of derivatives is typically expected to be limited.

#### Geographic location (where we invest)

The Fund focuses on investment in Japan.

# How we select investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

The Fund typically invests in shares of around 30 – 60 companies of any size, industry or market capitalisation.

The Investment Manager uses research and experience to identify quality companies which it believes are undervalued by the market and show potential to deliver growth over the long term.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance) factors

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses investee companies against a range of investment factors, including ESG factors to the extent that they represent opportunities or risks that may impact the value of the investment.

The ESG assessment is quantitative and qualitative, using the Investment Manager's proprietary ESG rating system and its direct research and engagement process. Investments are assigned a rating based on the Investment Manager's assessment of ESG factors.

Sustainability-related risks and opportunities are only taken into account by the Investment Manager to the extent that the Investment Manager believes such factors may impact the financial returns of the portfolio and no assurance is given that any investments made will result in positive sustainability-related impacts or minimise negative impacts. No claim is made that the Fund has any sustainability-related objective, other than the consideration of sustainability risks which may have an impact on the financial value of the investment, alongside a range of other risks, in seeking to achieve the financial objective.

## **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the Japan TSE 1<sup>st</sup> Section (TOPIX) Index (the "Index"), as it is widely
  available and reflects investments in similar assets to those in which the Fund will invest. For hedged
  share classes that attempt to mitigate the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (ending "H2"),
  we show performance of the hedged version of the comparable index.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Japan sector

average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

# **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Equity Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Portfolio Concentration Risk
- Single Country/Region Risk

# **Additional Fund Information**

The base currency of the Fund is British Pounds (GBP).

# FTF WESTERN ASSET GLOBAL MULTI STRATEGY BOND FUND (no longer available for investment)

# What the Fund aims to deliver (Fund objective)

The Fund aims to grow in value from a combination of income and capital growth, in excess of SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%, over rolling five year periods, before fees and costs are deducted.

There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve its objective over this or any other time period. Capital invested is at risk and you may get back less than you paid in.

# What the Fund can invest in (investment policy)

#### Core investments

The Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in debt securities or bonds (a type of debt obligation) issued anywhere in the world, including emerging markets (countries whose economy and financial markets are still developing), in each case which are denominated in Sterling or hedged back to Sterling. These securities can include:

- Bonds or debt securities issued by governments, government-related or supranational organisations, or corporate issuers, including loans.
- Convertible bonds (a type of corporate bond which can be exchanged for shares in the same organisation).
- Bonds whose value is secured by mortgages or other assets with a return dependent on the cash flow or interest arising from such assets (mortgage or asset-backed securities).
- Securities which are indexed to inflation (inflation-protected securities).
- Debt securities that do not pay interest but instead trade at a significant discount and which are redeemed at maturity for the full face-value (zero-coupon bonds).
- Written orders or agreements to pay fixed sums of money either at a pre-determined date or on demand (bills of exchange, banker's acceptances and promissory notes).

#### Other investments

The Fund may also invest up to 10% of the portfolio in:

- Shares in companies which are acquired as a result of a corporate action or as part of a company
  restructure, or conversion via convertible bonds (a type of corporate debt security which can be
  exchanged for shares in the same organisation), and preference shares (shares where dividends are paid
  out in advance of dividends due to other shares in the Company;
- Other collective investment schemes (which may include collective investment schemes operated by the ACD or any of its associates). The Fund may not invest more than 10% in other collective investment schemes.

The Fund may also invest in:

- Other non-Sterling denominated debt securities or bonds;
- · Cash and cash equivalents;
- Money market instruments; and
- Derivatives (financial contracts whose value is linked to the price of another asset (e.g. indices, interest rates, share prices of currencies).

The Fund can use derivatives for efficient portfolio management (managing the Fund in a way that is designed to reduce risk or cost and/or generate extra income or growth). The Fund may also use derivatives for more speculative investment purposes to help achieve the Fund's investment objectives.

#### Geographical location (where we invest)

The Fund can invest anywhere in the world.

#### How we select invest investments (investment strategy)

This Fund is actively managed, which means that the Investment Manager does not copy a benchmark when selecting investments for the Fund.

At least 40% of the debt securities and bonds will be investment grade at the time of investment i.e. either rated as high as or higher than the following standards or their equivalent by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (or, where not rated, where the Investment Manager considers to the issuer be of at least equal in credit quality to the following standards):

- Standard & Poor's: BBB- or A-2; or
- Moody's: Baa3 or Prime-2; or
- Fitch: BBB- or F-2.

The Fund may invest in debt securities and bonds which are not investment grade. These securities generally pay a higher yield (interest rate) but are considered by rating agencies to be lower quality and carry more risk than investment grade bonds.

It is expected that, under normal market conditions, the Fund will maintain an overall weighted average credit rating of at least BBB- or equivalent.

The Fund is a multi-sector strategy which seeks to achieve its investment objective by diversifying across a range of sectors, securities, and currencies. The Investment Manager develops investment ideas and uses a disciplined research programme to add value by rotating actively among and within the global investment universe as valuations change. The Investment Manager identifies securities within each sector which they believe are undervalued or mispriced based upon internal research and analysis.

# ESG (environmental, social, and governance factors)

In selecting investments, the Investment Manager also assesses each investee company against various ESG factors. The Fund will not invest in:

- Companies which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager, do not follow good governance practices.
- Issuers which MSCI have identified as failing the principles set out in the UN "Global Compact", unless the Investment Manager considers a "fail" grade to be inaccurate.
- Companies which manufacture controversial weapons (such as anti-personnel landmines, biochemical weapons, blinding laser weapons, depleted uranium, incendiary weapons) or which are in the same group as a company manufacturing such weapons.
- Companies which derive over 10% of revenue from:
- The manufacture or supply of civilian firearms.
- Involvement in conventional weapons.
- The mining, production or distribution of thermal coal.
- Companies which derive over 5% of revenue from tobacco production and / or distribution.
- Companies which derive over 5% of revenue from the production of nuclear weapons.

#### **How we Measure Performance**

We measure performance and price shares in the Fund in British Pounds (GBP).

- We measure performance against the fund's performance target, SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%. SONIA Compounded Index (the "Index") is a measure of the rate at which interest is paid on sterling short-term wholesale funds in circumstances where credit, liquidity and other risks are minimal. It is based on actual transactions and reflects the average of the interest rates that banks pay to borrow unsecured sterling cash overnight from other financial institutions. The Index is equivalent to a series of daily data representing the returns from a rolling unit of investment earning compound interest each day at the SONIA rate and can be used to calculate the interest rate payable over a period.
- Shareholders should be aware that the performance target does not take fees and costs into account.
   Accordingly, the return Shareholders will receive will be impacted by the ongoing charges figure applicable to their share class. This information can be obtained in the Fund's Key Investor Information Document (KIID), which also includes the Fund's past performance, net of all fees and costs. The past performance information shown in this Prospectus is also presented net of all fees and costs.
- The Fund's performance can also be compared against the Investment Association Global Mixed Bond sector average, which reflects the performance of the Fund's competitors.

# **Risk Factors**

The risk factors listed below are the main risks of the Fund. Shareholders should be aware that other risks may also be relevant to this Fund from time to time. Please refer to the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page 80 for a full description of these risk factors:

- Credit Risk
- Hedging Risk
- Derivative Risk
- Exchange Rate Risk
- · Emerging Markets Risk
- Charges to Capital Risk
- LIBOR Transition
- Interest Rate Risk
- Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities Risk
- Sustainability / ESG Risk

The base currency of the Fund is UK sterling.

The expected level of exposure that could be subject to total return swaps will vary but will not generally exceed 0-20% of the Fund's net assets, subject to a maximum of 100%.

The expected level of exposure that could be subject to repurchase transactions will vary but will not generally exceed 0-20% of the Fund's net assets, subject to a maximum of 100%.

Depending on market conditions and the strategies employed at any point in time, the actual proportion of the Fund's assets subject to each type of transaction may be significantly higher than the range stated above. The actual proportion of the Fund's assets subject to total return swaps and repurchase transactions may be zero at times.

#### **Risk Factors**

The following are important risk warnings:

#### **GENERAL RISK FACTORS**

Investors should understand that all investments involve risk and there can be no guarantee against loss resulting from an investment in any Fund(s), nor can there be any assurance that the Fund(s)' investment objective(s) will be attained. The performance of each Fund will vary depending on the investments held by that individual Fund. When an investor sells Shares, the investor may get back less than the amount originally invested. Neither the ACD nor the Investment Managers of the Funds, nor any of their worldwide affiliated entities or any other third party, guarantee the performance or any future return of the Company or any of its Funds.

The value of the Shares will increase as the value of the assets owned by any Fund of the Company increases and will decrease as the value of a Fund's assets decrease. In this way, investors participate in any change in the value of the assets owned by a Fund. In addition to the factors that affect the value of any particular asset that a Fund owns, the value of a Fund's Shares may also change with movements in the stock and bond markets as a whole. The income derived from the assets of a Fund may fall as well as rise.

There can be no assurance that any appreciation of the value of the assets will occur and investors may not recoup the original amount they invest in a Fund.

The Shares should be viewed as a medium to long term investment and should therefore only be considered as an investment of five years or longer.

A Fund may own assets of different types, or from different asset classes – such as equities, bonds, money market instruments or derivatives – depending on the Fund's investment objective and policy. For example, a Fund whose objective is long-term capital gain will often invest mostly in equity securities. A Fund whose main objective is to preserve capital in the short term is likely to have most of its holdings in money market instruments.

There is no certainty that the investment objective of any of the Funds will actually be achieved and no warranty or representation is given to this effect.

Different investments have different types of investment risk. The Funds also have different kinds of risk, depending on the securities they own. Below is a summary of the various types of investment risk that may be applicable to a Fund.

The following risk factors apply to all of the Funds:

#### **Cancellation Rights**

Where cancellation rights are applicable, if Shareholders choose to exercise their cancellation rights and the value of their investment falls before notice of cancellation is received by the ACD in writing, a full refund of the original investment may not be provided but rather the original amount less any fall in value.

#### **Chinese Market Risk**

Risks associated with China are similar to the "Emerging Markets Risk" and "Geopolitical Risk" described below.

Such risks include:

- (i) currency devaluations and other currency exchange rate fluctuations;
- (ii) economic, legal, political or social instability and uncertainty;
- (iii) more substantial government involvement in the economy; and
- (iv) an economy that is heavily reliant on particular industries, commodities or trading partners.

In recent years, political tensions within Hong Kong have risen. Such increased political tensions could have potential impacts on the political and legal structures in Hong Kong. They could also affect investor and business confidence in Hong Kong which in turn could affect markets and business results.

In addition, the ongoing geopolitical tensions between China and other countries including the United States may result in tariffs, investment restrictions and have adverse impacts on affected companies and investments. For example, the United States has imposed tariffs and other trade barriers on Chinese exports, has restricted sales of certain categories of goods to China, and has established barriers to investments in China. Trade disputes may adversely affect the economies of the United States and its trading partners, as well as companies directly or indirectly affected and financial markets generally.

Accordingly, investors should be aware that these risks, ongoing geopolitical tensions (including trade disputes) and possible future restrictions could limit the Fund's opportunities for investment, affect the investments' performance, require the sale of investments at a loss and/or make them difficult to sell.

Funds investing in China may be subject to other specific risks such as "China Bond Connect Risk" and "Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk" described below.

## **Dilution Adjustment**

In certain circumstances a dilution adjustment may be made on the purchase or sale of Shares. In the case of purchases this will reduce the number of Shares acquired, and in the case of sales this will reduce the proceeds. Where a dilution adjustment is not made, existing investors in the Fund in question may suffer dilution which will constrain capital growth.

# **Effect of Preliminary Charge**

Upon the sale of Shares, particularly in the short term, investors may receive less than the original amount invested. The ACD's preliminary charge (see under the heading "Fees and Charges" in this Prospectus) is deducted from an investment at the outset and an equivalent rise in the value of the Shares is required before the original investment can be recovered.

## **Equity Risk**

The value of all Funds that invest in equity and equity related securities will be affected by economic, political, market, and issuer specific changes. Additionally, different industries, financial markets, and securities can react differently to these changes. Such fluctuations in a Fund's value are often exacerbated in the short term as well. The risk that one or more companies in a Fund's portfolio will fall, or fail to rise, can adversely affect the overall portfolio performance in any given period. To gain the full benefits of equity investing, a long-term view is usually advised.

# **Exchange Rate Risk**

Movements in exchange rates may cause rises or falls in the value of a Fund's Shares and any assets held by a Fund which are denominated in a different currency to that of the base currency of a Fund. (Funds whose strategy includes currency hedging will seek to minimise or remove this risk).

The value of these investments may decrease if the currency in which they are traded falls relative to a Fund's (or the Class') base currency. As a result, currency fluctuations may indirectly affect the value of a Fund's investments and, in turn, may also adversely affect the value of Shares held by a Shareholder.

Save for Hedged Share Classes, Funds are not required to hedge their foreign currency risk (although they may do so). To the extent that a Fund does not hedge its foreign currency risk, the value of that Fund's assets and income could be adversely affected by currency exchange rate movements.

## **Fixed Income Securities Risk**

Government fixed income securities are mainly sensitive to changes in macro policy and associated interest rate trends, and additionally in the case of bonds issued by Governments in emerging markets factors such as political and economic instability, social unrest and potentially default. In addition to being affected by the general economic climate, bonds issued by companies can also be affected by events specific to the company itself or the industry sector in which it operates.

## **Geopolitical Risk**

Geopolitical risk refers to the potential for disrupting economies or financial markets, affecting the liquidity and/or performance of investments, limiting opportunities for investment and/or requiring the sale of investments at a loss due to political events or instability in a country or region. These events can include wars, terrorism, political upheaval, changes in government policies and international conflicts (including trade disputes).

# **Inflation Risk**

Inflation can affect the real value of a Shareholder's savings and investments which may reduce the buying power of the money they have saved and their investments.

#### **Collective Investment Schemes Risk**

Each Fund may invest in other regulated collective investment schemes (which may include exchange traded funds ("ETFs") and closed-end funds). As an investor in another collective investment scheme, a Fund will bear, along with the other investors, its portion of the expenses of the other collective investment scheme, including management, performance and/or other fees. These fees will be in addition to the management fees and other expenses which a Fund bears directly with its own operations. As the Fund's allocations among the Collective Investment Schemes change from time to time, or to the extent that the expense ratios of the underlying funds change, the expenses borne by the Fund may increase or decrease.

would have invested directly in the Collective Investment Schemes' underlying securities. These risks include the possibility that an unregistered fund or an ETF may experience a lack of liquidity that can result in greater volatility than its underlying securities. An ETF or a closed-end fund may trade at a premium or discount to its net asset value, as shares of such a Collective Investment Scheme are bought and sold on exchanges based on market values and not at the Collective Investment Scheme's net asset value. In addition, the determination of Net Asset Value of the Shares of any particular Collective Investment Scheme held by a Fund may be suspended. In the event this were to happen, it could impede the ability of a Fund to meet a redemption request.

Investors should be aware of the specific features of Collective Investment Funds and the consequences of investing in Collective Investment Schemes. Although the Company will seek to monitor investments and trading activities of the Collective Investment Schemes to which the Fund's assets will be allocated, investment decisions are made at the level of such Collective Investment Scheme and it is possible that the managers of such Collective Investment Scheme will take positions or engage in transactions in the same securities or in issues of the same asset class, industry, country or currency at the same time. Consequently there is a possibility that one Collective Investment Scheme may purchase an asset at about the same time as another Collective Investment Scheme may sell it.

There can be no assurance that the selection of the managers of Collective Investment Schemes will result in an effective diversification of investment styles and that positions taken by the underlying Collective Investment Schemes will always be consistent. In addition, neither a Fund nor its Investment Manager will generally be part of the valuation process of the Collective Investment Scheme; nor will they have any rights to appoint or dismiss the persons responsible for valuations of the Collective Investment Schemes. There is a risk that the portfolio of the Collective Investment Schemes may from time to time be overvalued or undervalued. In addition, a Collective Investment Scheme may not apply the same valuation methodology applied to a Fund or any other Collective Investment Scheme evaluating their respective portfolios.

#### Liabilities of the Company and the Funds

Under the OEIC Regulations, each Fund is a segregated portfolio of assets and those assets can only be used to meet the liabilities of, or claims against, that Fund. Whilst the provisions of the OEIC Regulations provide for segregated liability between Funds, the concept of segregated liability is relatively new. Accordingly, where claims are brought by local creditors in foreign courts or under foreign law contracts, it is not yet known whether a foreign court would give effect to the segregated liability and cross-investment provisions contained in regulations 11A and 11B of the OEIC Regulations. Therefore, it is not possible to be certain that the assets of a Fund will always be completely insulated from the liabilities of another Fund of the Company in every circumstance.

Shareholders are not however liable for the debts of the Company. A Shareholder is not obliged to make any further payment to the Company after they has paid the purchase price of the Shares.

#### **Past Performance**

Past performance is not a guide to the future performance of a Fund.

#### Stock Lending Risk

The Company may lend each Fund's assets to specialised banks, credit institutions and other financial institutions of high standing, or through recognised clearing institutions such as Clearstream or Euroclear. Loans will be secured continuously by collateral which at the conclusion of the lending agreement, must be at least equal to the value of the global valuation of the assets of each Fund lent.

The Company has the power to undertake stock lending but, as at the date of this prospectus, does not do so.

# **Tax Changes**

Exemptions, thresholds and rates of tax are subject to change by the Government at any time. Please note that the tax treatment of investors depends on their individual circumstances and may be subject to change in the future.

#### SPECIFIC RISK FACTORS

Whilst the portfolio composition of each Fund is required to comply with the broad statutory limits in the FCA Rules, risk-concentration may occur in regard of certain tighter asset classes, economic and geographic sectors or according to a specific investment strategy. An investor should therefore pay close attention to the investment strategy and specific risks of each Fund.

# **Charges to Capital Risk**

FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund, FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) may charge some or all of their fees and

expenses to the Fund's capital account. Where charges (i.e. fees and expenses) are taken from capital this may increase the amount of income (which may be taxable) available for accumulation or distribution to Shareholders in these Funds but may constrain capital growth.

#### **China Bond Connect Risk**

Bond Connect is a mutual market access scheme allowing overseas investors to trade in bonds circulated on the China Interbank Bond Market ("CIBM") through connection between the Mainland and Hong Kong financial infrastructure institutions without quota limitations. Trading through Bond Connect can only be undertaken on days when both the Mainland and Hong Kong markets are open and when banks in both markets are open on the corresponding settlement days. Accordingly Funds that trade in this way may not be able to buy or sell at the desired time or price.

The Northbound Trading link commenced on 3 July 2017 with transactions being made possible through mutual access arrangements in respect of trading, custody and settlement. It involves China Foreign Exchange Trading System, China Central Depository & Clearing Co, Shanghai Clearing House, Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing plus the Central Moneymarkets Unit ("CMU"). A delivery versus payment ("DvP") settlement system for transactions through the Bond Connect scheme was implemented in August 2018 thereby reducing settlement risk.

Bonds traded through Bond Connect by foreign investors are held in the name of CMU as the nominee holder.

The ultimate foreign eligible investors are the beneficial owners of the relevant CIBM bonds and may exercise their rights against the bond issuer through CMU as the nominee holder. The nominee holder may exercise its creditor rights and bring actions against bond issuers in Chinese courts. Chinese law may however not recognise beneficial ownership of the bonds and, in the event of a default by the CMU, it may not be possible for the bonds held by these Funds to be recovered.

CIBM securities traded via the Bond Connect can be subject to risks including but not limited to risk of default from counterparties, settlement risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, regulatory risks, PRC tax risk and reputational risk. The Bond Connect encompasses recently developed trading systems. There can be no assurance that those systems will function correctly or will not be subject to further changes or adaptation. The relevant rules and regulations may be subject to change which may have potential retrospective effect. If the relevant mainland Chinese authorities suspend account opening or trading on the CIBM, the Funds' ability to invest in the CIBM will be adversely affected. In such event, the Funds' ability to achieve its investment objective may be negatively affected.

Transactions in Bond Connect will not be covered by the Investor Compensation Scheme in Hong Kong nor the equivalent scheme in Mainland China.

There is no specific written guidance by the Mainland China tax authorities on the treatment of income tax and other tax categories payable in respect of trading in the CIBM by eligible foreign institutional investors via the Bond Connect.

Securities traded through the Bond Connect may be subject to a range of reputational risks such as risks borne by companies being subject to cyber abuses, sanctions concerns and negative accusations over labour and human rights, environmental degradation, ties to high-risk countries and entities overseas.

## **Credit-Linked Securities Risk**

Credit-linked securities are debt securities that represent an interest in a pool of, or are otherwise collateralised by one or more corporate debt obligations or credit default swaps incorporated debt or bank loan obligations. Such debt obligations may represent the obligations of one or more corporate issuers. The Fund has the right to receive periodic interest payments from the issuer of the credit-linked security (usually the seller of the underlying credit default swap(s)) at an agreed-upon interest rate, and a return of principal at the maturity date.

The Fund bears the risk of loss of its principal investment, and the periodic interest payments expected to be received for the duration of its investment in the credit-linked security, in the event that one or more of the debt obligations underlying the credit default swaps go into default or otherwise become non-performing. Upon the occurrence of such a credit event (including bankruptcy, failure to timely pay interest or principal, or a restructuring), the Fund affected will generally reduce the principal balance of the related credit-linked security by the Fund's pro rata interest in the par amount of the defaulted underlying debt obligation in exchange for the actual value of the defaulted underlying obligation or the defaulted underlying obligation itself, resulting in a loss of a portion of the Fund's investment. Thereafter, interest on the credit-linked security will accrue on a smaller principal balance and a smaller principal balance will be returned at maturity. To the extent a credit-linked security represents an interest in underlying obligations of a single corporate or other issuer, a credit event with respect to such issuer presents greater risk of loss to a Fund than if the credit-linked security represented an interest in underlying obligations of multiple issuers.

In addition, the Fund bears the risk that the issuer of the credit-linked security will default or become bankrupt. In such an event, the Fund may have difficulty being repaid, or fail to be repaid, the principal amount of its investment and the remaining periodic interest payments thereon.

An investment in credit-linked securities also involves reliance on the counterparty to the credit default swap entered into with the issuer of the credit-linked security to make periodic payments to the issuer under the terms of the swap. Any delay or cessation in the making of such payments may be expected in certain instances to result in delays or reductions in payments to the Fund as an investor in such credit-linked securities. Additionally, credit-linked securities are typically structured as limited recourse obligations of the issuer of such securities such that the securities issued will usually be obligations solely of the issuer and will not be obligations or responsibilities of any other person.

Most credit-linked securities are structured as US Rule 144A securities so that they may be freely traded among institutional buyers. A Fund will generally only purchase credit-linked securities, which are determined to be liquid in accordance with the Fund's liquidity guidelines. However, the market for credit-linked securities may suddenly become illiquid. The other parties to the transaction may be the only investors with sufficient understanding of the derivative to be interested in bidding for it. Changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in the prices for credit-linked securities. In certain cases, a market price for a credit-linked security may not be available or may not be reliable, and the Fund could experience difficulty in selling such security at a price the Investment Manager believes is fair.

The value of a credit-linked security will typically increase or decrease with any change in value of the underlying debt obligations, if any, held by the issuer and the credit default swap. Further, in cases where the credit-linked security is structured such that the payments to the Fund are based on amounts received in respect of, or the value of performance of, any underlying debt obligations specified in the terms of the relevant credit default swap, fluctuations in the value of such obligation may affect the value of the credit-linked security.

#### **Credit Risk**

Credit risk, a fundamental risk relating to all fixed income securities as well as money market instruments, is the chance that an issuer will fail to make principal and interest payments when due. Issuers with higher credit risk typically offer higher yields for this added risk. Conversely, issuers with lower credit risk typically offer lower yields. Generally, government securities are considered to be the safest in terms of credit risk, while corporate debt, especially those with poorer credit ratings, have the highest credit risk. Changes in the financial condition of an issuer, changes in economic and political conditions in general, or changes in economic and political conditions specific to an issuer, are all factors that may have an adverse impact on an issuer's credit quality and security values.

#### **Defaulted Debt Securities Risk**

Some Funds may invest in debt securities on which the issuer is not currently making interest payments (defaulted debt securities). These Funds may buy defaulted debt securities if, in the opinion of the Investment Manager, it appears likely that the issuer may resume interest payments or other advantageous developments appear likely in the near future. These securities may become illiquid.

The risk of loss due to default may also be considerably greater with lower-quality securities because they are generally unsecured and are often subordinated to other creditors of the issuer. If the issuer of a security in a Fund's portfolio defaults, the Fund may have unrealised losses on the security, which may lower the Fund's net asset value per Share. Defaulted securities tend to lose much of their value before they default. Thus, the Fund's net asset value per Share may be adversely affected before an issuer defaults. In addition, the Fund may incur additional expenses if it must try to recover principal or interest payments on a defaulted security. Included among the issuers of debt securities or obligations in which the Company may invest are entities organised and operated solely for the purpose of restructuring the investment characteristics of various securities or obligations. These entities may be organised by investment banking firms, which receive fees in connection with establishing each entity and arranging for the placement of its securities.

#### **Derivative Risk**

Under the FCA Rules, derivatives can be used for the purposes of efficient portfolio management as well as to meet the investment objective of the Funds. Derivatives can be exchange traded or Over the Counter (OTC) derivatives.

Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund, FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund, FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) are currently the only Funds that may use derivatives in pursuit of their investment objectives. Other Funds may do so, subject to prior Shareholder notification.

The use of derivative instruments and hedging transactions may or may not achieve their intended objective and involve special risks.

The Funds may make use of efficient portfolio management ("EPM") techniques to reduce risk and/or costs in

the Funds and to produce additional capital or income in the Funds. Techniques used by a Fund may include using derivatives for hedging, using derivatives to acquire an asset at lower cost or to take advantage of pricing imperfections, and using derivatives for the purpose of receiving a premium for the writing of covered call or put options. As an extension of efficient portfolio management, the Depositary may, at the request of the ACD, enter into stock lending transactions and repo contracts. See paragraphs 28 and 29 in Appendix 2 for more information on efficient portfolio management.

It is not intended that using derivatives for EPM will increase the volatility of the Funds and indeed EPM is intended to reduce volatility. In adverse situations, however, a Fund's use of derivatives may become ineffective in hedging or EPM and a Fund may suffer significant loss as a result. A Fund's ability to use EPM strategies may be limited by market conditions, regulatory limits and tax considerations.

Any income or capital generated by EPM techniques will be paid to the relevant Fund.

Performance and value of derivative instruments depend on the performance or value of the underlying asset. Derivative instruments involve cost, may be volatile, and may involve a small investment relative to the risk assumed. Their successful use may depend on the ACD and/or the Investment Manager's ability to predict market movements. Risks include delivery failure, default by another party or the inability to close out a position because the trading market becomes illiquid. Some derivative instruments are particularly sensitive to changes in interest rates. The risk of loss to a Fund for a swap transaction on a net basis depends on which party is obliged to pay the net amount to the other party.

If the counterparty is obliged to pay the net amount to the Fund, the risk of loss to the Fund is the loss of the entire amount that the Fund is entitled to receive; if the Fund is obliged to pay the net amount, the Fund's risk of loss is limited to the net amount due. OTC derivative instruments involve a higher degree of risks as OTC markets are less liquid and regulated.

The ACD has thus drafted a derivative risk management process in conjunction with the Depositary and which has been filed with the FCA. This document describes the appropriate controls that are in place to oversee and manage derivative exposure. Furthermore, it is the ACD's intention that derivatives will only be used when it is in the best interests of the relevant Fund and only in a manner that is reasonably likely to enhance the Fund's returns.

The ACD may use one or more separate counterparties to undertake derivative transactions on behalf of these Funds and may be required to pledge collateral paid from within the assets of the relevant Fund to secure such contracts. The Company is only permitted to enter into derivative instruments for the Funds with counterparties included on the "approved list" maintained by the ACD in conjunction with the counterparty credit risk policy. This control reduces any unacceptable counterparty credit risk exposure.

# **Control and Monitoring Risk**

Derivative products are highly specialised instruments that require investment techniques and risk analysis which are different from those associated with equity and fixed income securities. The use of derivative techniques requires an understanding not only of the underlying assets of the derivative but also of the derivative itself, without the benefit of observing the performance of the derivative under all possible market conditions. In particular, the use and complexity of derivatives require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered into, the ability to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Funds and the ability to forecast the relative price, interest rate or currency rate movements correctly.

#### **Counterparty Risk**

The Funds may enter into transactions in OTC markets, which will expose the Funds to the credit risk of its counterparties and their ability to satisfy the terms of such contracts. A Fund may be required to pledge or transfer collateral paid from within the assets of the relevant Fund to secure such contracts. In the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency of a counterparty, the Funds could experience delays in liquidating the position and significant losses, including the collateral pledged, declines in the value of investment during the period in which a Fund seeks to enforce its rights, inability to realise any gains on its investment during such period and fees and expenses incurred in enforcing its rights. There is also a possibility that the above agreements and derivative techniques are terminated due, for instance, to bankruptcy, supervening illegality or change in the tax or accounting laws relative to those at the time the agreement was originated. The ACD or the Investment Manager measures the credit worthiness of counterparties as part of the risk management process. The counterparties of these transactions will be highly rated financial institutions specialising in these types of transactions and approved by the Investment Manager.

#### **Covered Call Option Risk**

Where a Fund writes a covered call option which can be settled in cash but does not own the asset to which the option relates, it may instead hold cash, liquid debt instruments or other highly liquid assets having regard to their correlation with the asset to which the option relates as cover for the call option. In such circumstances, the Fund may be required to close out derivative positions or sell other assets to generate cash or the funds to buy additional liquid debt instruments or other highly liquid assets in order to ensure that the Fund has sufficient cover for the call options.

## **Liquidity Risk Related to Derivatives**

Liquidity risk exists when a particular instrument is difficult to purchase or sell. If a derivative transaction is particularly large or if the relevant market is illiquid, it may not be possible to initiate a transaction or liquidate a position at an advantageous price (however, the Funds will only enter into OTC derivatives if these are allowed to liquidate such transactions, at any time, at fair value).

#### Other Risks

Other risks in using derivatives include the risk of differing valuations of derivatives arising out of different permitted valuation methods and the inability of derivatives to correlate perfectly with underlying securities, rates and indices. Many derivatives, in particular OTC derivatives, are complex and often valued subjectively and the valuation can only be provided by a limited number of market professionals which often are acting as counterparties to the transaction to be valued. Inaccurate valuations can result in increased cash payment requirements to counterparties or a loss of value to the Funds. However, this risk is limited as the valuation method used to value OTC derivatives must be verifiable by an independent auditor.

Derivatives do not always closely track the value of the underlying securities, rates or indices they are designed to track.

# **Emerging Markets Risk**

Some Funds may invest in emerging market countries. Investments in certain emerging markets in which the Funds may invest entail specific risk factors to which investors in more developed markets might not be otherwise exposed. Such risks include:

- (i) currency devaluations and other currency exchange rate fluctuations;
- (ii) political uncertainty and instability;
- (iii) more substantial government involvement in the economy;
- (iv) higher rates of inflation;
- (v) less government supervision and regulation of the securities markets, and participants in those markets;
- (vi) controls on foreign investment and limitations on repatriation of invested capital and on an investor's ability to exchange local currencies for convertible currencies;
- (vii) greater price volatility, substantially less liquidity and significantly smaller market capitalisation of securities markets; and
- (viii) custody and settlement systems which may be less developed. In addition, accounting, auditing and reporting standards, practices and disclosure requirements applicable in some less developed markets may differ from those in more developed markets in that less information is available to investors and such information may be out of date.

Accordingly, investors should be aware that investments in emerging market countries are more speculative in nature and are subject to greater market fluctuations and risk of loss than investments in more developed countries. An investment in a Fund which invests in emerging market countries should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors. For the avoidance of doubt, investments in emerging markets include investments in Russia. You should be aware that although the registrar companies which provide share registration services to issuers of Russian securities are appropriately licensed in Russia, they may not be subject to the tight controls as in more developed countries. This may mean that the Company may not secure good title to the Russian securities held by the Depositary.

#### **Frontier Markets Risk**

Investments in emerging market countries involve risks as set out in the section "Emerging Markets Risks" above. Investments in frontier markets involve risks similar to investments in emerging markets but to a greater extent since frontier markets are even smaller, less developed, and less accessible than other emerging markets. Frontier markets may also experience greater political and economic instability and may have less transparency, less ethical practices, and weaker corporate governance compared to other emerging markets and the relevant Fund/investors may be adversely impacted. Such markets are also more likely to have investment and repatriation restrictions, exchange controls and less developed custodial and settlement systems than other emerging markets. The countries that comprise frontier markets include the lesser developed countries located in Africa, Asia, the Middle East, Eastern Europe and Latin America. As a result, the relevant Fund/investors may be adversely impacted.

#### **Growth Stocks Risk**

Funds investing in growth stocks can be more volatile and may react differently to economic, political, market and issuer specific developments than the overall market. Historically, the prices of growth stocks have been more volatile than other securities, especially, over short-term periods of time. Growth stocks may also be more expensive, relative to their earnings, than the market in general. As such, growth stocks can experience greater volatility in reaction to changes in earnings growth.

## Hedged Shares – Hedging Risk (applicable to H1, H2 and H3 Shares)

The Funds may implement currency hedging strategies with regards to Hedged Share Classes as more fully described under "The Characteristics of Shares in the Funds."

If investors do not invest in a Hedged Share Class, investors are not generally expected to be affected by the associated currency hedging strategies for that Class, although such investors should also refer to the risk factor entitled "Unhedged Shares – Impact of Hedging Elsewhere in a Fund", below.

Hedged Share Classes are designed to reduce the currency risk for investors in the relevant Hedged Share Class, arising from such investors being exposed to different currencies, whether at portfolio, strategy, or share class level, depending on the terms of the Hedged Share Class in question. However, there is no guarantee that attempts to hedge currency risk will be successful and no hedging strategy can eliminate currency risk entirely. Should a hedging strategy be incomplete or unsuccessful, the value of that Fund's assets and income can remain vulnerable to fluctuations in currency exchange rate movements. The performance of a Hedged Share Class may diverge from the performance of the underlying portfolio for various reasons, such as but not limited to where there are large subscriptions or redemptions in a Class, where a Hedged Share Class is over- or under- hedged, or as a result of additional costs involved in implementing a hedging strategy.

Investors should be aware that whilst hedging transactions are intended to mitigate the effect of currency risk, there may be circumstances in which a hedging transaction may reduce currency gains that would otherwise arise in the valuation of the relevant Fund and which shareholders in un-hedged Share Classes benefit from.

Any financial instruments used to implement such hedging strategies shall be assets and/or liabilities of the relevant Fund as a whole but, in effect, will be attributable to the relevant Hedged Share Class only. Any gains/losses on, and the costs of, the relevant financial instruments used to implement a hedging strategy will accrue solely to such Hedged Share Class.

As a result, investors in Hedged Share Classes may be exposed to fluctuations in the net asset value per Share reflecting the gains/losses on and the costs of the hedging transactions and the relevant financial instruments.

Although the ACD reviews the hedging position in respect of each Hedged Share Class on every Dealing Day adjustments will typically take place on the next Business Day. In the case of a net investment flow to or from a Hedged Share Class, for example, the hedging strategies may not be accurately adjusted and reflected in the net asset value of the said Class until the following or a subsequent Business Day following the Valuation Day on which the instruction was accepted.

Furthermore, any currency exposure of a Hedged Share Class may not be combined with or offset against that of any other Share Class of the relevant Fund. The currency exposure of the assets attributable to a Hedged Share Class may not be allocated to other Classes.

Fund performance could be very different from one Share Class to another within the same Fund. More specifically, where a Fund whose investment strategy is based on a currency ("Currency of Return") different from the Funds' base currency and who offers Hedged Shares and un-hedged Shares, investors who wish to invest in the un-hedged Shares must be aware that total returns for the un-hedged Share Class will be maximised in the Currency of Return and restated into the Fund's base currency at the prevailing rate. As a result, actual returns expressed in the Fund's base currency will vary over time in accordance with the fluctuations of the exchange rate between the Currency of Return and the Fund's base currency.

# Hedging Risk (Specific to H3 Shares in FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund [no longer available for investment])

The FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund is managed in a style intended to maximise return in USD terms, notwithstanding the fact that the base currency of the Fund is in GBP. The currency hedging activities within the Fund are done from the perspective of a USD-oriented investor. The returns of the unhedged Share Classes of the Fund, therefore, will reflect not only the USD-oriented investment strategy but also the translation of market values for that strategy into GBP.

The Fund also offers H3 Share Classes, which include an operational hedge to USD that seeks to minimize volatility (after hedging costs) associated with the GBP/USD exchange rate, and allow the Fund's H3 Share Classes to deliver broadly USD equivalent returns even though the H3 Share Classes are still denominated in GBP. However, there is no guarantee that attempts to hedge currency risk and replicate USD equivalent returns will be successful, and no hedging strategy can eliminate currency risk entirely. In particular, matching the

notional amounts related to the H3 Share Class hedging strategy with the pro-rata portion of the total net assets of the Fund allocated to the H3 Share Classes may be challenging, particularly during periods when total net assets are changing suddenly due either to market action or redemption and subscription activity. Accordingly, there is no guarantee that the hedging strategy applied to H3 Share Classes will be successful, and no hedging strategy is perfect.

# Unhedged Shares - Impact of Hedging Elsewhere in a Fund

The costs and expenses related to, and the gains/losses of, currency hedging activities in Hedged Share Classes will be attributable solely to the relevant Hedged Share Class and will not be allocated to unhedged Share Classes within the same Fund.

However, as there is no legal segregation of assets and liabilities between different Share Classes in the same Fund, there is a risk that, under certain circumstances, hedging transactions related to Hedged Share Classes could have an adverse impact on other un-hedged Share Classes in the same Fund.

# **High Yield Securities**

To the extent a Fund invests in medium or low-rated securities and unrated securities of comparable quality, the Fund may realise a higher current yield than the yield offered by higher-rated securities, but investment in such securities involves greater volatility of price and risk of loss of income and principal, including the probability of default by or bankruptcy of the issuers of such securities. Low-rated and comparable unrated securities (collectively referred to as "low-rated" securities) likely have quality and protective characteristics that, in the judgment of a rating organisation, are outweighed by large uncertainties or major risk exposures to adverse conditions, and are predominantly speculative with respect to an issuer's capacity to pay interest and repay principal in accordance with the terms of the obligation. Although the prices of low-rated securities are generally less sensitive to interest rate changes than are higher-rated securities, the prices of low-rated securities may be more sensitive to adverse economic changes and developments regarding the individual issuer.

When economic conditions appear to be deteriorating, medium or low-rated securities may decline in value due to heightened concern over credit quality, regardless of the prevailing interest rates. Investors should carefully consider the relative risks of investing in high yield securities and understand that such securities are not generally meant for short-term investing.

Adverse economic developments can disrupt the market for low-rated securities, and severely affect the ability of issuers, especially highly leveraged issuers, to service their debt obligations or to repay their obligations upon maturity, which may lead to a higher incidence of default on such securities. Low-rated securities are especially affected by adverse changes in the industries in which the issuers are engaged and by changes in the financial condition of the issuers.

Highly leveraged issuers may also experience financial stress during periods of rising interest rates. In addition, the secondary market for low-rated securities, which is concentrated in relatively few market makers, may not be as liquid as the secondary market for more highly rated securities. As a result, a Fund could find it more difficult to sell these securities or may be able to sell the securities only at prices lower than if such securities were widely traded. Therefore, prices realised upon the sale of such low- rated securities, under these circumstances, may be less than the prices used in calculating the Fund's net asset value.

Low-rated securities also present risks based on payment expectations. If an issuer calls an obligation for redemption, the Fund may have to replace the security with a lower yielding security, resulting in a decreased return for investors. If the Fund experiences unexpected net redemptions, it may be forced to sell its higher-rated securities, resulting in a decline in the overall credit quality of the Fund's investment portfolio and increasing the exposure of the Fund to the risks of low-rated securities.

Changes in economic conditions or developments regarding individual issuers of medium or low-rated securities are more likely to cause price volatility and weaken the capacity of such securities to make principal and interest payments than is the case for higher grade debt securities. Investment in such lower rated debt securities may limit a Fund's ability to sell such securities at fair value. Judgment plays a greater role in pricing such securities than in the case of securities having more active markets. Adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may also decrease the values and liquidity of lower rated debt securities, especially in a thinly traded market.

#### Infrastructure Risk

Infrastructure companies may be subject to a variety of factors that may adversely affect their business or operations, including high interest costs in connection with capital construction programs, high leverage, costs associated with environmental and other regulations, the effects of economic slowdown, surplus capacity, increased competition from other providers of services, uncertainties concerning the availability of fuel at reasonable prices, the effects of energy conservation policies and other factors.

Where investment is made in new infrastructure projects during the construction phase, some residual risk will

remain that the project will not be completed within budget, within the agreed timeframe or to the agreed specifications. The operations of infrastructure projects are exposed to unplanned interruptions caused by significant catastrophic events, such as cyclones, earthquakes, landslides, floods, explosion, fire, terrorist attack, major plant breakdown, pipeline or electricity line rupture or other disaster. Operational disruption, as well as supply disruption, could adversely impact the cashflows available from these assets.

#### **Interest Rate Risk**

A fixed income security's value will generally increase when interest rates fall and decrease when interest rates rise. Interest rate risk is the chance that such movements in interest rates will negatively affect the net asset value of a Fund which invests in such securities. Fixed income securities with longer-term maturities tend to be more sensitive to interest rate changes than shorter-term securities. As a result, longer-term securities tend to offer higher yields for this added risk. While changes in interest rates may affect a Fund's interest income, such changes may positively or negatively affect the value of the Fund's Shares on a daily basis.

## Leverage Risk

While cash borrowing for investment purposes (traditional leveraging) is not permitted for UCITS funds, some leverage exposure may be obtained through the use of financial derivative instruments. Some Funds may have a high level of leverage obtained through financial derivative instruments regardless of their use, i.e. for investment purposes or hedging purposes. As an example, financial derivative instruments used to reduce risk also contribute to an increase of the level of leverage of a given Fund when expressed in notional terms. Certain financial derivative instruments have the potential for a high degree of leverage regardless of the size of the initial investment. The use of leverage may cause a Fund to liquidate portfolio positions to satisfy its obligations or to meet asset segregation requirements when it may not be advantageous to do so. As a result, a relatively small price movement in a derivative contract may result in substantial losses to the relevant Fund.

#### **LIBOR Transition**

LIBOR (London Inter-bank Offered Rate) is intended to reflect the interest rate that wholesale banks expect to pay each other to borrow money (without providing security). LIBOR is widely used in financial products, including some of the Funds' investments, as a reference to determine an amount to be paid. From the end of 2021, the banks that contribute to the setting of LIBOR will no longer be required to do so, and LIBOR is expected to become obsolete. It is expected that a different rate, SONIA, will replace LIBOR over time.

Franklin Templeton have set up a programme and working group to examine the potential impact of the transition from LIBOR on its products, including the Funds. This working group monitors market and regulatory developments in order to prepare the Funds for an orderly transition and to ensure, in so far as is possible, that any related disruption is minimised. As part of the programme, each of Franklin Templeton's business functions has completed an impact assessment for the proposed transition with a view to ensuring that all related plans are carried out in good time and in the best interests of clients.

# **Liquidity Risk**

Liquidity risk takes two forms: asset side liquidity risk and liability side liquidity risk. Asset side liquidity risk refers to the inability of a Fund to sell a security or position at its quoted price or market value due to such factors as a sudden change in the perceived value or credit worthiness of the position, or due to adverse market conditions generally. Liability side liquidity risk refers to the inability of a Fund to meet a redemption request, due to the inability of the Fund to sell securities or positions in order to raise sufficient cash to meet the redemption request.

Markets where the Fund's securities are traded could also experience such adverse conditions as to cause exchanges to suspend trading activities. Reduced liquidity due to these factors may have an adverse impact on the Net Asset Value of the Fund and, as noted, on the ability of the Fund to meet redemption requests in a timely manner.

Certain securities are illiquid due to a limited trading market, financial weakness of the issuer, legal or contractual restrictions on resale or transfer, or that are otherwise illiquid in the sense that they cannot be sold within seven days at approximately the price at which the Fund values them. Securities that are illiquid involve greater risk than securities with more liquid markets. Market quotations for such securities may be volatile and/or subject to large spreads between bid and ask prices. Illiquidity may have an adverse impact on market price and the Fund's ability to sell particular securities when necessary to meet the Fund's liquidity needs or in response to a specific economic event.

### Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities Risk

Mortgage-backed securities differ from conventional debt securities because the principal is paid back over the life of the security rather than at maturity. The Fund may receive unscheduled prepayments of the principal before the security's maturity date due to voluntary prepayments, refinancing or foreclosure on the underlying mortgage loans. To the Fund this means a loss of anticipated interest, and a portion of its principal investment

represented by any premium the Fund may have paid. Mortgage prepayments generally increase when interest rates fall.

Mortgage-backed securities also are subject to extension risk. An unexpected rise in interest rates could reduce the rate of prepayments on mortgage-backed securities and extend their life. This could cause the price of the mortgage-backed securities to be more sensitive to interest rate changes. Issuers of asset-backed securities may have limited ability to enforce the security interest in the underlying assets, and credit enhancements provided to support the securities, if any, may be inadequate to protect investors in the event of default. Like mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities are subject to prepayment and extension risks.

# Mortgage Dollar Roll Risk

Some Funds may engage in mortgage dollar roll transactions. In a mortgage dollar roll, a Fund sells mortgage-backed securities for delivery to the counterparty in the current month and simultaneously contracts to repurchase substantially similar (name, type, coupon, and maturity) securities on a specified future date.

During the period between the sale and repurchase (the "roll period"), the Fund foregoes principal and interest paid on the mortgage-backed securities. The Fund is compensated by the difference between the current sales price and the lower forward price for the future purchase (often referred to as the "drop"), as well as by the interest earned on the cash proceeds of the initial sale. The Fund could suffer a loss if the contracting party fails to perform the future transaction and the Fund is therefore unable to buy back the mortgage-backed securities it initially sold.

Mortgage dollar rolls will be entered into only with high quality government securities dealers and member banks of the US Federal Reserve System.

Mortgage dollar rolls transactions may, due to the deemed borrowing position involved, increase the Fund's overall investment exposure and result in losses. Mortgage dollar rolls will be considered borrowings for the purposes of the Fund's borrowing limitations unless the Fund segregates on its books an offsetting cash position or a position of liquid securities of equivalent value.

# Non-Regulated Markets Risk

Some Funds may invest in securities of issuers in countries whose markets do not qualify as regulated markets due to their economic, legal or regulatory structure, and therefore these Funds may not invest more than 10% of their net assets in such securities.

#### Overseas markets risk

For those Funds which invest outside the United Kingdom there could be risks associated with the markets in which investments could be made, which could include dealing difficulties, settlements and custody practices.

#### **Portfolio Concentration Risk**

The performance of a Fund which typically invests in relatively few holdings will at times be more influenced by fluctuations in the value of individual securities and as such may be more volatile than a Fund with a greater number of securities.

#### **Pre-Payment Risk**

Certain fixed income securities give an issuer the right to buy back its securities, before their maturity date, in periods of declining interest rates. The possibility of such "pre-payment risk" may force the Fund to reinvest the proceeds of such investments in securities offering lower yields, thereby reducing the Fund's interest income.

## **Restructuring Companies Risk**

Some Funds may also invest in the securities of companies involved in mergers, consolidations, liquidations and reorganisations or as to which there exist tender or exchange offers, and may participate in such transactions; they may also purchase indebtedness and participations therein, both secured and unsecured, of debtor companies engaged in reorganisation or financial restructuring. Such investments also involve greater credit risks.

# Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Risk

Certain Funds may invest and have direct access to certain eligible China A-Shares via the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and/or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (together referred to as "Stock Connect"). Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect is a securities trading and clearing links programme developed by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEx"), Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") and China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited ("ChinaClear"). Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect is a securities trading and clearing links programme developed by HKEx, Shenzhen Stock Exchange ("SZSE") and ChinaClear. The aim of Stock Connect is to achieve mutual stock market access between mainland China and Hong Kong.

Stock Connect comprises two Northbound Trading Links, one between SSE and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ("SEHK"), and the other between SZSE and SEHK. Stock Connect will allow foreign investors to place

orders to trade eligible China A Shares listed on the SSE (the "SSE Securities") or on the SZSE ("SZSE Securities") (the SSE Securities and the SZSE Securities shall collectively be referred to as the "Stock Connect Securities") through their Hong Kong based brokers.

The SSE Securities include all the constituent stocks from time to time of the SSE 180 Index and SSE 380 Index, and all the SSE-listed China A-Shares that are not included as constituent stocks of the relevant indices but which have corresponding H-Shares listed on the SEHK, except (i) those SSE-listed shares which are not traded in Renminbi (RMB) and (ii) those SSE-listed shares which are included in the "risk alert board". The list of eligible securities may be changed subject to the review and approval by the relevant mainland China regulators from time to time. The SZSE Securities include all the constituent stocks from time to time of the SZSE Component Index and the SZSE Small/Mid Cap Innovation Index which has a market capitalisation of at least RMB 6 billion, and all the SZSE-listed China A-Shares that are not included as constituent stocks of the relevant indices but which have corresponding H-Shares listed on SEHK, except those SZSE-listed shares (i) which are not quoted and traded in RMB, (ii) which are included in the "risk alert board"; (iii) which have been suspended from listing by the SZSE; and (iv) which are in the pre-delisting period. The list of eligible securities may be changed subject to the review and approval by the relevant mainland China regulators from time to time. Further information about Stock Connect is available online at the website: http://www.hkex.com.hk/eng/market/sec tradinfra/chinaconnect/Documents/Investor Book En.pdf.

In addition to the risks associated with the Chinese market and risks related to investments in RMB, investments through Stock Connect are subject to additional risks, namely, quota limitations, suspension risk, operational risk, restrictions on selling imposed by front-end monitoring, recalling of eligible stocks, clearing and settlement risks, nominee arrangements in holding China A-Shares and regulatory risk.

# **Quota limitations**

The Stock Connect programmes are subject to a daily quota limitation, which may restrict the Funds' ability to invest in Stock Connect Securities through Stock Connect programmes on a timely basis. In particular, once the Northbound daily quota is reduced to zero or the Northbound daily quota is exceeded during the opening call session, new but orders will be rejected (although investors will be allowed to sell their cross-boundary securities regardless of the quota balance).

# Suspension risk

Each of the SEHK, SZSE and SSE reserve the right to suspend trading if necessary to ensure an orderly and fair market and that risks are managed prudently. In the case of a suspension, the Funds' ability to access the mainland China market will be adversely affected.

# Differences in trading day

Stock Connect only operates on days when both mainland China and Hong Kong markets are open for trading and when banks in both markets are open on the corresponding settlement days. Due to the difference in trading days between the mainland China and Hong Kong markets there may be occasions when it is a normal trading day for the mainland China market but not in Hong Kong and accordingly the Funds cannot carry out any Stock Connect Securities trading. The Funds may therefore be subject to a risk of price fluctuations in China A-Shares during periods when Stock Connect is not operational.

#### Restrictions on selling imposed by front-end monitoring

Mainland China regulations require that before an investor sells any share, there should be sufficient shares in the account; otherwise both SSE and SZSE will reject the sell order concerned. SEHK will carry out pre-trade checking on China A-Shares sell orders of its participants (i.e. the stock brokers) to ensure there is no over-selling.

#### Clearing settlement and custody risks

The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKEx and ChinaClear establish the clearing links and each is a participant of each other to facilitate clearing and settlement of cross-boundary trades. As the national central counterparty of the mainland China securities market, ChinaClear operates a comprehensive network of clearing, settlement and stock holding infrastructure. ChinaClear has established a risk management framework and measures that are approved and supervised by the China Securities Regulatory Commission ("CSRC"). The chances of ChinaClear default are considered to be remote.

Should the remote event of ChinaClear default occur and ChinaClear be declared as a defaulter, HKSCC will in good faith, seek recovery of the outstanding stocks and monies from ChinaClear through available legal channels or through ChinaClear's liquidation. In that event, the relevant Fund(s) may suffer delay in the recovery process or may not be able to fully recover its losses from ChinaClear.

The China A-Shares traded through Stock Connect are issued in scripless form, so investors, such as the relevant Funds, will not hold any physical China A-Shares. Hong Kong and overseas investors, such as the Funds, who have acquired Stock Connect Securities through Northbound trading should maintain the Stock Connect Securities with their

brokers' or custodians' stock accounts with the Central Clearing and Settlement System operated by HKSCC for the clearing securities listed or traded on SEHK. Further information on the custody set-up relating to Stock Connect is available upon request at the registered office of the Company.

## Operational risk

Stock Connect provides a new channel for investors from Hong Kong and overseas, such as the Funds, to access the China stock market directly. Stock Connect is premised on the functioning of the operational systems of the relevant market participants. Market participants are able to participate in this programme subject to meeting certain information technology capability, risk management and other requirements as may be specified by the relevant exchange and/or clearing house. It should be appreciated that the securities regimes and legal systems of the two markets differ significantly and in order for the trial programme to operate, market participants may need to address issues arising from the differences on an on-going basis.

Further, the "connectivity" in the Stock Connect programme requires routing of orders across the border. This requires the development of new information technology systems on the part of the SEHK and exchange participants (i.e. a new order routing system ("China Stock Connect System") to be set up by SEHK to which exchange participants need to connect). There is no assurance that the systems of the SEHK and market participants will function properly or will continue to be adapted to changes and developments in both markets. In the event that the relevant systems failed to function properly, trading in both markets through the programme could be disrupted. The relevant Funds' ability to access the China A-Share market (and hence to pursue their investment strategy) will be adversely affected.

#### Nominee arrangements in holding China A-Shares

HKSCC is the "nominee holder" of the Stock Connect Securities acquired by overseas investors (including the relevant Fund(s)) through Stock Connect. The CSRC Stock Connect rules expressly provide that investors such as the Funds enjoy the rights and benefits of the Stock Connect Securities acquired through Stock Connect in accordance with applicable laws. However, the courts in mainland China may consider that any nominee or custodian as registered holder of Stock Connect Securities would have full ownership thereof, and that even if the concept of beneficial owner is recognised under mainland China law those SSE securities would form part of the pool of assets of such entity available for distribution to creditors of such entities and/or that a beneficial owner may have no rights whatsoever in respect thereof. Consequently, the relevant Fund(s) and the Depositary cannot ensure that the Fund's ownership of these securities or title thereto is assured in all circumstances.

Under the rules of the Central Clearing and Settlement System operated by HKSCC for the clearing of securities listed or traded on SEHK, HKSCC as nominee holder shall have no obligation to take any legal action or court proceeding to enforce any rights on behalf of the investors in respect of the Stock Connect Securities in mainland China or elsewhere. Therefore, although the relevant Funds' ownership may be ultimately recognised, these Funds may suffer difficulties or delays in enforcing their rights in China A-Shares.

To the extent that HKSCC is deemed to be performing safekeeping functions with respect to assets held through it, it should be noted that the Depositary and the relevant Fund(s) will have no legal relationship with HKSCC and no direct legal recourse against HKSCC in the event that a Fund suffers losses resulting from the performance or insolvency of HKSCC.

# **Investor compensation**

Investments of the relevant Funds through Northbound trading under Stock Connect will not be covered by Hong Kong's Investor Compensation Fund. Hong Kong's Investor Compensation Fund is established to pay compensation to investors of any nationality who suffer pecuniary losses as a result of default of a licensed intermediary or authorised financial institution in relation to exchange-traded products in Hong Kong.

Since default matters in Northbound trading via Stock Connect do not involve products listed or traded in SEHK or Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, they will not be covered by the Investor Compensation Fund. On the other hand, since the relevant Funds are carrying out Northbound trading through securities brokers in Hong Kong but not mainland China brokers, therefore they are not protected by the China Securities Investor Protection Fund in mainland China.

# **Trading costs**

In addition to paying trading fees and stamp duties in connection with China A-Share trading, the relevant Funds may be subject to new portfolio fees, dividend tax and tax concerned with income arising from stock transfers which are yet to be determined by the relevant authorities.

#### **Mainland China tax consideration**

The Management Company and/or Investment Manager reserve the right to provide for tax on gains of the relevant Fund that invests in mainland China securities thus impacting the valuation of the relevant Funds. With the uncertainty of whether and how certain gains on mainland China securities are to be taxed, the possibility of

the laws, regulations and practice in mainland China changing, and the possibility of taxes being applied retrospectively, any provision for taxation made by the Management Company and/ or the Investment Manager may be excessive or inadequate to meet final mainland China tax liabilities on gains derived from the disposal of mainland China securities. Consequently, investors may be advantaged or disadvantaged depending upon the final outcome of how such gains will be taxed, the level of provision and when they purchased and/or sold their shares in/from the relevant Fund.

On 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance, State of Administration of Taxation and CSRC jointly issued a notice in relation to the taxation rule on Stock Connect under Caishui 2014 No.81 ("Notice No.81"). Under Notice No.81, corporate income tax, individual income tax and business tax will be temporarily exempted on gains derived by Hong Kong and overseas investors (such as the Funds) on the trading of China A-Shares through Stock Connect with effect from 17 November 2014. However, Hong Kong and overseas investors (such as the Funds) are required to pay tax on dividends and/or bonus shares at the rate of 10% which will be withheld and paid to the relevant authority by the listed companies.

# Regulatory risk

The CSRC Stock Connect rules are departmental regulations having legal effect in mainland China. However, the application of such rules is untested, and there is no assurance that mainland China courts will recognise such rules, e.g. in liquidation proceedings of mainland China companies.

Stock Connect is novel in nature, and is subject to regulations promulgated by regulatory authorities and implementation rules made by the stock exchanges in mainland China and Hong Kong. Further, new regulations may be promulgated from time to time by the regulators in connection with operations and cross-border legal enforcement in connection with cross-border trades under Stock Connect.

The regulations are untested so far and there is no certainty as to how they will be applied. Moreover, the current regulations are subject to change. There can be no assurance that Stock Connect will not be abolished. The relevant Funds which may invest in the mainland China markets through Stock Connect may be adversely affected as a result of such changes.

#### **Short Selling Risk**

Typically, UK open-ended investment companies, such as the Company, invest on a "long only" basis. This means that their net asset value will rise (or fall) in value based on the market value of the assets they hold. Some of the Funds, by employing certain derivative techniques, will establish both "long" and "short" positions in individual stocks and markets. As a result, as well as holding assets that may rise or fall with markets, they may also hold positions that will rise as the market value falls, and fall as the market value rises.

# Single Country/Region Risk

Some Funds may invest in companies concentrated within a single country and/or single region. This means that they are subject to all risks of that country's/region's equity market environment (e.g. economic, market, political or regulatory) and as a result these Funds carry more risk than other funds that diversify their investments across a broad range of countries/regions. This type of concentration can lead to increased volatility in a Fund's Share price.

# **Small and Mid-Sized Companies Risk**

The stock prices of small and mid-sized companies can perform differently than larger, more recognised, companies and have the potential to be more volatile. A lower degree of liquidity in their securities, a greater sensitivity to changes in economic conditions and interest rates, and uncertainty over future growth prospects may all contribute to such increased price volatility. Additionally, smaller companies may be unable to generate new monies for growth and development, may lack depth in management, and may be developing products in new and uncertain markets all of which are risks to consider when investing in such companies. These risks are typically increased for securities issued by smaller companies registered or performing a significant part of their activities in developing countries and emerging markets, especially as the liquidity of securities issued by companies in emerging markets may be substantially smaller than with comparable securities in industrialised countries.

## **Sub-Investment Grade Risk**

Investments in fixed income securities which hold a Sub-Investment Grade credit rating are subject to a greater risk that such investments cannot be readily sold or that the issuer could default on its obligations causing a Fund to sustain losses on such investments. A Fund which invests in such securities will seek to limit such risks by indepth credit research and careful securities selection but there can be no assurance it will not acquire securities with respect to which the issuer subsequently defaults. Sub-Investment Grade debt securities are speculative and involve a greater risk of default and price changes due to changes in the issuer's creditworthiness. The market prices of these debt securities fluctuate to a greater extent than Investment Grade debt securities and may decline significantly in periods of general economic difficulty or uncertainty.

93

Accordingly, investors should be aware that Sub-Investment Grade debt securities are speculative in nature and are subject to greater market fluctuations and risk of loss of principal and income than Investment Grade securities. An investment in a Fund which invests in such securities should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

# Sustainability / ESG risk

The integration of sustainability or ESG factors in the investment decision process may have the effect of excluding profitable investments from the investment universe of a Fund a may also cause the Fund to sell investments that will continue to perform well. Sustainability or ESG analysis is to a degree subjective, and there is no guarantee that all investments made by an applicable Fund will reflect believes or values of any particular invest on sustainable investments.

A sustainability risk could materialize as the occurrence of an ESG event or condition which causes a material negative impact on the value of one or several investments, and thus negatively impacting the returns of a Fund.

Sustainability risks can manifest themselves in different ways, such as but not limited to:

- failure to comply with environmental, social or governance standards resulting in reputational damage, causing fall in demand for products and services, or loss of business opportunities for a company or industry group,
- changes in laws, regulations or industry norms giving rise to possible fines, sanctions or change in consumer behavior affecting a company or an entire industry's prospects for growth and development,
- changes in laws or regulations may generate higher demand for, and thus undue increase in prices of securities of companies perceived as meeting higher ESG standards. Prices of such securities may become more volatile if perception from market participants about companies' adherence to ESG standards changes, and
- changes in laws or regulations, may incentivize companies to provide misleading information about their environmental, social or governance standards or activities.

Commonly considered sustainability risk factors include:

**Environment:** climate mitigation, adjustment to climate change, protection of biodiversity, sustainable use and protection of water and recycling, the avoidance and reduction of environmental pollution, protection of healthy ecosystems, and sustainable land use.

**Social:** Compliance with recognized labor law standards (no child and forced labor, no discrimination), compliance with employment safety and health protection, appropriate remuneration, fair working conditions, diversity, and training and development opportunities, trade union rights and freedom of assembly, guarantee of adequate product safety, including health protection, application of the same requirements to entities in the supply chain, inclusive projects or consideration of the interests of communities and social minorities.

**Corporate Governance**: tax honesty, anti-corruption measures, sustainability management by the board, board remuneration based on sustainability criteria, the facilitation of whistle-blowing, employee rights guarantees, data protection guarantees.

# **Swap Agreements Risk**

The Company may enter into interest rate, index and currency exchange rate swap agreements for the purposes of attempting to obtain a particular desired return at a lower cost to the Company than if the Company had invested directly in an instrument that yielded that desired return. Swap agreements are two party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few days to more than one year. In a standard "swap" transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differential in rates of return) earned or realised on particular predetermined investments or instruments. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are calculated with respect to a "notional amount", i.e. the return on or increase in value of a particular US dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index. The "notional amount" of the swap agreement is only a fictive basis on which to calculate the obligations which the parties to a swap agreement have agreed to exchange. The Company's obligations (or rights) under a swap agreement will generally be equal only to the net amount to be paid or received under the agreement based on the relative values of the positions held by each party to the agreement (the "net amount").

Whether the Company's use of swap agreements will be successful in furthering its investment objective will

depend on the ability of the Investment Managers to correctly predict whether certain types of investments are likely to produce greater returns than other investments. Because they are two party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven (7) calendar days, swap agreements may be considered to be illiquid. Moreover, the Company bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement in the event of the default or bankruptcy of a swap agreement counterparty.

#### **Undervalued Securities Risk**

Funds seeking investments with significant growth potential are likely to target what they perceive to be undervalued securities. Undervalued securities can be unpopular with other stock market investors, who may not recognise their potential in the short term. As such, Funds investing in this type of security may experience short-term falls in performance.

# **Volatility Risk**

The value of Shares may rise or fall as the capital value of the securities in which a Fund invests may fluctuate. Under certain market conditions, for example during periods of high volatility, such fluctuations can be particularly marked and the value of investments may fall substantially over a short period of time.

#### **Warrants Risk**

Investments in and holding of warrants may result in increased volatility of the net asset value of certain Funds, which may make use of warrants, and accordingly is accompanied by a higher degree of risk.

# **Typical Investor Profile**

Typical Shareholders in the Funds want to invest for the potential of a higher income and/or higher capital growth than they could ordinarily achieve from a bank or building society account over the longer term.

They understand that purchasing Shares in any of the Funds carries a greater degree of risk than holding cash in a bank or building society account and that the Fund does not guarantee to provide either a regular income or capital growth. Typical investors understand the risks involved in investing, particularly those highlighted in this Prospectus and are therefore prepared to invest over a medium to long term period.

The Funds are available for both retail and professional investors however, from 30 September 2024 retail investors may only purchase shares via a platform or when they have notified us that they are using the services of a Franklin Templeton approved independent financial adviser. We suggest all prospective investors seek guidance from a professional financial adviser before investing.

We are not able to recommend specific platforms or independent financial advisers for retail investors to use, as they will each offer different services, and prices, depending on an investor's needs. For more information about how retail investors can invest with us please see our website at: https://www.franklintempleton.co.uk/about-us/how-to-invest.

If a retail investor made investments in our Funds prior 30 September 2024, those investments may continue to be held, and will also benefit from existing rights to sell, switch, transfer and convert Shares as set out elsewhere in this Prospectus. Any additional or new investments in our Funds will not be accepted unless they are made via a platform or the investor has notified us that they are using the services of an approved independent financial adviser, as set out in this Prospectus.

# **Accounting Reference and Other Dates**

Subject to the FCA Rules, the accounting reference dates, interim accounting reference dates, distribution pay dates, grouping periods and dates of publication of annual and half-yearly reports of each of the Funds are as follows:

Accounting Reference Date (i.e. the Financial Year End) and Interim Accounting Period: 31 March and 1 April to 30 September

Publication of Annual and Half-Yearly Reports: by 31 July and 30 November

Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment) 30  FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund 31  FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure 31 Income Fund 30  FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund 31  TTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund 31  30	March (final) and September  March (final), 30 June, September and December  March (final), 30 June, September and December	31 May and 30 November  31 May and 30 November  31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**  31 May, 31 August, 30 November and	Interest  Dividend  Interest
(no longer available for investment) 30  FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund 31  FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure 31 Income Fund 30  STFF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund 31  30	March (final), 30 June, September and December  March (final), 30 June, September and December	30 November 31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February** 31 May, 31 August,	
Fund 30 31  FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure 31 Income Fund 30 31  FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund 31 30	March (final), 30 June, September and December	30 November and 28 February** 31 May, 31 August,	Interest
Income Fund 30 31 FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund 31 30	September and December		
30		28 February**	Dividend
31	September and	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund 31	March (final)	31 May	Dividend
30	September and	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Interest
30	September and	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Interest
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund 31	March (final)	31 May	Dividend
(no longer available for investment) 30		31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment)	March (final)	31 May	Dividend
Fund 30	March (final), 30 June, September and December	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
Fund 30	March (final), 30 June, 9 September and December	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
30	March (final), 30 June, 9 September and December (interim)	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
	March (final) and September (interim)	31 May and 30 November	Dividend
	March (final) and September (interim)	31 May and 30 November	Dividend
	March (final) and September (interim)	31 May and 30 November	Dividend
Fund 30	September and	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Dividend
		31 May and 30 November	Dividend
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund 31	March (final)	31 May	Dividend

FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund	31 March (final)	31 May	Dividend
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	31 March (final)	31 May	Dividend
FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	31 March (final) and 30 September	31 May and 30 November	Dividend
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	31 March (final), 30 June, 30 September and 31 December	31 May, 31 August, 30 November and 28 February**	Interest
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund	31 March (final)	31 May	Dividend
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	Monthly at the end of each month	Monthly at the end of each month	Interest

<sup>\*</sup>Or the last Business Day of the relevant period if the Distribution Pay Dates are not Business Days in any particular year.

At the date of this Prospectus, income equalisation is applicable to all Funds.

Reports will be made up to such date each year and published within four months in the case of annual reports and two months in the case of half-yearly reports. The accounts contained in the annual and half-yearly reports will be prepared in accordance with the FCA Rules and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial Statements of Authorised Funds. A copy of the long report will be available on request from the ACD at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL.

Under the FCA Rules the ACD may, subject to notifying the Depositary, elect that a particular annual or half-yearly accounting period end on a day which is not more than seven days after and not more than seven days before the day on which the period would otherwise end.

# **List of Eligible Markets**

Details of the eligible securities and derivatives markets through which each of the Funds may invest or deal under the FCA Rules, are set out in Appendix 1.

# **Investment and Borrowing Powers and Restrictions**

The types of property which may be included in each of the Funds and the extent to which each Fund may be invested in such property is limited by the provisions of Chapter 5 (Investment and Borrowing Powers) of the FCA Rules which apply to each of the Funds. The investment limits that apply in respect of each Fund are set out in Appendix 2. The extent to which the Company may enter into stock lending arrangements, derivative transactions and the limitations on the right of the Company to borrow are also governed by the FCA Rules and are set out at Appendix 2.

# Termination of a Fund: Winding Up of the Company

Details of the powers of the Company to terminate a Fund and as to the winding up of the Company are set out in Appendix 3.

# The Characteristics of Shares in the Funds

Each Shareholder is entitled to participate in the property of the relevant Fund and the income thereof. The nature of the right represented by Shares in each Fund is that of a beneficial interest in a company. The title to the Shares of each Fund is evidenced by entries on a register of Shareholders and no certificate evidencing title thereto will be issued.

The Share Classes which may be made available at the ACD's discretion are summarised in the table below:

97

<sup>\*\*29</sup> February in a leap year.

Classes of Sh	nare
ЕВ	Income and Accumulation  Hedged Classes H1 Income and H1 Accumulation H2 Income and H2 Accumulation H3 Income and H3 Accumulation
S	Income and Accumulation  Hedged Classes H1 Income and H1 Accumulation H2 Income and H2 Accumulation H3 Income and H3 Accumulation
w	Income and Accumulation  Hedged Classes  H1 Income and H1 Accumulation  H2 Income and H2 Accumulation  H3 Income and H3 Accumulation
Y	Net Income and Net Accumulation Gross Income and Gross Accumulation  Hedged Classes H1 Income and H1 Accumulation H2 Income and H2 Accumulation H3 Income and H3 Accumulation)

All Shares, including those which employ hedging and/or are available in an alternative currency, in the same Class (EB, S, W, or Y) are subject to the terms and conditions applicable to that Class.

An Income Share is a Share in respect of which income is to be distributed in accordance with its share in the property of the relevant Fund. Cash distributions of income are made in respect of Income Shares, unless a Shareholder has chosen to reinvest income distributions in their chosen Share Class, in which case additional Income Shares of the same type and in the same Fund, will be issued when income allocations are paid out.

An Accumulation Share is a Share in respect of which the income allocated after the date of issue thereof is to be accumulated in the proportion of the value of the property of the relevant Fund as may from time to time apply thereto. No cash distributions are made and no additional Shares are issued. Instead, the relevant income is automatically transferred to, and retained as part of, the capital assets of the relevant Fund and this is reflected in the price of the Share.

All Shares within the above Share Classes can additionally be offered in the following currencies:

- Euro (abbreviated EUR)
- US dollar (abbreviated USD)
- British Pounds (abbreviated GBP)
- Swedish krona (abbreviated SEK)
- Norwegian krone (abbreviated NOK)
- Swiss franc (abbreviated CHF)
- Australian Dollar (abbreviated AUD).

The ACD may at its discretion decide to offer Shares in another currency not stated in the above list.

Shareholders are entitled (subject to certain restrictions) to Convert all or part of their Shares in a Class of a Fund for Shares of another Class within the same Fund or to Switch Shares in one Fund for Shares within a different Fund of the Company. Details of this Switching and Conversion facility and the restrictions are set out below in the section "Conversion and Switching of Shares".

# **Further Information about Share Classes**

Class EB Shares shall only be offered at the ACD's discretion, to institutional investors who meet the applicable

minimum investment and holding amounts (as described under the sub-heading 'Minimum Shareholdings' on page 19 of this Prospectus above) and/or to other investors at the discretion of the ACD. In respect of Class EB Accumulation EUR Shares in the FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund only, eligibility for investment is, in addition, subject to the Fund maintaining, at all times, a total shareholding in the Fund by non-UK Shareholders of a maximum of 45% of the net asset value of the Fund (the "Fund Cap"). The Fund Cap is required to ensure the Fund qualifies for US withholding tax relief. If a Shareholder(s) continuing investment would, in the ACD's opinion, prejudice the withholding tax position of the Fund, the ACD has discretion to:

- (i) reject any further application for the purchase of Shares (including top-ups and additional investment);
- (ii) compulsorily fully or partially redeem the Shares, in order to maintain or bring the total shareholding in the Fund by non-UK Shareholders below the Fund Cap.

The ACD will endeavour to give notice to the Shareholder where possible, but is not required to do so. Failure by the ACD to use its discretion immediately after such a breach will not constitute a waiver of this right. The ACD reserves the right to amend the Fund Cap on reasonable notice.

Class S Shares shall only be offered in limited circumstances, and always at the discretion of the ACD, to institutional investors including selected distributors and/or brokers/dealers and/or other investors at the discretion of the ACD. Before the ACD can accept a subscription into the S Share Class, it may require that a separate agreement is put in place between the investor and the ACD containing terms specific to investment in the S Share Class.

The Company will not issue, Switch or Convert Class S Shares to any Investor who is deemed by the ACD not to meet the above requirements. If it is identified at any time that a holder of Class S Shares does not qualify, or no longer qualifies, the ACD will compulsorily redeem the Shares at its discretion and upon the giving of 30 days' notice in writing to the relevant holder. Any redemption proceeds will be paid to the Investor. In such circumstances, the Investor may not receive the full proceeds of the original investment, but the original amount less any fall in value.

**Class W Shares** are available to any investor, provided they are institutional investors, or retail investors which make the investment via a platform or using a Franklin Templeton approved independent financial adviser, and subject to any other eligibility requirements set out on page 19 of this Prospectus.

Class Y Shares are available to other entities within the Franklin Templeton group at the ACD's discretion. Before the ACD can accept a subscription into the Y Share Class, a legal agreement must be in place between the investor and the ACD containing terms specific to investment in the Y Share Class, including the level of fees and the minimum investment amount.

In addition, the Company may offer within a Fund the following Hedged Share Classes:

# **Hedged Shares**

#### (a) H1 Shares:

H1 Shares are designed for those investors who wish to purchase Shares in a Fund using a currency different to the Fund's base currency but who also wish to limit their exposure to changes in the exchange rate between the currency of their H1 Shares and the Fund's base currency. H1 Shares include a hedging strategy which aims to reduce the effect on investment returns of changes in the exchange rate between the Fund's base currency and the denomination of the H1 Share subscribed for on investment returns.

H1 Shares in a Fund are issued in a currency ("Alternative Currency") different from the Fund's base currency. The net asset value of H1 Share classes are calculated and published in the Alternative Currency. Subscription proceeds for these Classes are paid by investors, and redemption proceeds are paid to redeeming Shareholders, in the Alternative Currency.

# (b) H2 Shares:

H2 Shares are designed for those Funds that hold a significant portion of securities traded in a currency, or currencies, ("Currency/ies of Investment") other than the Funds' base currency (or, where a Share Class is denominated in a currency other than the Funds' base currency, that Share Class currency). The value of such securities may decrease if the Currency/ies of Investment fall(s) relative to the base currency or Share Class currency, as applicable. Therefore, the hedging strategy within the H2 Share Class aims to reduce, as far as possible, the influence of changes in the exchange rate between the Fund's base currency (or, if different, Share Class currency) and the currency/ies of securities held by the Fund.

# (c) H3 Shares:

H3 Shares are designed for those Funds whose investment strategy is based on a currency ("Currency of Return") different from the Funds' base currency. H3 Share Classes include a hedging strategy which attempts to reduce the influence of changes in the exchange rate between the Funds' base currency and the Currency of Return. This does not involve hedging currency risk relating to positions within the Fund's portfolio, but instead is designed to replicate a strategy effected in one currency – the Currency of Return (e.g. USD) through a Share www.franklintempleton.co.uk

Class denominated in another currency (e.g. GBP). The only Fund currently issuing H3 Shares is the FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment). This Fund seeks to maximise its investment return in USD terms, notwithstanding that the base currency of this Fund is in GBP.

Any currency hedging in this Fund is done from the perspective of a USD-oriented investor. The returns of the unhedged Share Classes in this Fund therefore reflect not only the USD-oriented investment strategy but also the translation of market values for that strategy into GBP.

The H3 Share Classes include an operational hedge to USD that seeks to minimize volatility (after hedging costs) associated with the GBP/USD exchange rate and allow the H3 Share Classes to deliver broadly USD equivalent returns even though the H3 Share Classes are denominated in GBP.

Further information about Hedged Share Classes can be found at:

https://www.franklintempleton.co.uk/investor/resources/investor-education/a-guide-to-hedged-share-classes

#### **Features of Hedged Share Classes**

Hedged Share Classes aim to achieve their objective by using financial instruments such as currency options and forward currency exchange contracts, currency futures, written call options and purchased put options on currencies and currency swaps as a hedge. For Hedged Share Classes, these transactions are not actively managed as part of the portfolio or investment process.

All profits, losses and expenses associated with currency hedging transactions entered into in relation to a Hedged Share Class will be allocated solely to the said Share Class. The Hedging Agent reviews the hedging positions every Dealing Day, however if there are significant net in or out flows, it may not be possible for the Hedging Agent to adjust hedges immediately and adjustments may be made on the following Business Day.

It is anticipated that the predetermined levels for each Hedged Share Class will be within the range of 95 to 105% of the Net Asset Value of the Hedged Share Class.

There is no guarantee that attempts to hedge currency risk will be successful, and no hedging strategy will eliminate currency risk entirely, having regard to the costs of hedging, the nature of the instruments and the level of hedge coverage at any point in time. Investors are advised to read "Risk Factors" on page 80 for a description of the specific risks associated with investing in Hedged Shares and how investors in unhedged Share Classes may be affected by the hedging activities of Hedged Share Classes within their Fund.

# **Share Classes currently available**

A summary of Share Classes which are launched and available for investment as at the date of this prospectus is shown below.

From 30 September 2024, investments in each Share Class below will only be accepted if made by an eligible institutional investor or, if on behalf of a retail investor via a platform or where the retail investor uses a Franklin Templeton approved independent financial adviser.

Fund	Classes
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A
Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund	EB Accumulation and EB Income <sup>1</sup> S Accumulation and S Income W Accumulation and W Income
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund	EB Accumulation and EB Income EB H2 Income S Accumulation and S Income S Income USD S H2 Accumulation and S H2 Income S H2 Accumulation USD W Accumulation and W Income W H2 Accumulation and W H2 Income
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund	EB Income EB Accumulation EUR <sup>2</sup> S Accumulation and S Income W Accumulation and W Income W H2 Income
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund	EB Accumulation and EB Income S Accumulation and S Income W Accumulation
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund	W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund	W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund	W Accumulation
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment)	W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment)	W Accumulation
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund	EB Accumulation W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund	EB Income W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund	S Accumulation and S Income W Accumulation and W Income

This Class is only open to new subscriptions at the ACD's discretion. Please contact the ACD for further information.

This Class is only open to new subscriptions at the ACD's discretion and is subject to meeting the eligibility criteria set out above.

Please contact the ACD for further information.

FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund	S Accumulation
111 martin outrie ort managers 1 ocus i unu	W Accumulation and W Income
ETE Martin Currio LIV Mid Con Fund	S Accumulation and S Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund	W Accumulation and W Income
	VV Accumulation and VV moonie
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available	W Accumulation and W Income
for investment)	
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund	W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund	S Income and S Accumulation
	W Accumulation and W Income
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund	W Accumulation
1 11 Martin Guine 03 Onconstraineu Funu	W H2 Accumulation
ETE Davisa US Smaller Companies Fined	W Accumulation
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund	W H2 Accumulation
	TTTE / GOGITHUM
	C. A communication
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	S Accumulation W Accumulation and W Income
	w Accumulation and w income
FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	W Accumulation
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer	W Accumulation and W Income
available for investment)	W H3 Accumulation and W H3 Income
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund	W Accumulation
	W H2 Accumulation
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no	S Accumulation and S Income
longer available for investment)	W Accumulation and W Income

# **Shareholder Meetings and Voting Rights**

### **Requisitions of Meetings**

The ACD or the Depositary may requisition a general meeting at any time.

Shareholders may also requisition a general meeting of the Company. A requisition by Shareholders must state the objectives of the meeting, be dated, be signed by the Shareholders who, at the date of the requisition, are registered as holding not less than one-tenth in value of all Shares then in issue and the requisition must be deposited at the head office of the Company. The ACD must convene a general meeting no later than eight weeks after receipt of such requisition.

The Depositary also has the power to convene a meeting using a procedure similar to that used by Shareholders requisitioning a meeting as set out above.

The Company has elected to dispense with Annual General Meetings.

#### **Notice and Quorum**

Shareholders will receive at least 14 days' notice of a general meeting and are entitled to be counted in the quorum and vote at such meeting either in person or by proxy. The quorum for a meeting is two Shareholders, present in person or by proxy. If, at an adjourned meeting, a quorum is not present after a reasonable time from the time for the meeting, one person entitled to be counted in a quorum present at the meeting shall constitute a quorum. Notices of Meetings and adjourned meetings will be sent to Shareholders at their registered addresses.

# **Voting Rights**

At a meeting of Shareholders, on a show of hands every Shareholder who (being an individual) is present in person or (being a corporation) is present by its representative properly authorised in that regard, has one vote.

On a poll vote, a Shareholder may vote either in person or by proxy. The voting rights attaching to each Share are such proportion of the voting rights attached to all the Shares in issue that the price of the Share bears to the aggregate price(s) of all the Shares in issue at the date seven days before the notice of the meeting was sent out.

An instrument appointing a proxy may be in any usual or common form or any form approved by the ACD and Depositary. The person appointed to act as a proxy need not be a Shareholder.

A Shareholder entitled to more than one vote need not, if they vote, use all their votes or cast all the votes they use in the same way.

The ACD may not be counted in the quorum for a meeting and neither the ACD nor any associate of the ACD is entitled to vote at any meeting of the Company except in respect of Shares which the ACD or associate holds on behalf of or jointly with a person who, if the registered Shareholder, would be entitled to vote and from whom the ACD or associate has received voting instructions. An associate in relation to any person is defined as an undertaking in the same group as that person, an appointed representative of the first person or of any undertaking in the same group and any other person whose business or domestic relationship with the first person or its associate might reasonably be expected to give rise to a community of interest between them which may involve a conflict of interest in dealing with third parties.

"Shareholders" in this context means Shareholders entered on the register at a time to be determined by the ACD and stated in the notice of the meeting which must not be more than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting. Where a receiver or other person (by whatever name called) has been appointed by any court claiming jurisdiction in that behalf to exercise powers with respect to the property or affairs of any Shareholder on the ground (however formulated) of mental disorder, the ACD may in its absolute discretion upon or subject to production of such evidence of the appointment as the ACD may require, permit such receiver or other person on behalf of such Shareholder to vote on a poll in person or by proxy at any meeting of Shareholders or Class meeting or to exercise any right other than the right to vote on a show of hands conferred by ownership of Shares in relation to such a meeting.

No objection shall be raised as to the admissibility of any vote except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is or may be given or tendered and every vote may be disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing in any usual or common form or in any other form which the ACD may approve or in its absolute discretion accept (including as to how it may be signed or sealed). The signature on such instrument need not be witnessed. Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the ACD) be lodged with the instrument appointing the proxy pursuant to the next following paragraph, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

An instrument appointing a proxy must be left at or delivered to such place or one of such places (if any) as may be specified for the purpose in or by way of note to or in any document accompanying the notice convening the meeting (or, if no place is so specified, to or at the ACD's head office) by the time which is 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) for the taking of the poll at which it is to be used and, in default, may be treated as invalid.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall, unless the contrary is stated thereon, be valid as well for any adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates. A vote cast by proxy shall not be invalidated by the previous death or bankruptcy of the principal or by other transmission by operation of law of title to the Shares concerned or by the revocation of the appointment of the proxy or of the authority under which the appointment of the proxy was made provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity or revocation shall have been received by the ACD at its head office by the time which is two hours before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) the time appointed for the taking of the poll at which the vote is cast.

Any corporation which is a holder of Shares in a Fund may by resolution of the directors or other governing body of such corporation and in respect of any Share or Shares in the Fund of which it is the holder authorise such individual as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any general meeting of the Shareholders or of any Class meeting. The individual so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such corporation as the corporation could exercise in respect of such Share or Shares if it were the individual Shareholder in the Fund and such corporation shall for the purposes of the Instrument of Incorporation be deemed to be present in person at any such meeting if an individual so authorised is present.

Where a resolution is required to conduct business at a meeting of Shareholders and every Shareholder is prohibited under COLL 4.4.8R(4) from voting, it shall not be necessary to convene such a meeting and a resolution may, with the prior written agreement of the Depositary to the process, instead be passed with the written consent of Shareholders representing 50% or more, or for an extraordinary resolution 75% or more of the Shares of the Fund in issue.

# Powers of a Shareholders' Meeting

The Company's Instrument of Incorporation and the FCA Rules empower Shareholders in a general meeting to approve or require various matters (in some cases subject to FCA approval).

These matters include:

- (a) removal of the ACD;
- (b) changes to some of the matters contained in the Instrument of Incorporation and this prospectus;
- (c) fundamental changes to the Company or a Fund; and
- (d) a scheme of arrangement involving the Company.

In accordance with the FCA Rules other provisions may be changed by the ACD without approval of Shareholders in a general meeting.

Except where the FCA Rules or the Instrument of Incorporation require an extraordinary resolution (which needs a majority of 75% of the votes validly cast for and against such resolution to be passed) any resolution will be passed by a simple majority of the votes validly cast for and against the resolution.

# **Class and Fund Meetings**

The above provisions, unless the context otherwise requires, apply to Class meetings and meetings of Funds as they apply to general meetings of Shareholders but by reference to Shares of the Class or Fund concerned and the Shareholders and prices of such Shares.

# **Variation of Class and Fund Rights**

The rights attached to the Shares of a Class or Fund may not be varied without the sanction of a resolution passed at a meeting of Shareholders of that Class or Fund by a 75% majority of those votes validly cast for and against such resolution.

#### **Valuation**

The property of each Fund shall be valued at 12.00 noon UK time on each normal Dealing Day (the "Valuation Point") for the purpose of determining prices at which Shares may be purchased from or redeemed by the Company. The ACD may also carry out an additional valuation when it considers it desirable to do so. Shares will be "single priced" with the same price for buying or selling on any particular day, such price being determined from time to time by reference to the Valuation Point on a Dealing Day for each Fund.

The Net Asset Value per Share of each Class of Shares of each Fund will be determined at 12.00 noon UK time each Dealing Day, by dividing the value of the Fund's assets plus any cash (including accrued interest and dividends receivable) less all liabilities (including accrued expenses) by the number of outstanding Shares of the Class, and (except for smaller denomination Shares) shall be accurate to at least four significant figures. For this purpose,

- (a) a security admitted to official listing in the UK, a member state of the European Union or any other state within the EEA or traded on or under the rules of an eligible securities market or of any other stock exchange considered by the ACD, after consultation with the Depositary, to be reputable will be valued:
  - (i) If an appropriate single price for buying and selling the security is quoted or obtainable, at that price.
  - (ii) If appropriate separate bid and offer prices are quoted or obtainable, at the average of these two prices, taking account of dealing sizes and other relevant factors if necessary.
  - (iii) If the above market prices are deemed not readily available or unreliable, at a price adopted in accordance with the provisions for Fair Value Pricing detailed on page 106.
- (b) (where two prices are quoted according to whether it is bought or sold) at its last mid-market price or in markets where only one price is quoted at that last price on the principal exchange on which the security is traded (for example, in the UK the mid-market price and in Germany the KASSA price is used as the last such price). If no sale is reported at that time, the current mid-market price will be used where two prices are quoted or, where only one such price is quoted, that current price will be used.
- (c) the value of a security will be determined in its quoted currency as at the close of trading on the exchange on which it is traded, or at 12.00 noon UK time for those securities which trade on exchanges that are open at that time, and that value will then be converted into its British Pounds (GBP) equivalent at the exchange rate on the day the value of the security is determined.
- (d) occasionally, events which affect the values of such securities and such exchange rates may occur between the times at which they are determined and 12.00 noon UK time, and will therefore not be reflected in the computation of the Fund's net asset value. If in the ACD's opinion events materially affecting the value of such securities occur during such period, then these securities may be valued at their fair value as determined in good faith by the ACD.
- (e) all other securities for which over-the-counter market quotations are readily available will be valued, where two prices are quoted according to whether it is being bought or sold, at the current mid-market price or, in markets where only one current price is quoted, at that current price.
- (f) securities for which market quotations are not readily available, and other assets, will be valued at their fair value as determined in good faith by the ACD.
  - (i) There shall be excluded from the value of investments or other property any fiscal charges, commissions or other charges that were paid or would be payable on the acquisition or disposal of the investments or other property.
  - (ii) Subject to paragraph (iii) below, any assets, costs, charges and expenses payable out of the property which are not attributable to any particular Fund will be allocated between the Funds on a basis proportionate to that which the value of each Fund bears to the value of all the Funds provided that the ACD is satisfied that such method is fair to Shareholders and that it is reasonable to adopt such method in the given circumstances.
  - (iii) The S, and W Shares will bear the ACD's remuneration at the rates applicable to each Class. Due to the differences in these specific management charges attributable to each of these Classes, the income allocated to each Class of the Fund will vary.

# **Fair Value Pricing**

Where the ACD has reasonable grounds to believe that:

- (a) no reliable price exists for a security or unit/Share in a collective investment scheme at a Valuation Point; or
- (b) the most recent price available does not reflect the ACD's best estimate of the value of the security or unit/ share in a collective investment scheme at the Valuation Point

it can value an investment at a price which, in its opinion, reflects a fair and reasonable price for that investment (the fair value price).

The circumstances which may give rise to a fair value price being used include:

- (a) no recent trade in the security concerned; or
- (b) suspension of dealings in an underlying collective investment scheme; or
- (c) the occurrence of a significant event since the most recent closure of the market

where the price of the security is taken.

In determining whether to use such a fair value price, the ACD will include in their consideration but need not be limited to:

- (a) the type of fund;
- (b) the securities involved;
- (c) whether the underlying collective investment schemes may already have applied fair value pricing;
- (d) the basis and reliability of the alternative price used; and
- (e) the ACD's policy on the valuation of Fund Property as disclosed in this prospectus.

# **Dilution Adjustment**

The basis on which each Fund's investments are valued for the purpose of calculating the price of Shares as stipulated in the FCA Rules and the Company's Instrument of Incorporation is summarised under the section "Valuation" on page 105. The Company is single priced.

However, the actual cost of purchasing or selling investments for a Fund may deviate from the mid-market value used in calculating the price of Shares in the Fund due to dealing costs such as brokerage charges, taxes, and any spread between the buying and selling prices of the underlying investments. These dealing costs can have an adverse effect on the value of each Fund, known as "dilution".

It is not, however, possible to predict accurately whether dilution will occur at any point in time. In order to protect Shareholders from this impact, the FCA Rules allow the cost of dilution to be met directly from a Fund's assets or to be recovered from investors on the purchase or redemption of Shares by means of a dilution adjustment to the dealing price, and this is the policy which has been adopted by the ACD. The ACD shall comply with COLL 6.3.8R in the FCA Rules in its application of any such dilution adjustment. The ACD's policy is designed to minimise the impact of dilution on any Fund.

The dilution adjustment for each Fund will be calculated by reference to the historical estimated costs of dealing in the underlying investments of that Fund, including any dealing spreads, commissions and transfer taxes. The ACD may apply a dilution adjustment on the issue and redemption of such Shares if, in its opinion, the existing Shareholders (for subscriptions) or remaining Shareholders (for redemptions) might be adversely affected, and if in applying a dilution adjustment, so far as practicable, it is fair to all Shareholders and potential Shareholders.

Where a dilution adjustment is not applied to a Fund there may be dilution of the assets of that Fund, which may constrain or reduce the future growth of that Fund.

The ACD may, at its discretion, make a dilution adjustment on the sale and/or redemption of Shares if, in its opinion, the existing Shareholders (for sales) or remaining Shareholders (for redemptions) might otherwise be materially affected. In particular, the ACD may make a dilution adjustment under the following circumstances:

- on a Fund where there is a net inflow or net outflow on any Dealing Day; or
- in any other case where the ACD believes that the imposition of a dilution adjustment is required to safeguard the interests of continuing Shareholders.

In specie transfers will not be taken into account when determining any dilution adjustment and any incoming portfolio will be valued on the same basis as each Fund is priced (i.e. offer plus notional dealing charges, mid, or bid less notional dealing charges). When a dilution adjustment is not applied there may be a dilution of the assets of a Fund which may constrain the future growth of that Fund.

The ACD may alter its current dilution adjustment policy in accordance with the FCA Rules.

Any price adjustment will be in response to significant cash flows rather than normal volumes and therefore it is not possible to accurately predict whether a price adjustment will occur at any future point in time. Consequently, it is also not possible to accurately predict how frequently such price adjustments will need to be made.

The ACD estimates that the estimated rate of dilution will typically fall in the range from 0.01% to 2% when buying or selling Shares.

The ACD reserves the right to adjust the price by a different amount but will always make such an adjustment in a fair manner solely to reduce dilution and not for the purpose of creating a profit or avoiding a loss for the account of the ACD or an associate. It should be noted that as dilution is related to inflows and outflows of monies and the purchase and sale of investments it is not possible to predict accurately if and when dilution will occur and to what extent.

The table below shows the frequency of dilution adjustments either in the twelve month period between 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, or on an estimated basis:

Fund	Fraguency of dilution adjustment n.a.
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	Frequency of dilution adjustment p.a.
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A this Fund is no longer available for investment
Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A this Fund is no longer available for investment
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund	1
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund	0
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund	4
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund	1
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund	0
FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund	0
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund	0
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment)	0
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment)	3
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund	2
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund	0
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund	3
FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund	4
FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund	0
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment)	0
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund	3
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund	3
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund	0
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund	0
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	3

FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	0
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	0
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund	0
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	3

# **Fees and Charges**

# **Current Rates of Preliminary Charge**

At present, no preliminary charge is levied on any share classes, although the ACD has the power to levy a preliminary charge upon giving appropriate notice to Shareholders. The current rates of any such preliminary charge which could be levied by the ACD are set out below:

The current rates of the ACD's preliminary charge (calculated as a percentage of the amount invested) are as follows: The ACD may charge the following preliminary charges: 5% for Equity Funds and Multi Assets Funds (with the exception of FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund and FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund where the preliminary charge is 4.5%) and 3% for Fixed Income Funds (although the ACD may charge a lower amount, as it may from time to time determine, in relation to any specific class or transaction).

## **Redemption Charge**

The ACD may make (and retain) a charge on the redemption of Shares to be borne by Shareholders. At present, no redemption charge is levied.

## The ACD's Annual Management Charge

The ACD is entitled to receive out of the scheme property of each Fund for its own account, monthly on the last Business Day of each month or as soon as possible thereafter, the amount of the annual management charge accrued to it during that month. Under current VAT legislation, no VAT is payable on the ACD's remuneration. This annual management charge is calculated daily based on the assets of each Fund at the Valuation Point on the previous business day adjusted for capital movements due to unit dealing.

The table below summarises the current rates of the ACD's annual management charge for each of the Funds:

Fund	EB Shares	S Shares (per	W Shares (per	Charge Taken from Income or
	(per annum)	annum)	annum)	Capital
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund	0.25%	0.35%	0.45%	Capital
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund	0.40%	0.60%	0.75%	Capital
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund	0.45%	0.60%	0.675%	Capital
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund	0.45%	0.60%	0.675%	Income
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund	N/A	N/A	0.35%	Capital
FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund	N/A	N/A	0.25%	Capital
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund	N/A	N/A	0.70%	Income
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund	0.35%	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund	0.40%	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund	N/A	0.35%	0.45%	Capital
FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund	N/A	0.50%	0.65%	Income

FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund	N/A	0.55%	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	0.45%	Income
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund	N/A	N/A	0.45%	Capital
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund	N/A	0.65%	0.75%	Income
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund	N/A	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund	N/A	N/A	0.75%	Income
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	N/A	0.60%	0.75%	Income
FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	N/A	N/A	0.70%	Income
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	N/A	0.55%	Income
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund	N/A	N/A	0.70%	Income
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	N/A	0.40%	0.55%	Capital

The ACD may in its discretion charge a lower annual management charge to that stated in the table above.

Class Y Shares do not have an annual management charge nor an administration charge but, where applicable, Shareholders will be invoiced directly by the ACD as stated in the agreement between the Shareholder and the ACD.

The fees of the relevant Investment Managers are paid out of the ACD's annual management charge.

The ACD is also entitled to be reimbursed by the Company for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties to the Company. **VAT is payable on these charges or expenses, where appropriate.** 

Such periodic remuneration is taken in each case at the rate of one-twelfth thereof each month. These rates are calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of a Fund referable to the EB Shares, S Shares, and W Shares respectively.

The value of the Scheme Property of each Fund, for the purpose of determining the ACD's annual management charge, is determined by reference to the value of the Scheme Property calculated in accordance with the provisions at Valuation on page 105 by way of remuneration for its services.

The ACD is entitled to receive a monthly administration charge out of the property of each Fund to be calculated, accrued and payable in the same manner and at the same time as the ACD's annual management charge. The current administration charge in respect of all Class EB, Class S, and Class W Shares is 0.05% per annum (plus any VAT or any equivalent tax thereon), and the maximum permitted administration charge in the case of all Funds is 0.10% (plus any VAT or any equivalent tax thereon).

Where the investment objective of a Fund is to treat the generation of income as having equal or higher priority to capital growth, all or part of the ACD's annual management charge may be charged against capital instead of against income. This may constrain capital growth. At present the ACD's annual management charge in respect of FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund, FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) is charged to capital.

In addition, the expenses of FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund, FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund and FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund are also charged to capital.

Payments of fees or commissions to various sub-distributors, dealers or other intermediaries may be made out of the ACD's annual management charge when such payments are expected to enhance the quality of the distribution or other services provided to the Shareholders, including but not limited to the improvement of the communication and ongoing information to Shareholders, the transaction processing or other Shareholder and/or administrative services.

## Increase in the Preliminary Charge or ACD's Annual Management Charges

Any increase of the preliminary charge or ACD's annual management charge may be made by the ACD, if it is deemed by the ACD to be a significant rather than a fundamental change, as set out in the provisions of the FCA Rules only after:

- (a) giving 60 days' written notice to all Shareholders (in the case of an increase of the annual management charge), and
- (b) the ACD revises the prospectus to reflect the proposed increase.

If such a change is deemed fundamental, it will require the approval of the Shareholders.

## **Depositary's Remuneration and Expenses**

The Depositary receives for its own account a periodic fee which will be accrued daily and payable monthly in respect of each calendar month and is payable as soon as practicable after the month end. The fee rates are applied based on the cumulative value of the assets attributable to all the Funds ("AUM") and the fee per Fund is pro-rated according to the value of each Fund calculated daily based on the assets of each Fund at the pricing Valuation Point of 12.00 noon UK time.

The rate of the periodic fee is agreed between the ACD and the Depositary from time to time and the current agreed periodic fee is:

AUM of all the Funds and the sub-funds of Franklin Templeton Funds II taken together	%age rate
£0 - £1 Billion.	0.012%
£1 Billion - £2.5 Billion.	0.011%
£2.5 Billion - £ 4 Billion	0.008%
£4 Billion - £5 Billion	0.006%
£5 Billion +	0.0045%

The first accrual in relation to any new Fund will take place in respect of the period from the day on which the first valuation of that Fund is made to that month end and will be calculated based upon the first Valuation Point. Any increase will only be permitted in accordance with the FCA Rules.

Separately, the Depositary receives a custody fee which accrues on the same basis as its periodic fee. Custody charges vary from country to country (usually between 0.0004% and 0.47% per annum) depending on the markets. Any increase in the custody fees, transaction charges or minimum fees will only be permitted in accordance with the FCA Rules.

In addition to the fees and charges payable to the Depositary referred to above, the Depositary is entitled to be reimbursed out of the property attributable to any Fund for expenses incurred in the proper performance of its duties (or the exercise of powers conferred upon it by the OEIC Regulations or the FCA Rules) referable to (but not limited to): (i) the maintenance of distribution accounts; (ii) the conversion of foreign currency; (iii) registration of assets in the name of the Depositary or its nominees or agents; (iv) borrowings, stock lending or other permitted transactions; (v) communications with any parties (including facsimile and SWIFT); (vi) taxation matters; (vii) insurance matters; and (viii) dealings in derivatives.

The Depositary will also be reimbursed by the Fund out of the property attributable to the Fund, expenses properly incurred in the performance of, or arranging the performance of, functions conferred on it by the Depositary Agreement, the Regulations or by the general law.

The amount or rate of any of the Depositary's fees and charges referred to above shall (unless otherwise stated) be determined by reference to the scale or tariff or other basis from time to time agreed between the ACD and the Depositary and notified to the ACD by the Depositary.

The Depositary shall be entitled to recover its fees, charges and expenses when the relevant transaction or other dealing is effected or relevant service is provided or as may otherwise be agreed between the Depositary and the Fund or the ACD.

On a winding up of a Fund, the termination of a Fund or the redemption of a Class of shares, the Depositary will be entitled to its pro rata fees, charges and expenses to the date of the commencement of the winding up, the termination or the redemption (as appropriate) and any additional expenses necessarily realised in settling or receiving any outstanding obligations. No compensation for loss of office is provided for in the agreement with the Depositary.

Any VAT on any fees, charges or expenses payable to the Depositary will be added to such fees, charges or expenses and will be payable by the Fund.

In each such case such expenses and disbursements may also be payable if incurred by any person (including the ACD or an associate or nominee of the Depositary or of the ACD) who has had the relevant duty delegated to it pursuant to the FCA Rules by the Depositary.

### **Other Payments**

Apart from the above, the following other payments may lawfully be made out of the property of each Fund:

- (a) broker's commission, local taxes and other disbursements which are necessary to be incurred in effecting transactions for the Fund concerned and which are normally shown in contract notes, confirmation notes and different accounts, as appropriate;
- (b) interest on borrowings permitted under the Fund concerned and charges incurred in effecting or terminating such borrowings or in negotiating or varying the terms of such borrowings;
- (c) taxation and duties payable in respect of the property of the Fund concerned or the issue of Shares in the Fund concerned;
- (d) any costs incurred in modifying the Instrument of Incorporation of the Company, including costs incurred in respect of meetings of Shareholders convened for purposes which include the purpose of modifying the Instrument of Incorporation, where the modification is necessary to implement any change in the law or necessary as a direct consequence of any change in the law (including changes in the OEIC Regulations or the FCA Rules) or expedient having regard to any change in the law made by or under any fiscal enactment and which the ACD considers to be is in the interest of Shareholders or to remove from the Instrument of Incorporation obsolete provisions;
- (e) any costs incurred in respect of meetings of the Company or Class meetings of the Shareholders of the Fund concerned convened on a requisition by Shareholders, not including the ACD or an associate of the ACD;
- (f) liabilities arising on unitisation, amalgamation or reconstruction;
- (g) the audit fee properly payable to the Auditors as agreed between the ACD and the Auditors and any proper expenses of the Auditors;
- (h) the periodic fees of the FCA in respect of the Company as may be prescribed under the OEIC Regulations, or the corresponding periodic fees of any regulatory authority in a country or territory outside the United Kingdom in which Shares in the Fund concerned are or may be marketed;
- (i) expenses incurred in acquiring and disposing of investments and reasonable stock lending expenses;
- (j) the cost of preparing, printing and distributing any KIID, any supplementary information document or any prospectus (apart from the costs of distributing the KIID) in respect of the Company or any Fund;
- (k) the costs of printing and distributing annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports (if any) and any other reports or information provided for Shareholders;
- (I) the costs of listing the prices of Shares in the Funds in publication and information services selected by the ACD, including the *Financial Times*, if relevant;
- (m) any other charges or expenses that may be taken out of the Company's property in accordance with the FCA Rules;
- (n) VAT or any equivalent tax chargeable in respect of any of the above charges and expenses; and
- (o) litigation and consulting expenses incurred in connection with the Fund's holdings, which will only be incurred in consultation with the Depositary.

In addition, all other types of charges and expenses relating to the property subject to the collective investment scheme constituted by the Company may be taken out of such property. The ACD may however itself choose to pay any recurring operating expenses of a Fund for any accounting period as exceeds any such percentage as the ACD may decide upon from time to time of the recurring operating expenses allocated to that Fund for that period.

Any third party research received in connection with investment management services that an Investment Manager or the ACD provides to the Funds will be paid for by the Investment Manager or the ACD out of its fees, as relevant in relation to each Fund, and will not be charged to the Funds.

Where the ACD and the Depositary so agree (and as disclosed in this prospectus), any expenses of a Fund may, subject to FCA Rules, be charged against capital instead of income. This may constrain capital growth.

### Income

With effect from 1 March 2007, income on debt securities – such as bonds – has been calculated on an Effective Yield basis. The Effective Yield basis treats any projected capital gain or loss on a debt security (when compared to maturity or par value) as income and this, together with any future expected income streams on the debt security, is amortised over the life of that debt security (to maturity) to calculate an effective yield which is used for the calculation of distributable income in all Fixed Income Funds other than the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund. With regard to the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, income on debt securities may be distributed on a coupon basis if this is higher than income calculated on an Effective Yield basis. This has the effect of increasing the distributable income for the Fund and constraining the Fund's capital performance to an equivalent extent.

## **Income Equalisation**

The Company's policy on income equalisation is that grouping for income equalisation is permitted. Income equalisation in respect of a Share created or issued or sold by the Company during the Grouping Period for which an income allocation is to be made will be a capital sum representing the ACD's best estimate of the amount of income included in the issue price of a Share (or in the issue price by reference to which the selling price of that Share was determined). The amount of income equalisation per Share of each Class in each Fund is arrived at by taking the aggregate of the amounts of income included in the issue price in respect of Shares of each Class issued by the Company (or re-issued by the ACD) in the Grouping Period in question and dividing that aggregate by the number of those Shares of each Class and applying the resultant average to each of the Shares of each Class in question.

Income equalisation is refunded to Shareholders of the Fund concerned in the first allocation after an acquisition of Shares from the Company and in respect of the Shares so acquired (known for the distribution period as Group 2 Shares, all other Shares being known as Group 1 Shares) as a return of capital and it is not liable to income tax. It should be deducted from the cost of Shares for capital gains purposes.

The Grouping Periods of the Funds are set out under the heading "Accounting Reference and Other Dates" in this Prospectus.

The Depositary is not required to distribute income allocated to any Shares in any case where the ACD or the Depositary considers it necessary or appropriate to carry out or complete identification procedures in relation to the Shareholder or another person pursuant to a statutory, regulatory or European Union obligation, where relevant and applicable.

## **Distribution of Income**

The net income of Accumulation Shares allocated after the date of issue thereof will be accumulated within their Share prices as the income accrues in proportion to the property of each Fund which such Class of Shares represents and no additional Shares will be issued.

In relation to the Accumulation Shares in FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), income is accumulated in the share price net of the basic rate of UK income tax. Investors entitled to the accumulated income without the deduction of UK income tax will receive additional Shares equal to the value of the UK income tax. This allocation takes place on or around the payment date rather than the record date.

Cash distributions of income (if any) will be made to Shareholders of Income Shares on the distribution dates, details of which are set out under the heading "Accounting Reference and Other Dates" in this prospectus.

Allocations of income (if any) are made to Shareholders of Accumulation Shares on the Record Dates (as detailed 'under the heading "Accounting Reference and Other Dates" in this prospectus).

The amount available for allocation in an accounting period is calculated by:

- (a) taking the aggregate of the income received or receivable for the accounting period,
- (b) deducting the charges and expenses paid or payable out of income where appropriate for that accounting period, and
- (c) making such adjustments as the ACD considers appropriate (and after consulting the auditors as appropriate) in relation to tax and certain other issues.

In order to conduct a controlled dividend flow to Shareholders, interim distributions will be made at the ACD's discretion, up to the maximum of the distributable income available for the period. All remaining income is distributed in accordance with the FCA Rules.

If a distribution remains unclaimed for a period of six years after it has become due, it may be forfeited and will revert to the Fund.

## **Anti-Money Laundering and Fraud Prevention**

Under United Kingdom law the ACD is required to take steps to verify the identity of its clients to prevent money laundering and to reduce the possibility of fraud. The ACD may conduct searches of databases and other publicly available data in order to do this. The ACD may need to ask you to provide proof of your identity before we can accept your instructions and in these circumstances will only be able to return the proceeds of your investment, make income payments or transfer Shares to another person or body provided the ACD has received proof of your identity acceptable to us.

The ACD shall not be liable for any Share price movements occurring during delays as a result of anti-money laundering requirements being satisfied.

In order to validate name, address and other personal data, the ACD may make searches with registered credit reference agencies. Such agencies may keep a record of the details of that search.

## The Issue and Redemption of Shares in the Funds

## **Dealings**

From 30 September 2024, investments in each Share Class in a Fund will only be accepted if made by an eligible institutional investor or, if made on behalf of a retail investor via a platform or where a retail investor has used the services of a Franklin Templeton approved independent financial adviser.

Requests for the issue, redemption, and Switch of Shares will normally be dealt with by the issue or cancellation of Shares by the Company. In certain circumstances, the ACD may however, in accordance with the FCA Rules, deal with such requests by selling Shares to, and/or repurchasing them from, the applicant as appropriate. The ACD is entitled to hold Shares for its own account and to satisfy requests for the sale of Shares from any holding of its own. It is required by the FCA Rules to procure the issue or cancellation of Shares by the Company where necessary to meet any obligations to sell or redeem Shares.

In addition, the ACD may from time to time make arrangements to allow Shares to be bought or sold on-line or through other communication media. At present, transfer of title by electronic communication is not accepted.

Shares in the Funds are not listed on or dealt in any stock exchange. No Bearer Shares are issued. Investors may submit requests for the issue and redemption of Shares in each Fund between 8:30am to 5:30pm UK time on normal Business Days. For any questions in relation to dealings, the Freefone number for the Client Dealer Services team is 0800 305 306 (UK only) or if calling from outside the UK, the number is +44 20 7904 1843.

Telephone calls may be recorded by the ACD, its delegates, their duly appointed agents and any of their respective related, associated or affiliated companies for record keeping, security and/or training purposes. Please see paragraph "Telephone Recording" below for further information.

Investors wishing to purchase Shares should complete an application form, and send it to the address stated therein, or to their professional financial adviser. Applications from retail investors will not be accepted unless they notify us that they are using the services of a Franklin Templeton approved independent financial adviser. Retail investors who do not use an independent financial adviser and who wish to make an investment, or (where a retail investor is an existing Shareholder) top-up or make additional investments, must do so via a platform.

Subsequent purchases of Shares may require a written and duly signed confirmation, the completion and signature of a specific form or may be made by facsimile or electronic means as may be approved from time to time, subject to the discretion of the ACD. In the event that written confirmation is required by the ACD, there may be a delay in the processing of the investment until receipt of the requested written confirmation.

Shares in each Fund will be issued at the Net Asset Value calculated by reference to the next Valuation Point (as defined in the section "Valuation" on page 105) following receipt of the application. Where an application for Shares is received before the Valuation Point on a Dealing Day, the Shares concerned will be issued at a price based on that day's valuation and Shares to satisfy an application received after that time, or on a day which is not a Dealing Day, will be issued at a price based on the valuation made on the next Dealing Day. This is known as forward pricing.

Subscriptions must be paid in the relevant class currency and the ACD may decide from time to time, with respect to specific applications for subscription, that subscription monies in cleared funds must be received on the Dealing Day, or that such subscription monies must be transmitted by electronic transfer only.

Shares may be redeemed at the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class calculated on the appropriate Dealing Day by giving notice to the address stated herein or an authorised intermediary in writing or by facsimile or electronic means, confirmed in writing subject to the discretion of the ACD, and specifying the Class, the Fund, the number of Shares to be redeemed, Fund currency amount or percentage holding of Shares to be redeemed and the account details.

Shares in each Fund will be redeemed at a price calculated by reference to the next Valuation Point following receipt of the instructions to redeem. Where instructions to redeem are received prior to the Valuation Point on a Dealing Day, the Shares concerned will be redeemed at a price based on that day's valuation and Shares to be redeemed pursuant to a redemption request received after that time, or on a day which is not a Dealing Day, will be redeemed at a price based on the valuation made on the next Dealing Day.

# **Buying Shares**

A contract note will be dispatched giving details of a transaction effected in any of the Funds. If payment is not made immediately for the issue of Shares in each Fund, it must be made within three days of the trade date. A Share Certificate will not be issued, but a Statement of Shareholding will be made available to each Shareholder at least once a year in such form as the ACD may decide.

## **Electronic Transfers**

The ACD will transmit the proceeds by electronic transfer only in respect of the settlement of redemption of Shares. In such circumstances, the ACD will make the payment to the bank account details last notified to the ACD. The redemption proceeds will be sent at the risk of the Shareholder and the ACD will not be responsible if

the electronic transfer is delayed, unless this is as a result of the ACD's negligence. The ACD reserves the right to fully investigate what has happened and will have no obligation to remit a second payment to the Shareholder until satisfied with the results of the investigation.

#### Settlement

Settlement of the subscription for or redemption of Shares in each Fund will be made not later than close of business on the third Business Day after the later of the relevant Valuation Point of the Fund concerned following the receipt by the ACD of the request to subscribe for or redeem Shares (as appropriate) or the time when the ACD has all duly executed instruments and authorisations as effect (or enable the ACD to effect) transfer of title to the Shares.

A Shareholder may be requested to produce evidence of title to their Shares in each Fund by submitting the contract note to the ACD, plus proof of the actual payment and method thereof and by fulfilling any other requirements of the ACD for this purpose.

The ACD is not required to issue payment in respect of a redemption of Shares which it has not yet received the money due on the earlier issue of those Shares or where it considers it necessary or appropriate to carry out or complete identification procedures in relation to the Shareholder or another person pursuant to a statutory, regulatory or European Union obligation, where relevant and applicable.

## **Client Money**

Apart from as set out below in the paragraph headed "Delivery versus payment exemption", any money which is received by the ACD more than 1 day prior to investment in a Fund or any money which the ACD receives from the Depositary for the purpose of settling a redemption of Shares, but where payment to the redeeming investor cannot be made immediately, will be held in accordance with the FCA's client money rules in a client money account. The ACD will deposit the cash in the UK with a banking institution authorised and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority. The bank will hold the cash on the ACD's behalf in an account separate from any money the bank holds for the ACD in its own right. If the bank becomes insolvent, the ACD will have a claim on behalf of its clients against the bank. If, however, the bank cannot pay all of its creditors, any shortfall may have to be shared pro-rata between them. In such circumstances, it may be possible to claim under the UK deposit protection scheme. This scheme covers the first £85,000 of each customer's claim against a bank or building society (Financial Services Compensation Scheme - https://www.fscs.org.uk).

No interest is payable by the ACD on monies credited to a client money bank account.

Any cash (except unclaimed distributions which may be returned to the relevant Fund) due to Shareholders which is unclaimed for a period of six years may cease to be client money and may be paid to a registered charity of the ACD's choice. The ACD will take reasonable steps to contact Shareholders regarding unclaimed cash in accordance with the requirements set out in the FCA Handbook before it makes any such payment to charity. Payment of any unclaimed balance to charity will not prevent Shareholders from claiming the money in the future.

If the client money (except for unclaimed distributions) is equal to or below a de minimis amount set by the FCA (currently £25 or less for retail Shareholders and £100 or less for professional Shareholders) the steps the ACD must take to trace the relevant Shareholders before paying the money to charity are fewer but the ACD will still make efforts to contact affected Shareholders. If in the future the ACD transfers its business to another authorised fund manager or third party, it may transfer any client money it holds at that time to that other authorised fund manager or third party without obtaining Shareholders' specific consent at that time, provided that the ACD complies with its duties under the client money rules which are set out in the FCA Handbook at the time of the transfer.

## Delivery versus payment exemption

The ACD may make use of the 'delivery versus payment (DvP) exemption' as set out in the FCA Rules, which provides for a one-day window during which money held for the purposes of settling a transaction in Shares is not treated as 'client money'. Specifically, under the DvP exemption, money received by the ACD from an investor, or money due to be paid to an investor by the ACD, need not be treated as client money if:

- (a) the ACD receives the money from an investor for the subscription of Shares and the Shares are created within the timeframes set out in the FCA Rules; or
- (b) the ACD holds the money in the course of redeeming Shares provided that the proceeds of that redemption are paid to an investor within the timeframes set out in the FCA Rules.

In the event that the ACD becomes insolvent or otherwise fails, there is a risk of loss or delay in the return of any investors' money held by the ACD which is not treated as client money. Money which is not treated as client money is not protected on the insolvency of the ACD.

### Late Settlement

In the event of late settlement of trades, the ACD reserves the right to charge interest at base rate + 2%, or such other rate as the ACD may incur in interest charges and/or at its sole discretion cancel the purchase of Shares and recover any shortfall.

# **Disclosures for Automatic Exchange of Information**

In order to comply with the legislation implementing the UK's obligations under various intergovernmental agreements relating to the automatic exchange of information to improve international tax compliance (including, where relevant and applicable, the United States provisions commonly known as FATCA, European Union directives and agreements with jurisdictions outside of the EU), the Company (or its agent) will collect and report information about Shareholders for this purpose, including information to verify their identity and tax status.

When requested to do so by the ACD or its agent, Shareholders must provide information to be passed on to HMRC, and to any relevant overseas tax authorities.

## **Publication of Share prices**

The Company will, on each Dealing Day publish the most recent price of Class EB, Class S, and Class W Shares on the website **www.franklintempleton.co.uk.** In addition, the ACD may also choose to publish certain classes of Shares in printed publications or other websites from time to time. The prices of Class Y Shares will be available from the ACD on 0800 305 306 (or +44 20 7904 1843 from outside the UK).

## Issue of Shares in Exchange for In Specie Assets and In Specie Redemptions

The ACD may arrange for the Fund to issue Shares in exchange for assets other than money, but will only do so where the ACD and Depositary are satisfied that the Fund's acquisition of those assets in exchange for the Shares would not be likely to result in any material prejudice to the interests of Shareholders of the Fund concerned.

The ACD will ensure that the beneficial interest in the assets is transferred to the Fund with effect from the issue of the Shares.

The ACD will not issue Shares in any Fund in exchange for assets that the holding of which would be inconsistent with the investment objective of that Fund.

If a Shareholder requests the redemption or cancellation of Shares, in lieu of payment of the price for the Shares in cash, the ACD may arrange for the Fund to cancel the Shares and transfer property of the relevant Fund or, if required by the Shareholder, the net proceeds of sale of the relevant property to him. This only applies however if the Shares represent at least 5% (or such lower percentage as the ACD may decide upon) of the Fund's value. Where these circumstances apply, the ACD will notify the Depositary that redemption of the Shares is to be effected by transfer of property (or sale of property) and the ACD will on receipt of such evidence of title as the ACD may require to cancel the Shares and the Depositary shall transfer the relevant property to the Shareholder (or sell the property and arrange that the net proceeds of the sale of the property are paid to the Shareholder). The property to be transferred will be selected by the ACD in consultation with the Depositary. The ACD and the Depositary must ensure that the selection is made with a view to achieving no more advantage or disadvantage to the Shareholder requesting the redemption than to the continuing Shareholders. Whether the property is transferred or sold there shall be deducted from it a cash amount which would have normally been borne by the Fund on a sale of the property.

# **Suspension of Dealings**

The ACD may with the prior agreement of the Depositary, or shall if the Depositary so requires, at any time temporarily suspend the issue and redemption of Shares in any of the Funds if it or the Depositary, in the case of any requirement by the Depositary, is of the opinion that there is a good and sufficient reason to do so having regard to the interests of Shareholders in the Fund concerned. The ACD and the Depositary must ensure that the suspension is only allowed to continue for as long as it is justified having regard to the interests of the Shareholders.

The ACD or the Depositary (as appropriate) will immediately inform the FCA of the suspension and the reasons for it and will follow this up as soon as practicable with written confirmation of the suspension and the reasons for it to the FCA.

The ACD will notify Shareholders of the Fund concerned of the suspension as soon as practicable after the suspension commences including details of the circumstances which have led to the suspension, in a clear, fair and not misleading way and giving Shareholders details of how to find further information about the suspension.

Where such suspension takes place, the ACD will publish details on its website, or other general means, sufficient details to keep Shareholders appropriately informed about the suspension, including, if known, its possible duration.

If the issue and redemption of Shares in a Fund is suspended, the obligations relating to the issue or redemption of Shares or to the valuation and pricing of Shares as contained in Section 6 of the FCA Rules will cease to apply in respect of the Fund concerned (but the ACD will comply with as much of Chapter 6.3 (Valuation and Pricing) as is practicable in light of the suspension).

Suspension will cease as soon as practicable after the circumstances leading to the suspension have ceased but the ACD and the Depositary will formally review the suspension at least every 28 days and will inform the FCA of the review and any change to the information given to Shareholders. The ACD may agree during the suspension to deal in Shares in which case all deals accepted during and outstanding prior to the suspension will be undertaken at a price calculated at the first Valuation Point after the restart of dealings in Shares.

## **Restrictions and Compulsory Transfer and Redemption**

The ACD may carry out a compulsory Conversion of all or some of the Shares of one Class into another Class where it reasonably believes it is in the best interests of Shareholders. The ACD will give Shareholders 60 days' notice before any compulsory Conversion is carried out.

The ACD may also from time to time impose such restrictions as it may think necessary for the purpose of ensuring that no Shares are acquired or held by any person in breach of the law or governmental regulation (or any interpretation of a law or regulation by a competent authority) of any country or territory or which would result in the Company (or Fund as applicable) incurring, or potentially incurring, any liability to taxation which the Company (or Fund as applicable) is not able to recoup itself or suffering any other adverse consequence. In this connection, the ACD may, inter alia, reject in its discretion any application for the purchase (including top-ups or additional investments), redemption, transfer, Conversion or Switch of Shares.

If it comes to the notice of the ACD that any Shares ("affected Shares"):

- are owned directly or beneficially in breach of any law or governmental regulation (or any interpretation of (a) a law or regulation by a competent authority) of any country or territory; or
- would result in the Company (or the relevant Fund) incurring, or potentially incurring, any liability to taxation (b) which the Company (or the relevant Fund) would not be able to recoup itself or suffering any other adverse consequence (including a requirement to register under any securities or investment or similar laws or governmental regulation of any country or territory); or
- are held in any manner by virtue of which the Shareholder or Shareholders in question is/are not qualified (c) to hold such Shares or if it reasonably believes this to be the case; or
- are owned by a Shareholder who is registered in a jurisdiction (where the Fund is not registered or (d) recognised by the relevant competent authority) whereby communication with that Shareholder by the ACD, on behalf of the Fund, might constitute a breach of the regulations in that jurisdiction (unless specific action is taken by the ACD to prevent such a communication constituting a breach):

or if the ACD is not satisfied that any Shares may not give rise to a situation discussed in (a), (b), (c) or (d) above, the ACD may give notice to the Shareholder(s) of the affected Shares requiring the transfer of such Shares to a person who is qualified or entitled to own them or that a request in writing be given for the redemption of such Shares in accordance with the COLL Sourcebook. If any Shareholder upon whom such a notice is served does not within thirty days after the date of such notice transfer their affected Shares to a person qualified to own them or submit a written request for their redemption to the ACD or establish to the satisfaction of the ACD (whose judgement is final and binding) that they or the beneficial owner are qualified and entitled to own the affected Shares, they shall be deemed upon the expiry of that 30 day period to have given a request in writing for the redemption or cancellation (at the discretion of the ACD) of all the affected Shares.

This may include a situation where a Shareholder has moved to a different jurisdiction which either does or may give rise to a situation described in (a), (b), (c) or (d) above.

It is not possible for the ACD to be fully informed of current law and regulations in every jurisdiction and accordingly in the interests of Shareholders and to be able to ensure no Shares are held or acquired by any person in breach of the law or governmental regulation (or any interpretation of a law or regulation by a competent authority) of any country or territory or which would result in any Fund incurring any liability to taxation which a Fund is not able to recoup itself or suffering any other adverse consequence. The ACD's policy will be to treat Shares of Shareholders moving to jurisdictions other than the UK or EEA States as affected Shares and may refuse to issue Shares to anyone resident outside of one of the jurisdictions.

A Shareholder who becomes aware that they are holding or own affected Shares shall immediately, unless they have already received a notice as set out above, either transfer all their affected Shares to a person qualified to own them or submit a request in writing to the ACD for the redemption of all their affected Shares.

Where a request in writing is given or deemed to be given for the redemption of affected Shares, such redemption will (if effected) be effected in the same manner as provided for in the FCA Rules.

## **Conversion and Switching of Shares**

Subject to any restrictions on the eligibility of investors for a particular Share Class, a Shareholder in a Fund may:

- (a) Convert all or some of their Shares of one Class in a Fund for another Class of Shares in the same Fund; or
- (b) Switch all or some of their Shares in one Fund for Shares in another Fund.

### (a) Conversions

Conversions will be effected by the ACD recording the change of Share Class on the Register of the Company. If a Shareholder wishes to Convert Shares they should apply to the ACD in the same manner as for a Switch as set out below. Conversions may not be effected at the next Valuation Point and may be held over and processed at a subsequent Valuation Point or ultimately to the Valuation Point immediately following the end of the relevant Fund's accounting period. For further information and to discuss the timing for the completion of Conversions please contact the ACD.

Conversions will not be treated as a disposal for capital gains tax purposes and no stamp duty reserve tax will be payable on the Conversion. This may not be the case for Conversions involving hedged Share Classes.

There is no fee on Conversions.

The number of Shares to be issued in the new Class will be calculated relative to the price of the Shares being converted from.

## (b) Switches

A Shareholder may give notice to the address as stated herein in such form as the ACD may from time to time determine ("a Switching notice") of their desire to Switch all or some of their Shares of one Class issued in respect of any Fund (the "original Shares") for Shares of another Class issued in respect of a different Fund (the "new Shares").

Upon receipt on behalf of the ACD of a Switching notice, the ACD shall arrange for the Shares to be cancelled (or, at its discretion, the ACD shall itself redeem the original Shares) and issue (or, at its discretion, the ACD shall sell to the Shareholder) the appropriate number of new Shares. The ACD may impose such restrictions as to the Classes for which a Switch may be effected.

Switching of the original Shares specified in a Switching notice shall take place at the first Valuation Point after the day upon which the Switching notice is deemed to have been received by the ACD or at such other Valuation Point as the ACD, at the request of the Shareholder giving the relevant Switching notice, may agree.

The ACD will determine the number of new Shares to be issued or sold to the Shareholder on a Switch in accordance with the following formula:

$$N = O x (CP x ER)$$
  
SP

where:

- N is the number of new Shares to be issued or sold (rounded down to the nearest whole number of smaller denomination Shares);
- O is the number of original Shares specified (or deemed to be specified) in the Switching notice which the Shareholder has requested to Switch;
- CP is the price at which a single original Share may be cancelled or redeemed as at the Valuation Point applicable to the cancellation or redemption as the case may be;
- is where the original Shares and the new Shares are designated in the same currency and, in any other case, is the exchange rate determined by the ACD in its absolute discretion (subject to the FCA Rules) as representing the effective rate of exchange between the two relevant currencies as at the date the Switching notice is received (or deemed to have been received) by the ACD having adjusted such rate as may be necessary to reflect any costs incurred by the Fund in making any transfer of assets as may be required as a consequence of such a Switch being effected; and
- SP is the price at which a single new Share may be issued or sold as at the Valuation Point applicable to the cancellation or redemption as the case may be.

The ACD is not obliged to give effect to a request for a Switch of Shares if the value of the Shares to be Switched is less than the minimum permitted transaction or if it would result in the Shareholder holding Shares of any Class of less than the minimum holding for that Class of Share.

A Shareholder who Switched Shares will not have any right to withdraw from or cancel the transaction. No charges will be made on Switching Shares, except for a charge by the ACD not exceeding any excess of the amount of preliminary charge applicable to a sale of the Shares being acquired (by reference to the current preliminary charge stated in the most recently published prospectus) over the preliminary charge paid on the original acquisition of the Shares redeemed. The ACD may adjust the number of new Shares to be issued or sold to reflect the imposition of such a Switching charge.

A Switch of Shares will be treated as a redemption and sale and will for persons subject to United Kingdom taxation be a disposal for the purposes of capital gains taxation.

# **Market Timing**

**Market timing generally:** The ACD discourages short-term or excessive trading, often referred to as "market timing." The ACD intends to seek to restrict or reject such trading or take other action, as described below, if, in the judgement of the ACD such trading may interfere with the efficient management of the portfolio of any Fund, may materially increase the Fund's transaction costs, administrative costs or taxes, or may otherwise be detrimental to the interests of the Funds and its Shareholders.

Market timing consequences: If information regarding a Shareholder's activity in a Fund or in any other Franklin Templeton fund or non-Franklin Templeton fund is brought to the attention of the ACD and based on that information the ACD or its agents in their sole discretion conclude that such trading may be detrimental to the Fund as described in this Market Timing Trading policy, the ACD may temporarily or permanently bar a Shareholder's future purchases into a Fund or, alternatively, may limit the amount, number or frequency of any future purchases and/or the method by which a Shareholder may request future purchases and redemptions (including purchases and/or redemptions by a Switch between the Funds and any other Franklin Templeton fund).

In considering a Shareholder's trading activity, the ACD may consider, among other factors, the Shareholder's trading history both directly and, if known, through financial intermediaries, in the Company, in other Franklin Templeton funds, in non-Franklin Templeton funds, or in accounts under common control or ownership.

**Market timing through financial intermediaries:** Shareholders are subject to this policy whether they are a direct Shareholder of a Fund or are investing indirectly in a Fund through a financial intermediary such as a fund supermarket, bank, an insurance company, an investment adviser, or any other distributor that acts as nominee for Shareholders subscribing the Shares in their own name but on behalf of its customers (the Shares being held in an "omnibus account").

While the ACD will encourage financial intermediaries to apply the ACD's market timing trading policy to their customers who invest indirectly in a Fund, the ACD is limited in its ability to monitor the trading activity or enforce its Market Timing Trading policy with respect to customers of financial intermediaries. For example, should it occur the ACD may not be able to detect market timing that may be facilitated by financial intermediaries or it may be difficult to identify in the omnibus accounts used by those intermediaries for aggregated purchases, exchanges and redemptions on behalf of all their customers. More specifically, unless the financial intermediaries have the ability to apply the ACD's Market Timing Trading policy to their customers through such methods as implementing short-term trading limitations or restrictions, monitoring trading activity for what might be market timing, the ACD may not be able to determine whether trading by customers of financial intermediaries is contrary to the ACD's Market Timing Trading policy.

**Risks from market timers:** Depending on various factors, including the size of the Fund, the amount of assets the fund manager typically maintains in cash or cash equivalents and the British Pounds (GBP) amount and number and frequency of trades, short term or excessive trading may interfere with the efficient management of the Fund, increase the Fund's transaction costs, administrative costs and taxes and/or impact Fund performance.

In addition, if the nature of the Fund's holdings expose the Fund to Shareholders who engage in the type of market timing trading that seeks to take advantage of possible delays between the change in the value of a Fund's holdings and the reflection of the change in the net asset value of the Fund's Shares, sometimes referred to as "arbitrage market timing," there is the possibility that such trading, under certain circumstances, may dilute the value of Shares if redeeming Shareholders receive proceeds (and buying Shareholders receive Shares) based upon the Net Asset Values which do not reflect appropriate fair value prices. Arbitrage market timers may seek to exploit possible delays between the change in the value of a Fund's holdings and the net asset value of Funds that hold significant investments in foreign securities because certain foreign markets close several hours ahead of UK markets, and in Funds that hold significant investments in small-cap securities, high-yield ("junk") bonds and other types of investments which may not be frequently traded.

The ACD is currently using several methods to reduce the risk of market timing. These methods include:

- (a) reviewing Shareholder activity for excessive trading, and
- (b) committing staff to selectively review on a continuing basis recent trading activity in order to identify trading activity that may be contrary to this Market Timing Trading policy.

For the purposes of monitoring and detecting potential market timing activity, the ACD's responsibilities will be restricted to the registered legal holder of Shares rather than any underlying beneficial holder. The ACD will co-operate in helping to deter any potential market timing activities that the registered legal holder has detected in their monitoring of their underlying beneficial holders.

**Cancellation of Market Timing Trades:** Transactions placed in violation of the ACD's Market Timing Trading policy are not necessarily deemed accepted by the ACD and may be cancelled by the ACD on the valuation days following receipt by the ACD.

### **Taxation**

The following information is only a summary of the taxation of the Funds and Shareholders based on UK tax law as at the date of preparation of this document. Unless otherwise stated, it relates only to UK tax resident Shareholders who are the beneficial owners of the shares. Please note that the tax treatment of investors depends on their individual circumstances and may be subject to change in the future. Prospective investors should seek professional advice on the potential tax consequences of acquiring, holding and selling of shares.

## **The Company**

Each Fund will generally be considered separately for UK tax purposes.

The Funds are generally exempt from UK corporation tax on capital gains realised on the disposal of investments except any gain accruing to the Funds in respect of the sale, transfer or redemption of a material interest in an offshore fund which is not a reporting fund. Such a gain will be taxed as income and not as a capital gain.

The Funds do not suffer UK corporation tax on dividends received from UK and overseas companies, subject to certain conditions being met. Most other types of income will be subject to UK corporation tax after relief for allowable expenses and interest distributions (see below). The rate of corporation tax applicable is currently 20%.

Income and gains arising from overseas investments may, in addition, be subject to tax in the relevant overseas jurisdictions at varying rates. Credit may be available against any UK corporation tax liability for foreign withholding tax suffered on income, subject to certain conditions being met.

In the case of Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund, FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), the income of the Fund is not subject to UK corporation tax to the extent such income is distributed (or treated as distributed) by the Fund as an interest distribution, either by way of cash distribution or through accumulation or re-investment in the Fund.

No deduction is made by way of withholding tax from distributions in the form of dividends or from payments on the redemption of Shares. All interest distributions will be paid without deduction of UK income tax (see Interest Distributions below).

## Stamp Duty Reserve Tax ("SDRT")

SDRT may be chargeable at 0.5% on a surrender where a Shareholder receives a non pro rata in specie payment for the Shares. The SDRT charge arising will be borne by the Shareholder.

# **Taxation of UK Resident Shareholders**

### **Dividend Distributions**

The first £500 (for tax year 2024/25) of dividends (including dividend distributions) received (or deemed to be received) by a UK resident individual in a tax year will not be subject to income tax. Above this level, the income tax rates applying to dividends will be 8.75% for basic rate taxpayers, 33.75% for higher rate taxpayers and 39.35% for additional rate taxpayers.

For Shareholders who are liable to UK corporation tax, income allocations in the form of dividend distributions are split into franked and unfranked and, if applicable, unfranked foreign elements. The franked element will not be subject to corporation tax in the hands of the corporate Shareholder. The unfranked element will be treated as an annual payment deemed to be net of income tax at a rate of 20% and will be subject to corporation tax accordingly, with credit for the income tax treated as deducted. The unfranked foreign element is treated as foreign income received after deduction of foreign tax and will be subject to corporation tax accordingly, with credit for the foreign tax deducted.

In any case where the Fund fails the qualifying investments test (broadly holds more than 60% of its funds in interest bearing or economically similar assets) at any point during the accounting period of a corporate investor then the investor must account for its holding in the fund (including any distributions) on a fair value basis under the loan relationships tax rules.

### Interest Distributions

Interest distributions are paid without UK income tax deducted at 20%. All individual Shareholders will therefore be liable to tax on their distribution received subject to the personal savings allowance detailed below.

There is a tax free Personal Savings Allowance of the first £1,000 (for tax year 2024/2025) of interest (including interest distributions) received in a tax year from all sources for individual basic rate taxpayers. For higher rate taxpayers the allowance will be £500, and for additional rate taxpayers there will be no allowance.

Shareholders holding Shares through an approved ISA or SIPP will receive interest distributions without deduction of UK tax. No tax liability arises in relation to such income.

All interest distributions will be paid without deduction of income tax so no evidence of exemption will be required.

Corporate Shareholders should account for their holdings (including any distributions received) on a fair value basis under the loan relationships tax rules.

## **Capital Gains**

Individual Shareholders resident in the UK for tax purposes may, depending on their circumstances, be liable to UK capital gains tax in respect of gains arising from the sale or other disposal of Shares (including redemption or the Switch of Shares in one Fund for those in another Fund). Individual Shareholders will not be liable to UK capital gains tax unless the aggregate gains exceed the annual exemption (£3000 for 2024/25). With effect from 30<sup>th</sup> October 2024, the excess will be charged at a rate of 18% for basic rate taxpayers and 24% for higher rate taxpayers.

Equalisation paid as part of a distribution is a return of capital and is not taxable as income in the hands of the Shareholders. This amount should be deducted from the allowable cost of the Shares for capital gains tax purposes.

UK tax resident corporate Shareholders may be subject to UK corporation tax on chargeable gains arising from sale or other disposal of Shares (including redemption or the Switch of Shares in one Fund for those in another Fund). For corporate Shareholders, indexation relief may be available in calculating any gains (but not losses) based on increases in the Retail Price Index during the period the Shares have been held.

Where the fund is a Bond Fund (fails the qualifying investments test), for corporation tax purposes, the holding should be treated as a loan relationship. Corporate Shareholders will generally be taxed on any increase (and may claim relief for any losses) on the fair value of their shareholding on an annual basis and at the date of disposal.

## **Taxation of non-UK Resident Shareholders**

All interest distributions will be paid without deduction of income tax so no evidence of non-UK tax residency will be required.

The capital gains position and income tax liabilities of non-UK resident Shareholders may be determined by the tax legislation in an overseas jurisdiction.

## **Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information**

In order to comply with legislation implementing the UK's obligations under various intergovernmental agreements relating to the automatic exchange of information to improve international tax compliance (including, where relevant and applicable, the United States provisions commonly known as FATCA, EU legislation and agreements with jurisdictions outside of the EU), the Company (or its agent) will collect information about Shareholders for this purpose, including information to verify their identity and tax status. Where required by UK regulations, the Company (or its agent) may report account information about Shareholders to HMRC, who may exchange the information with the tax authorities in the jurisdictions where the Shareholder is or appears to be tax resident, in accordance with the applicable international tax agreements.

The information which may be reported includes, in the case of an individual, the reportable person's name, address, tax identification number, date and place of birth, balance of the account and the total gross amount paid or credited to the account in respect of the relevant reporting period.

When requested to do so by the Company or its agent, Shareholders must provide certification of their tax status. If a Shareholder does not provide the necessary certification, the ACD will be required to report it to HMRC.

#### **VAT**

The Company is registered for value added tax in the UK and required to account for value added tax in accordance with current laws.

## **Additional Information**

## **Documents of the Company**

The following documents may be inspected free of charge during normal business hours on any Business Day at the office of the ACD at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL:

- the most recent annual and semi-annual reports of the Company
- the Instrument of Incorporation (and any amending documents)
- the latest prospectus
- the Service Agreement between the Company and the ACD referred to below

Shareholders may obtain copies of the above documents from the ACD. The ACD may make a charge at its discretion for copies of the material contract documents. The remaining documents are available to any person free of charge on request.

## **Material Contracts**

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have been entered into by the Company and are, or may be, material:

- the Service Agreement between the Company and the ACD; and
- the Depositary Agreement between the Company, the Depositary and the ACD.

### **Notice Provisions**

All notices or other documents sent by the Company to a Shareholder will be sent by normal post to the address noted on the Shareholder register (or in the case of joint Shareholders to the address of the first named Shareholder) or electronically to the email address most recently notified to the Company (where the shareholder has consented to the receipt of documents and notices electronically), at the ACD's discretion. All documents and remittances are sent at the risk of the Shareholder.

### **UK UCITS**

The FCA has issued a Certificate that the Company complies with the conditions necessary for it to enjoy the rights conferred to a UK UCITS by the UCITS Regulations.

## **Individual Savings Accounts ("ISAs")**

At the date of publication of this prospectus the Funds satisfy the eligibility requirements to be a qualifying investment for a stocks and shares component of an ISA.

## **Complaints**

Complaints may be made to the Compliance Manager/Officer of the ACD at Client Service, Franklin Templeton, PO Box 24064, Edinburgh, EH3 1EX. The Company will provide Shareholders with a copy of its complaints handling procedure and will investigate any complaint and provide a substantive response. If the response is not to the Shareholder's satisfaction, Shareholders have the right to refer complaints to the Financial Ombudsman Service, Exchange Tower, London E14 9SR (Website: www.financial-ombudsman.org.uk). Making a complaint will not prejudice your rights to commence legal proceedings.

Further information regarding any compensation scheme or any other investor compensation scheme of which the ACD or any Fund is a member (including, if relevant, membership through a branch) or any alternative arrangement provided, are also available on request.

# **Conflicts of Interest**

The ACD, the Investment Managers and other companies within Franklin Templeton Investments may, from time to time, act as investment managers or advisers to other funds or sub-funds which follow similar investment objectives to those of the Funds. It is therefore possible that the ACD and/or the Investment Managers may in the course of their business have potential conflicts of interest with the Company or a particular Fund or that a conflict exists between the Company and other funds managed by the ACD.

Each of the ACD and the Investment Managers will, however, have regard in such event to its obligations

under the ACD Agreement and the Investment Management Agreements respectively and, in particular, to its obligation to act in the best interests of the Company so far as practicable, having regard to its obligations to other clients, when undertaking any investment business where potential conflicts of interest may arise. Where a conflict of interest cannot be avoided, the ACD and the Investment Managers will ensure that the Company and other collective investment schemes it manages are fairly treated.

The ACD maintains a written conflict of interest policy. The ACD acknowledges that there may be some situations where the organisational or administrative arrangements in place for the management of conflicts of interest are not sufficient to ensure, with reasonable confidence, that risks of damage to the interests of the Company or its Shareholders will be prevented. Should any such situations arise the ACD will as a last resort if the conflict cannot be avoided disclose these to Shareholders in an appropriate format.

# **Strategy for the Exercise of Voting Rights**

The ACD has a strategy for determining when and how voting rights attached to ownership of scheme property are to be exercised for the benefit of each Fund. A summary of this strategy is available on the ACD's website at www.franklintempleton.co.uk as are the details of the actions taken on the basis of this strategy in relation to each Fund.

### **Best Execution**

The ACD must act in the best interests of each Fund when executing decisions to deal on behalf of the relevant Fund. The ACD's Order Execution Policy (including the Investment Advisors' best execution policy) sets out (i) the systems and controls that have been put in place and (ii) the basis upon which the ACD and the Investment Advisors will effect transactions and place orders in relation to the Company whilst complying with the ACD's obligations under the FCA Handbook to obtain the best possible result for the Company.

Details of the best execution policy are available on the ACD's website at www.franklintempleton.co.uk.

## **Remuneration Policy**

The ACD has established and applies a remuneration policy which is consistent with, and promotes sound and effective risk management. Such policy and practices must not encourage risk taking which is inconsistent with the risk profile or prospectus of the Company, and must not impair compliance with the ACD's duty to act in the best interest of the Company.

The remuneration requirements apply to categories of staff, including senior management, risk takers, control functions, and any employees receiving total remuneration that takes them into the same remuneration bracket as senior management and risk takers and whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the ACD or the Company. The remuneration includes a fixed (essentially the base salary) and variable component (annual bonuses or quarterly sales bonuses). The level of funding of the annual bonus (which can be paid in cash, equity awards or a combination of both) is dependent on overall Franklin Resources, Inc. corporate performance, is approved by a compensation committee and is granted with reference to the actual performance of the relevant individual. A significant portion of the bonus can be deferred and vesting occurs over a three year period. Payment of bonuses can also be subject to claw back provisions. The details of the up-to-date remuneration policy, including a description of how remuneration and benefits are calculated, the identity of persons responsible for awarding the remuneration and benefits, including the composition of the compensation committee is available on the Internet site: http://www.franklintempleton.co.uk (a paper copy will be made available free of charge upon request).

## Changes to the Company or the Funds

Where any changes are proposed to be made to the Company or a Fund the ACD will assess whether the change is fundamental, significant or notifiable in accordance with the FCA Rules. If the change is regarded as fundamental, Shareholder approval will be required. If the change is regarded as significant, 60 days' prior written notice will be given to Shareholders. If the change is regarded as notifiable, Shareholders will receive suitable notice of the change.

## **Telephone Recording**

Please note that the ACD may record telephone calls for training and monitoring purposes and to confirm investors' instructions. Recordings will be provided on request for a period of at least five years from the date of such recording, or, where requested by a competent regulatory authority, for a period of seven years, where we can identify the call. If you ask us to send you a recording of a particular call, we may ask for further information to help us identify the exact call to which your request relates.

## Personal Data, Privacy and Data Protection

All personal data of investors ("Personal Data") contained in the application form and all and any further personal data collected in the course of the investor's dealings and/or relationship with the ACD may be, subject to applicable local laws and regulations, collected, recorded, stored, adapted, transferred or otherwise processed and used ("Processed" or "Processing") by the ACD and other companies of Franklin Templeton, including the ultimate parent Franklin Resources, Inc. at 1 Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, California, USA, and/or its subsidiaries and associates, your financial intermediary (if any), the Depositary, the administrative agent and any other third parties (including, but not limited to, printing and mailing services) which provide services to them, any of which may be established outside the United Kingdom and/or the European Union, including the USA and India, Such Personal Data shall be Processed for the purposes of (a) account administration, (b) development of our business relationship with you, including sales and marketing of Franklin Templeton products and services, (c) anti-money laundering and counterterrorist financing identification, (d) compliance with regulatory obligations, (e) tax identification, and where appropriate, for the purposes of compliance with the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") and the Council Directive 2014/107/EU: Mandatory Automatic Exchange of Information in the Field of Taxation, and similar laws and regulations (e.g. on an OECD level). For the purposes of FATCA, or other legal compliance, may be required to disclose personal data relating to US Persons and/or non-participant financial institutions ("FFIs") to HM Revenue & Customs, who in turn will exchange this information with the Internal Revenue Service in the USA. The Company and members of the Franklin Templeton group may also use Personal Data for other purposes set forth in the Franklin Templeton Privacy and Cookies Notice (the "Privacy Notice").

The Company asks for an investor's consent to the use of information on their political opinions, religious or philosophical beliefs which may be revealed by compliance checks against politically exposed persons, as per our regulatory obligations for the above purposes. This consent is recorded in the application form.

The Privacy Notice provides further information on the Company's and Franklin Templeton's use of Personal Data, the types of Personal Data Processed, the other purposes for which Personal Data is Processed, the list of entities involved in the processing of Personal Data as well as your privacy rights (the rights of the data subjects). The Privacy Notice is available on the following website: <a href="www.franklintempleton.co.uk">www.franklintempleton.co.uk</a> in the webpage footer "Privacy Notice" or directly at: <a href="www.franklintempletonglobal.com/privacy">www.franklintempletonglobal.com/privacy</a> (a paper copy will be made available free of charge upon request). If an investor wishes to exercise the individual rights, or to raise any question, concern or complaint concerning the Privacy Notice, they may contact the ACD or alternatively, the Data Protection Officer (email address: <a href="mailto:DataProtectionOfficer@franklintempleton.com">DataProtectionOfficer@franklintempleton.com</a>) at Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited, Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6HL, United Kingdom.

Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that the Privacy Notice is subject to change at the sole discretion of the ACD.

## **Inducements and Commission**

When executing orders, or placing orders with other entities for execution, that relate to financial instruments for, or on behalf of, the Funds, an Investment Manager or the ACD (as relevant) will not accept and retain any fees, commissions or monetary benefits; or accept any non-monetary benefits, where these are paid or provided by any third party or a person acting on behalf of a third party.

The Investment Manager or ACD will return to each relevant Fund as soon as reasonably possible after receipt of any fees, commissions or any monetary benefits paid or provided by any third party or a person acting on behalf of a third party in relation to the services provided to that Fund, and disclose in the annual report the fees, commissions or any monetary benefits transferred to them.

However, the Investment Manager or ACD may accept without disclosure minor non-monetary benefits that are capable of enhancing the quality of service provided to the fund; and of a scale and nature such that they could not be judged to impair their compliance with its duty to act honestly, fairly and professionally in the best interests of each Fund.

# General

Words and expressions which are defined in the OEIC Regulations or in the FCA Rules have the same meanings where they are used in this prospectus (except where inconsistent with the context). References to such OEIC Regulations or FCA Rules or any of them or to any individual regulation or rule or to any statute or statutory instrument or other regulation or rule will be deemed to include a reference to such regulation or rule, statute, statutory instrument or other regulation or rule as from time to time amended and to any codification, consolidation or re-enactment thereof as from time to time in force.

The information contained in this prospectus is based on the ACD's understanding of current law and practice at the date of issue. Prospective investors should check with their professional adviser or the ACD that this version

has not been superseded or revised.

# **Governing Law**

All deals in Shares are governed by English law.

## **Further Information**

Requests for further information, or for clarification of any points, in relation to any of the Funds should be made to the ACD at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6HL.

# **Appendix 1**

# **Eligible Securities and Derivatives Markets**

Subject to their respective investment objectives and policies, the Funds may invest in securities listed on the eligible securities markets listed below. In addition, up to 10 per cent in value of any Fund may be invested in transferable securities which are not listed on an eligible market.

- 1. A market established in the UK, a member state of the European Union or in any other state within the EEA on which transferable securities admitted to official listing are dealt in ortraded.
- 2. The US OTC Bond Market (as regulated by The Financial Industry Regulated Authority (FINRA)).
- 3. Any market established under the rules of any of the following investment exchanges:

CountryInvestment ExchangeCountryInvestment Exchange*ArgentinaBuenos Aires Stock Exchange Bolsa de Comercia de Buenos AiresHungaryBudapest Stock ExchangeAustraliaAustralian Securities Exchange LimitedIcelandOMX Nordic ExchangeAustriaVienna Stock Exchange Wiener Borse AGIndiaNational Stock Exchange of India Bombay Stock ExchangeBahrainBahrain BourseIndonesiaIndonesia Stock ExchangeBermudaBermuda Stock ExchangeIsraelTel Aviv Stock Exchange	ia
Bolsa de Comercia de Buenos Aires  Australia Australian Securities Exchange Limited Iceland OMX Nordic Exchange  Austria Vienna Stock Exchange Wiener Borse AG  Bahrain Bahrain Bourse Indonesia Indonesia Stock Exchange Jakarta Stock Exchange	a
Austria  Vienna Stock Exchange Wiener Borse AG  Bahrain  Bahrain Bourse  India  National Stock Exchange of India Bombay Stock Exchange Indonesia Indonesia Stock Exchange Jakarta Stock Exchange	ia
Wiener Borse AG  Bahrain  Bahrain Bourse  Indonesia  Bombay Stock Exchange  Indonesia Stock Exchange  Jakarta Stock Exchange	a
Jakarta Stock Exchange	
Bermuda Bermuda Stock Exchange Israel Tel Aviv Stock Exchange	
Japan Tokyo Stock Exchange Osaka Securities Exchange Nagoya Stock Exchange Fukuoka Stock Exchange Sapporo Securities Exchange Tokyo International Financial Fu OTC Market JASDAQ Hercules	itures Exchange
Botswana Stock Exchange Jordan Amman Stock Exchange	
Brazil Bolsa de Valores do Rio de Janeiro Kazakhstan Stock Exchange BM&F BOVESPA Sao Paolo Stock Exchange	
BulgariaBulgaria Stock ExchangeKuwaitBoursa Kuwait Securities Compa (Boursa Kuwait)	any K.P.S.C.
Canada TMX Group Toronto Stock Exchange Toronto Futures Exchange Montreal Stock Exchange TSX Ventures Exchange (CDNX)  Latvia Riga Stock Exchange  Latvia Riga Stock Exchange	
Chile Santiago Stock Exchange (Bolsa de Comercio de Santiago) Electronic Exchange of Chile (Bolsa Electronica de Chile)	
China Shanghai Stock Exchange Shenzen Stock Exchange China Financial Futures Exchange China Interbank Bond Market	
Colombia Bolsa de Valores de Colombia (BVC) Mauritius Mauritius Stock Exchange	
CroatiaZagreb Stock ExchangeMexicoMexico Bolsa Mexicana de Valo Mexican Derivatives Exchange (	
Czech Prague Stock Exchange Morocco Bourse Des Valeurs de Republic	e Casablanca
Egypt The Egyptian Exchange Cairo Stock Exchange Alexandria Stock Exchange	
Estonia Tallinn Stock Exchange New Zealand New Zealand Stock Exchange New Zealand Futures Exchange New Zealand Futures and Option	
Ghana Stock Exchange Nigerian Stock Exchange	
Hong Kong Hong Kong Exchange Hong Kong Futures Exchange GEM (Growth Enterprise Market)  Norway Oslo Bors Stock Exchange	

Country	Investment Exchange	Country	Investment Exchange
Oman	Muscat Securities Market	South Africa	Johannesburg Stock Exchange Bond Market Association South Africa Futures Exchange (SAFEX) JSE Securities Exchange South Africa
		Republic of South Korea	Korean Stock Exchange Korea Exchange Incorporated KOSDAQ
Pakistan	Karachi Stock Exchange	Sri Lanka	Colombo Stock Exchange
Peru	Lima Stock Exchange	Switzerland	Six Swiss Exchange AG SWX Swiss Exchange Eurex
Philippines	Philippine Stock Exchange	Taiwan	Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Gre Tai Securities Market
Poland	Warsaw Stock Exchange (Gielda Papierow Wartosciowych w Warszawie)	Thailand	The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Qatar	Qatar Exchange	Tunisia	Tunis Stock Exchange
Romania	Bucharest Stock Exchange	Turkey	Istanbul Stock Exchange (Istanbul Menkul Kiymetler Borsasi)
**Russia	Moscow Exchange MICEX-RTS		
Saudi Arabia	Tadawul	United Arab Emirates	NASDAQ Dubai Abu Dhabi Securities Market Dubai Financial Market
Serbia	Belgrade Stock Exchange	United States	New York Stock Exchange NASDAQ Chicago Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX BX National Stock Exchange NYSE Arca NASDAQ OMX PHLX American Stock Exchange Boston Stock Exchange Pacific Stock Exchange Chicago Board of Trade (GLOBEX) Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) Chicago Mercantile Exchange Midwest Stock Exchange New York Futures Exchange New York Futures Exchange New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) Kansas City Board of Trade Philadelphia Board of Trade The over the counter market in the US*** The market in US government securities****
Singapore	Singapore Exchange	Uruguay	Stock Exchange of Montevideo
Slovakia	Bratislava Stock Exchange	Vietnam	Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (HOSE)
Slovenia	Ljubljana Stock Exchange	Sri Lanka	Colombo Stock Exchange

<sup>\*</sup>The Bolsa de Comercio de Buenos Aires in Argentina would ordinarily be considered as an Eligible Market, but as at the date of this prospectus does not currently satisfy the criteria due to currency repatriation restrictions. This may be subject to change.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Due to international sanctions, as at the date of this Prospectus, investing in or transferring in and out of Russia is not permitted.

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>Conducted by primary and secondary dealers regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and by the National Association of Securities Dealers and by banking institutions regulated by the US controller of the currency, the Federal Reserve Systems or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

<sup>\*\*\*\*\*</sup>Conducted by primary dealers selected by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

In addition to the above, regulated markets for the FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund and the FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund shall also comprise any investments listed, quoted or dealt in on any stock exchange in the US, Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand or Switzerland which is a stock exchange within the meaning of the law of the country concerned relating to stock exchanges, the market organised by the International Securities Markets Association, the market conducted by listed money market institutions as described in the Financial Services Authority publication entitled "The Regulation of the Wholesale Cash and OTC Derivatives Markets": "The Grey Paper" (as amended or revised from time to time), AIM - the Alternative Investment Market in the UK, regulated by the London Stock Exchange, the French Market for Titres de Créance Négociable (over-the-counter market in negotiable debt instruments), NASDAQ Europe, the over-the-counter market in Canadian Government Bonds regulated by the Investment Dealers Association of Canada, SESDAQ, the Russian Trading System (RTS) I and II (a Fund may only invest in equity securities which are traded on level 1 or level 2 of the relevant market; a Fund may not invest more than: (a) 30% of its net assets in equity securities which are traded on RTS I; (b) 20% of its net assets in equity securities which are traded on either RTS I or RTS II)).

Subject to their respective investment objectives and policies, the Funds may invest in the following Eligible Derivatives Markets:

## **Eligible Derivatives Markets**

UK The London Stock Exchange plc

OMLX, The London Securities and Derivatives Exchange Ltd

Overseas Abu Dhabi (ADX)

Alexandria Stock Exchange

American Stock Exchange

NASDAQ

NASDAQ Dubai

Australian Stock Exchange NASDAQ Dubai

Australian Securities Exchange (ASX Ltd)

OMX Futures Exchange

Bolsa de Valores de Colombia

New York Futures Exchange

Bolsa Mexicana de Valores

Rew York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX)

New York Stock Exchange

Boston Stock Exchange

New Zealand Stock Exchange

New Zealand Futures Exchange

Bursa Malaysia Derivatives (KLOFFE)

New Zealand Futures and Options Exchange (NZFOE)

National Stock Exchange of India

Cairo Stock Exchange NYSE Arca
Chicago Board of Trade NYSE Euronext

Chicago Board Options Exchange OMX Nordic Exchange Stockholm AB

Chicago Mercantile Exchange
China Financial Futures Exchange
Colombo Stock Exchange
Copenhagen Stock Exchange (including FUTOP)

Osaka Securities Exchange
OTC Market JASDAQ
Pacific Stock Exchange
Philadelphia Board of Trade

Dubai Financial Market (DFM)

Philadelphia Stock Exchange

Eurex Qatar Exchange

GEM (Growth Enterprise Market)

Gre Tai Securities Market

Hercules

Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange

Sapporo Stock Exchange

Sapporo Stock Exchange

Hong Kong Futures Exchange Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange ICE Futures Europe

Shanghai Securities Exchange

ICE Futures US

Shenzen Stock Exchange

 Indonesia Stock Exchange (ISX)
 Singapore Exchange (SGX)

 Istanbul Stock Exchange
 Singapore Stock Exchange

The Irish Stock Exchange
South African Futures Exchange (SAFEX)

Jakarta Stock Exchange
Stock Exchange of Thailand

Johannesburg Stock Exchange
Sydney Futures Exchange

Karachi Stock Exchange
SWX Swiss Exchange

Kansas City Board of Trade
Taiwan Stock Exchange

Korea Stock Exchange
Korea Exchange Incorporated

Taiwan Futures Exchange
Tel Aviv Stock Exchange

KOSDAQ Tokyo International Financial Futures Exchange

Lima Stock ExchangeTokyo Stock ExchangeLuxembourg Stock ExchangeToronto Stock ExchangeMEFF Renta FijaToronto Futures ExchangeMEFF Renta VariableTSX Ventures Exchange (CDNX)

Mercado de Valores de Buenos Aires S.A. (MERVAL)\* Vancouver Stock Exchange

Mexican Stock Exchange Vienna Stock Exchange/Wiener Borse AG

Mexican Derivatives Exchange (MexDer)

Zagreb Stock Exchange

Midwest Stock Exchange

The over the counter market in the US\*\*

The market in US government acquirities\*\*\*

Montreal Stock Exchange

The market in US government securities\*\*\*

Moscow Exchange

\*The Mercado de Valores de Buenos Aires S.A. (MERVAL) in Argentina would ordinarily be considered as an Eligible Market but, as at the date of this Prospectus, it does not currently satisfy the criteria due to currency repatriation restrictions. This may be subject to change.

\*\*Conducted by primary and secondary dealers regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and by the National Association of Securities Dealers and by banking institutions regulated by the US controller of the currency, the Federal Reserve Systems or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

\*\*\*Conducted by primary dealers selected by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

# **Appendix 2**

# **Investment Management and Borrowing Powers of the Company**

### **Investment Restrictions**

The scheme property of each Fund will be invested with the aim of achieving the investment objective of that Fund but subject to the limits on investment set out in Chapter 5 of the FCA Rules that are applicable to UCITS schemes, and this Prospectus. These limits apply to each Fund as summarised below:

## 1. Prudent Spread of Risk

The ACD must ensure that, taking account of the investment objectives and policy of each Fund, the scheme property of each Fund aims to provide a prudent spread of risk.

## 2. Valuation

- (a) The value of the scheme property of each Fund means the net value of the scheme property of that Fund determined in accordance with the FCA Rules, after deducting any outstanding borrowings, whether immediately due to be repaid or not.
- (b) When valuing the scheme property of each Fund:
  - (i) the time at which the valuation is being carried out ("the relevant time");
  - (ii) is treated as if it were a valuation point, but the valuation and the relevant time do not count as a valuation or a valuation point for the purposes of the FCA Rules;
  - (iii) initial outlay is regarded as remaining part of the scheme property of the Fund; and
  - (iv) if the ACD, having taken reasonable care, determines that the Fund will become entitled to any unrealised profit which has been made on account of a transaction in derivatives, that prospective entitlement is regarded as part of the scheme property of that Fund.

## 3. Cover

- (a) Where the FCA Rules allow a transaction to be entered into or an investment to be retained (for example, investment in warrants and nil and partly paid securities and the general power to accept or underwrite) only if possible obligations arising out of the investment transaction or out of the retention would not cause any breach of any limits in the FCA Rules, it must be assumed that the maximum possible liability of the Fund under any other of those rules has also to be provided for.
- (b) Where a rule in the FCA Rules permits an investment transaction to be entered into or an investment to be retained only if that investment transaction, or the retention, or other similar transactions, are covered:
  - (i) it must be assumed that in applying any of those rules, the Fund must also simultaneously satisfy any other obligation relating to cover; and
  - (ii) no element of cover must be used more than once.

### 4. Transferable Securities

- (a) A transferable security is an investment falling within article 76 (Shares, etc.), article 77 (Instruments creating or acknowledging indebtedness), article 78 (Government and public securities), article 79 (Instruments giving entitlement to investments) and article 80 (Certificates representing certain securities) of the Regulated Activities Order.
- (b) An investment is not a transferable security if the title to it cannot be transferred, or can be transferred only with the consent of a third party.
- (c) In applying paragraph 4(b) to an investment which is issued by a body corporate, and which is an investment falling within articles 76 (Shares, etc.) or 77 (Instruments creating or acknowledging indebtedness) of the Regulated Activities Order, the need for any consent on the part of the body corporate or any members or debenture holders of it may be ignored.

(d) An investment is not a transferable security unless the liability of the holder of it to contribute to the debts of the issuer is limited to any amount for the time being unpaid by the holder of it in respect of the investment.

### 5. UCITS Schemes - General

- (a) The scheme property of each Fund must, except where otherwise provided in the FCA Rules (please see below regarding investment in collective investment schemes and the use of derivatives for efficient portfolio management), only consist solely of any or all of:
  - (i) transferable securities:
  - (ii) approved money-market instruments;
  - (iii) units in collective investment schemes;
  - (iv) derivatives and forward transactions;
  - (v) deposits; and
  - (vi) movable and immovable property that is essential for the direct pursuit of the business of the Company.
- (b) Transferable securities held within each Fund must (subject to paragraph 5(c)) be:
  - (i) admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market as described below in paragraph 8(a); or
  - (ii) dealt in on an eligible market as described below in paragraph 8(b);
  - (iii) for an approved money market instrument not admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market, within 6(a)(ii) and 6(b), below; or
  - (iv) recently issued transferable securities, provided that:
    - (A) the terms of issue include an undertaking that application will be made to be admitted to an eligible market; and
    - (B) such admission is secured within a year of issue.
- (c) Not more than 10% in value of the Scheme Property is to consist of transferable securities other than those referred to in paragraph 5(b) above.
- (d) Each Fund may invest in a transferable security only to the extent that the transferable security fulfils the following criteria:
  - (i) the potential loss which each Fund may incur with respect to holding the transferable security is limited to the amount paid for it;
  - (ii) its liquidity does not compromise the ability of the ACD to comply with its obligation to redeem Shares at the request of any qualifying Shareholder;
  - (iii) reliable valuation is available for it as follows:
    - in the case of a transferable security admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market, where there are accurate, reliable and regular prices which are either market prices or prices made available by valuation systems independent from issuers;
    - (B) in the case of a transferable security not admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market, where there is a valuation on a periodic basis which is derived from information from the issuer of the transferable security or from competent investment research;
  - (iv) appropriate information is available for it as follows:
    - (A) in the case of a transferable security admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market where there is regular, accurate and comprehensive information available to the market on the transferable security or, where relevant, on the portfolio of the transferable security;

- (B) in the case of a transferable security not admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market, where there is regular and accurate information available to the ACD on the transferable security or, where relevant, on the portfolio of the transferable security;
- (v) it is negotiable, and
- (vi) its risks are adequately captured by the risk management process of the ACD.
- (e) Unless there is information available to the ACD that would lead to a different determination, a transferable security which is admitted to or dealt in on an eligible market shall be presumed:
  - (i) not to compromise the ability of the ACD to comply with its obligation to redeem shares at the request of any qualifying Shareholder; and
  - (ii) to be negotiable.
- (f) It is not intended that the Company will have an interest in any immovable property or tangible movable property.

## 6. Approved Money Market Instruments

- (a) A Fund may invest in money market instruments which are dealt in on the money market, are liquid and whose value can be accurately determined at any time ("approved money markets instruments"), provided that:
  - (i) the money market instrument is admitted to or dealt on an eligible market, or
  - (ii) the issue or issuer of the approved money market instrument is regulated for the purpose of protecting investors and savings. The issue or issuer shall be regarded as being so regulated if it fulfils the criteria in Chapter 5.2.10AR(2) of the FCA Rules, or
  - (iii) is another approved money market instrument, which fulfils the eligibility criteria set forth in Chapter 5.2.10E of the FCA Rules and the FCA has given its express approval.
- (b) For the purpose of paragraph 6(a)(ii) above, the money market instrument must further:
  - (A) be issued or guaranteed by:
    - (1) a central authority of the UK or an EEA State or; if the EEA State is a federal state, one of the members making up the federation;
    - (2) a regional or local authority of the UK or an EEA State;
    - (3) the Bank of England, the European Central Bank or a central bank of an EEA State;
    - (4) the European Union or the European Investment Bank;
    - (5) a non-EEA State or, in the case of a federal state, one of the members making up the federation:
    - (6) a public international body to which the UK or one or more EEA States belong, or
  - (B) be issued by a body, any securities of which are dealt in on an eligible market; or
  - (C) be issued or guaranteed by an establishment, which is:
    - (1) subject to prudential supervision in accordance with criteria defined by Community law, or
    - subject to and complies with prudential rules considered by the FCA to be at least as stringent as those laid down by Community law.

However, up to 10% of the Scheme Property of each Fund may be invested in non-approved money market instruments.

## 7. Closed End Funds Constituting Transferable Securities

- (a) A unit in a closed end fund shall be taken to be transferable security for the purposes of investment by a UCITS scheme such as the Company, provided it fulfils the criteria for transferable securities set out in paragraph 5(d), and either:
  - (i) where the closed end fund is constituted as an investment company or a unit trust:
    - (A) it is subject to corporate governance mechanism applied to companies; and
    - (B) where another person carries out asset management activity on its behalf, that person is subject to national regulation for the purpose of investor protection; or
  - (ii) where the closed end fund is constituted under the law of contract:
    - (A) it is subject to corporate governance mechanisms equivalent to those applied to companies; and
    - (B) it is managed by a person who is subject to national regulation for the purpose of investor protection.

# 8. Eligible Markets Regime

- (a) A market is eligible for the purposes of the rules if it is:
  - (i) a regulated market; or
  - (ii) a market in the UK or an EEA State which is regulated, operates regularly and is open to the public.
- (b) A market not falling within paragraph 8(a) is eligible for the purposes of the FCA Regulations if:
  - (i) the ACD, after consultation with and notification to the Depositary, decides that market is appropriate for investment of, or dealing in, the scheme property;
  - (ii) the market is included in a list in the Prospectus; and
  - (iii) the Depositary has taken reasonable care to determine that:
    - (A) adequate custody arrangements can be provided for the investment dealt in on that market; and
    - (B) all reasonable steps have been taken by the ACD in deciding whether that market is eligible.
- (c) In paragraph 8(b) a market must not be considered appropriate unless it is regulated, operates regularly, is recognised by an overseas regulator, is open to the public, is adequately liquid and has adequate arrangements for unimpeded transmission of income and capital to or for the order of investors.

## 9. Transferable Securities Linked to Other Assets

- (a) A UCITS scheme may invest in any other investment which shall be taken to be transferable security for the purposes of investment by a UCITS scheme provided the investment:
  - (i) fulfils the criteria for transferable securities set out in Chapter 5.2.7AR of the FCA Rules; and
  - (ii) is backed by or linked to the performance of other assets, which may differ from those in which a UCITS scheme can invest.
- (b) Where an investment in 9(a) contains an embedded derivative component (see Chapter 5.2.19R(3A) of the FCA Rules), the requirements of this section with respect to derivatives and forwards will apply to that component.

## 10. Spread: General

- (a) This rule on spread does not apply in respect of a transferable security or an approved money-market instrument to which COLL 5.2.12R (Spread: government and public securities) applies (see paragraph 12 below).
- (b) For the purposes of this requirement companies included in the same group for the purposes of consolidated accounts as defined in accordance with section 399 of the Companies Act 2006, Directive 2013/34/EU, or in the same group in accordance with international accounting standards are regarded as a single body.
- (c) Not more than 20% in value of the scheme property of a Fund is to consist of deposits within a single body.
- (d) Not more than 5% in value of the scheme property of a Fund is to consist of transferable securities or approved money-market instruments issued by any single body.
- (e) The limit of 5% in paragraph 10(d) is raised to 10% in respect of up to 40% in value of the scheme property of a Fund. Covered bonds need not be taken into account for the purpose of applying the limit of 40%.
- (f) The limit of 5% in 10(d) is raised to 25% in value of the scheme property in respect of covered bonds, provided that when a Fund invests more than 5% in covered bonds issued by a single body, the total value of covered bonds held must not exceed 80% in value of the Fund's scheme property.
- (g) In applying paragraph 10(d) and (e) certificates representing certain securities are to be treated as equivalent to the underlying security.
- (h) The exposure to any one counterparty in an OTC derivative transaction must not exceed 5% in value of the scheme property of a Fund. This limit is raised to 10% where the counterparty is an approved bank.
- (i) Not more than 20% in value of the scheme property is to consist of transferable securities and approved money market instruments issued by the same group (as referred to in paragraph 10(b)).
- (j) In applying the limits in paragraph 10 (c), (d), (e), (g) and (h), and subject to (f), not more than 20% in value of the scheme property is to consist of any combination of two or more of the following:
  - (i) transferable securities (including covered bonds) or approved money-market instruments issued by; or
  - (ii) deposits made with; or
  - (iii) exposures from OTC derivatives transactions made with a single body.

# 11. Counterparty Risk and Issuer Concentration

- (a) The ACD must ensure that counterparty risk arising from an OTC derivative is subject to the limits set out in paragraphs 10(h) and 10(j) above.
- (b) When calculating the exposure of a Fund to a counterparty in accordance with the limits in paragraph 10(h) the ACD must use the positive mark-to-market value of the OTC derivative contract with that counterparty.
- (c) The ACD may net the OTC derivative positions of a Fund with the same counterparty, provided they are able legally to enforce netting agreements with the counterparty on behalf of the Fund.
- (d) The netting agreements in paragraph 11(c) above are permissible only with respect to OTC derivatives with the same counterparty and not in relation to any other exposures the Fund may have with that same counterparty.
- (e) The ACD may reduce the exposure of scheme property to a counterparty of an OTC derivative through the receipt of collateral. Collateral received must be sufficiently liquid so that it can be sold quickly at a price that is close to its pre-sale valuation.
- (f) The ACD must take collateral into account in calculating exposure to counterparty risk in accordance with the limits in paragraph 10(h) when it passes collateral to an OTC counterparty on behalf of a Fund.

- (g) Collateral passed in accordance with paragraph 11(f) may be taken into account on a net basis only if the ACD is able legally to enforce netting arrangements with this counterparty on behalf of that Fund.
- (h) In relation to the exposure arising from OTC derivatives as referred to in paragraph 10(h) the ACD must include any exposure to OTC derivative counterparty risk in the calculation.
- (i) The ACD must calculate the issuer concentration limits referred to in paragraph 10(j) on the basis of the underlying exposure created through the use of OTC derivatives pursuant to the commitment approach.

## 12. Spread: Government and Public Securities

- (a) Subject to 12(d) the following paragraph applies in respect of a transferable security or an approved money-market instrument ("such securities") that is issued by:
  - (i) the UK or an EEA State;
  - (ii) a local authority of the UK or an EEA State;
  - (iii) a non-EEA State; or
  - (iv) a public international body to which the UK or one or more EEA States belong.
- (b) With the exception of FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund and Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), no more than 35% in value of the scheme property of a Fund will be invested in such securities issued by any one body. Subject to this there is no limit on the amount which may be invested in such securities or in any one issue.
- (c) FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund and Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) may invest more than 35% in value of its scheme property in such securities issued by any one body provided that:
  - (j) before any such investment is made, the ACD has consulted with the Depositary and as a result considers that the issuer of such securities is one which is appropriate in accordance with the investment objectives of the relevant Fund;
  - (ii) no more than 30% in value of the scheme property of the relevant Fund consists of such securities of any one issue; and
  - (iii) the scheme property of the relevant Fund includes such securities issued by that or another issuer of at least six different issues.
- (d) In this rule, in relation to such securities:
  - (i) issue, issued and issuer include guarantee, guaranteed and guarantor; and
  - (ii) an issue differs from another if there is a difference as to repayment date, rate of interest, guarantor or other material terms of issue.
- (e) Notwithstanding paragraph 10(a) and subject to paragraph 12(b) and 12(c), in applying the 20% limit in paragraph 10(i) with respect to a single body, such securities issued by that body shall be taken into account.
- (f) FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund may invest over 35% of its scheme property in the securities issued by or on behalf of or guaranteed by those issuers listed below:
  - (i) the government of or a local authority in the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland; or
  - (ii) the Scottish Administration; or
  - (iii) the Executive Committee of the Northern Ireland Assembly; or
  - (iv) the National Assembly of Wales.

- (g) FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund may invest over 35% of its scheme property in the securities issued by the governments of the countries which are members of the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
- (h) Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) may invest over 35% of its scheme property in the securities issued by or on behalf of or guaranteed by those issuers listed below:

the Government of the United Kingdom (including the Scottish Administration, the Executive Committee of the Northern Ireland Assembly, the National Assembly of Wales), Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United States or by one of the following international organisations: World Bank, Asian Development Bank (ADB), Council of Europe Development Bank, Deutsche Ausgleichsbank (DTA), Eurofima, European; Bank for Reconciliation and Development (EBRD), European Investment Bank (EIB), Inter-American Development Bank (IADB), International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KFW), LCR Finance plc, and the Nordic Investment Bank (NIB).

### 13. Investment in Collective Investment Schemes

- (a) A Fund may invest up to 10% of the value of its scheme property in units in collective investment schemes ("second scheme") provided the second scheme satisfies all of the following conditions:
- (b) The second scheme must:
  - (i) be a UK UCITS or satisfy the conditions necessary for it to enjoy the rights conferred by the UCITS Directive as implemented in the EEA; or
  - (ii) be a recognised scheme that is authorized by the supervisory authorities of Guernsey, Jersey or the Isle of Man (provided the requirements of COLL 5.2.13AR are met); or
  - (iii) be authorised as a non-UCITS retail scheme (provided the requirements of COLL 5.2.13AR(1), (3) and (4) are met);
  - (iv) is authorised in an EEA State (provided the requirements of COLL 5.2.13AR are met);
  - (v) is authorised by the competent authority of an OECD member country (other than an EEA State) which has:
    - (A) signed the IOSCO Multilateral Memorandum of Understanding; and
    - (B) approved the scheme's management company, rules and depositary and custodian arrangements

(provided the requirements of COLL 5.2.13AR are met).

- (c) the second scheme complies where relevant with paragraph 13(e) below (Investment in other group schemes):
- (d) the second scheme has terms which prohibit more than 10% in value of the scheme property consisting of units in collective investment schemes; and
- (e) The scheme property attributable to a Fund may include shares in another Fund of the Company (the "Second Fund") subject to the requirements of the following provisions.
- (f) A Fund may invest in or dispose of shares of a Second Fund provided that:
  - (i) the Second Fund does not hold shares in any other Fund;
  - (ii) the requirements set out in paragraph 13(g) are complied with; and
  - (iii) the investing or disposing Fund must not be a feeder UCITS to the Second Fund.

The maximum level of management fees of the second scheme or Second Fund in which a Fund invests is 2% (excluding any performance fees).

(g) A Fund must not invest in or dispose of units in a Second Fund or a second scheme, which is managed or operated by (or in the case of an OEIC whose authorised corporate director is), the ACD, or an associate of ACD, where there is a charge in respect of such investment or disposal, unless the ACD pays to the Fund the amount referred to in paragraph 13(h) by the close of business on the fourth business day next after that agreement to buy or to sell.

- (h) On investment, the amount referred to in paragraph 13(g) is either:
  - (i) the amount by which the consideration paid by the Fund for the units in the Second Fund or second scheme exceeds the price that would have been paid for the benefit of the Second Fund or second scheme had the units been newly issued or sold by it; or
  - (ii) if such price cannot be ascertained by the ACD, the maximum amount of any charge permitted to be made by the seller of units in the second scheme or Second Fund;
  - (iii) on disposal, the amount referred to in paragraph 13(g) is the amount of any charge made for the account of the authorised fund manager or operator of the Second Fund or second scheme or an associate of any of them in respect of the disposal; and
- (i) In this paragraph 13:
  - (i) any addition to or deduction from the consideration paid on the acquisition or disposal of units in the Second Fund or second scheme, which is applied for the benefit of the Second Fund or second scheme and is, or is like, a dilution levy made in accordance with the FCA Rules is to be treated as part of the price of the units and not as part of any charge; and
  - (ii) any switching charge made in respect of an exchange of units in one fund or separate part of the second scheme for units in another fund or separate part of that scheme is to be included as part of the consideration paid for the units.

# 14. Investment in Warrants and Nil and Partly-Paid Securities

A transferable security or an approved money-market instrument on which any sum is unpaid falls within a power of investment only if it is reasonably foreseeable that the amount of any existing and potential call for any sum unpaid could be paid by the Fund, at the time when payment is required, without contravening the FCA Rules. Not more than 5% of the Scheme Property of the Fund is to consist of warrants.

### 15. Derivatives

Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund, FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund, FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund, FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund, FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) and FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) may use derivatives in pursuit of their investment objectives.

It is not currently intended that derivatives will be used for any purpose other than the efficient portfolio management of Franklin Mutual Shares Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund, FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund, FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund, FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment), FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund, FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund, FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund, FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund and FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund (for the purpose of this paragraph only, the "relevant Funds").

However, the relevant Funds may, in the future and subject to the ACD giving not less than 60 days' notice to Shareholders in the relevant Funds, use derivatives in pursuit of its investment objective as well as for efficient portfolio management. When the relevant Fund uses derivatives for the purposes of efficient portfolio management, it will comply with the restrictions set out in this section.

It is not intended that the use of derivatives for efficient portfolio management will cause a Fund's existing risk profile to rise. Where the use of derivatives in pursuit of a Fund's investment objective may cause a Fund to have higher volatility or otherwise cause its existing risk profile to rise, a notification to that effect shall be included within the 60-day prior notice to be sent to Shareholders in a Fund.

A Fund that may use derivatives in pursuit of its investment objective, as well as a Fund that may use them for efficient portfolio management purposes, must do so in accordance with the following:

- (a) A transaction in derivatives or a forward transaction must not be effected for the Fund unless (i) the transaction is of a kind specified below and (ii) the transaction is covered, as stated below.
- (b) The Funds may enter into a range of swap transactions in pursuit of their investment objective (including total return swaps) or other financial derivatives instruments with similar characteristics. The underlying assets and investment strategies or such swaps, to which exposure will be gained, are described in the investment objective and policy of the Fund.

- (c) The counterparty to such transactions does not have discretion over the composition or management of a Fund's portfolio or over the underlying of financial derivative instruments used by a Fund. Counterparty approval is not required in relation to any investment decision made by a Fund.
- (d) The counterparties of these transactions will be highly rated financial institutions specialising in these types of transactions and approved by the ACD.

Where a Fund invests in derivatives, the exposure to the underlying assets must not exceed the limits in the paragraphs on spread save as provided below. Where a transferable security or approved money market instrument embeds a derivative, this must be taken into account for the purposes of complying with Chapter 5.2 of the FCA Rules. Where the Fund invests in an index based derivative, provided the index is a relevant index as set out in the paragraph on relevant indices below, and subject to the ACD taking account of the rules on prudent spread of risk, the underlying constituents of the index do not have to be taken into account for the purposes of the paragraphs on spread. The rebalancing frequency of the underlying index of such financial derivative instruments is determined by the index provider and there is no cost to the Fund when the index itself rebalances.

- (e) Only certain types of derivatives and forward transactions can be effected for a Fund, namely:
  - (i) transactions in approved derivatives (i.e. effected on or under the rules of an eligible derivatives market); and
  - (ii) permitted over the counter transactions in derivatives.

The underlying investments must consist of any or all of the following (to which the Fund is dedicated): transferable securities; permitted money market instruments; permitted deposits; permitted derivatives; permitted collective investment scheme units; financial indices; interest rates; foreign exchange rates and currencies. A transaction in an approved derivative must not be effected other than on or under the rules of an eligible derivatives market. A derivatives transaction must not cause the Fund to diverge from its stated investment objectives and must not be entered into if the intended effect is to create the potential for an uncovered sale of one or more transferable securities, money market instruments, collective investment scheme units or derivatives, provided that a sale is not to be considered as uncovered if the conditions stated in (g) below are satisfied.

Any forward transactions must be with an approved counterparty.

- (f) A derivatives or forward transaction which will or could lead to delivery of property for the account of the Fund may be entered into only if such property can be held by the Fund and the ACD having taken reasonable care determines that delivery of the property under the transaction will not occur or will not lead to a breach of the FCA Rules.
- (g) Except in relation to deposits, no agreement by or on behalf of a Fund to dispose of scheme property or rights may be made unless the obligation to make the disposal (and any other similar obligation) could immediately be honoured by the Fund by delivery of property or the assignment (or, in Scotland, assignation) of rights and the property and rights are owned by the Fund at the time of the agreement. This does not apply where:
  - (i) the risks of the underlying financial instrument of a derivative can be appropriately represented by another financial instrument and the underlying financial instrument is highly liquid; or
  - (ii) the ACD or Depositary has the right to settle the derivative in cash, and cover exists within the scheme property which is cash; liquid debt instruments with appropriate safeguards; or other highly liquid assets having regard to their correlation with the underlying of the financial derivative instruments, subject to appropriate safeguards.

An asset may be considered as liquid where the instrument can be converted into cash in no more than seven business days at a price closely corresponding to the current valuation of the financial instrument on its own market.

- (h) Any transaction in an OTC derivative must be:
  - (i) in a future, option or contract for differences;
  - (ii) with an approved counterparty (namely an eligible institution, an approved bank or a person whose FCA permission or Home State authorisation permits it to enter into the transaction as a principal off-exchange); and
  - (iii) on approved terms (the terms of the transaction in derivatives are approved only if the ACD

     (a) carries out, at least daily, a reliable and verifiable valuation in respect of that transaction corresponding to its fair value and which does not rely only on market quotations by the counterparty, and (b) can enter into one or more further transactions to sell, liquidate or close out that transaction at any time, at its fair value;
  - (iv) capable of reliable valuation (i.e. if the ACD having taken reasonable care determines that, throughout the life of the derivative (if the transaction is entered into), it will be able to value the investment concerned with reasonable accuracy on the basis of an up-to-date market value which the ACD and the Depositary have agreed is reliable or, if this price is not available, on the basis of a pricing model which the ACD and the Depositary have agreed uses an adequate recognised methodology); and
  - (v) subject to verifiable valuation (i.e. if the verification of the valuation is carried out by an appropriate third party which is independent from the counterparty of the derivative, at an adequate frequency and in such a way that the ACD is able to check it, or by a department within the ACD which is independent from the department in charge of managing the scheme property of the Fund and which is adequately equipped for such a purpose).

### 16. Cash Collateral

- (a) Cash collateral received in the context of OTC transactions in derivatives may be:
  - (i) placed on deposit with entities prescribed in the UCITS Regulations;
  - (ii) invested in high-quality government bonds;
  - (iii) used for the purpose of reverse repo transactions provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the UCITS is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on an accrued basis; and
  - (iv) invested in short-term money market funds as defined in the Money Market Funds Regulations.
- (b) To the extent required by the COLL Sourcebook, reinvestments of such cash collateral must be taken into account for the calculation of the Funds' global exposure.
- (c) Cash collateral received and reinvested prior to 18 February 2013 may remain invested in the following until 17 February 2014 after which it must comply with paragraph 16(a) above:
  - (i) money market instruments as defined in the Money Market Funds Regulations; and
  - (ii) bonds issued or guaranteed by first class issuers offering an adequate liquidity.
- (d) With effect from 18 February 2014, when cash collateral received is reinvested in reverse repurchase agreement transactions, the full amount of cash must be recallable at any time.
- (e) Collateral received from the counterparty to an OTC Derivative transaction may be offset against gross counterparty exposure provided it meets a range of standards, including those for liquidity, valuation, issuer credit quality, correlation and diversification. In offsetting collateral, its value is reduced by a percentage (a "haircut") which provides, amongst other things, a buffer against short term fluctuations in the value of the exposure and of the collateral. Collateral levels are maintained to ensure that net counterparty exposure does not exceed the limits per counterparty as set out. Collateral is received in the form of securities and cash. Non-cash collateral received is not sold, reinvested or pledged.
- (f) The reinvestment of cash collateral received is restricted to high quality government bonds, deposits, reverse repos and short term money market funds, in order to mitigate the risk of losses on reinvestment. For funds which received collateral for at least 30% of their assets, the associated liquidity risk is assessed.

# 17. Valuation of OTC Derivatives

- (a) The ACD must:
  - (i) establish, implement and maintain arrangements and procedures which ensure appropriate, transparent and fair valuation of the exposures of a Fund to OTC derivatives; and

- (ii) ensure that the fair value of OTC derivatives is subject to adequate, accurate and independent assessment.
- (b) Where the arrangements and procedures referred to above involve the performance of certain activities by third parties, the ACD must comply with the requirements in SYSC 8.1.13R (Additional requirements for a management company) and COLL 6.6A.4R (4) to (6) (Due diligence requirements of AFMs of UCITS schemes).
- (c) The arrangements and procedures referred to in this rule must be:
  - (i) adequate and proportionate to the nature and complexity of the OTC derivative concerned; and
  - (ii) adequately documented.

## 18. Risk Management

- (a) The ACD uses a risk management process, enabling it to monitor and measure at any time the risk of a Fund's positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of a Fund.
- (b) The following details of the risk management process must be regularly notified by the ACD to the FCA and at least on an annual basis:
  - (i) a true and fair view of the types of derivatives and forward transactions to be used within a Fund together with their underlying risks and any relevant quantitative limits; and
  - (ii) the methods for estimating risks in derivative and forward transactions.

# 19. Significant Influence

- (a) The Company must not acquire transferable securities issued by a body corporate and carrying rights to vote (whether or not on substantially all matters) at a general meeting of that body corporate if:
  - (i) immediately before the acquisition, the aggregate of any such securities held by the Company gives the Company power to influence significantly the conduct of business of that body corporate; or
  - (ii) the acquisition gives the Company that power.
- (b) For the purpose of paragraph 19(a)(ii) the Company is to be taken to have power significantly to influence the conduct of business of a body corporate if it can, because of the transferable securities held by it, exercise or control the exercise of 20% or more of the voting rights in that body corporate (disregarding for this purpose any temporary suspension of voting rights in respect of the transferable securities of that body corporate).

### 20. Concentration

The Company:

- (a) must not acquire transferable securities (other than debt securities) which:
  - (i) do not carry a right to vote on any matter at a general meeting of the body corporate that issued them; and
  - (ii) represent more than 10% of those securities issued by that body corporate;
- (b) must not acquire more than 10% of the debt securities issued by any single issuing body;
- (c) must not acquire more than 25% of the units in a collective investment scheme;
- (d) must not acquire more than 10% of the approved money-market instruments issued by any single body;
- (e) need not comply with the limits in paragraphs 20(b) to 20(d) of this part of this Appendix if, at the time of the acquisition, the net amount in issue of the relevant investment cannot be calculated.

# 21. Cash and Near Cash

- (a) At times it may be appropriate for the property of a Fund not to be fully invested and for cash or near cash (meaning essentially, certain types of deposit) to be held. Cash and near cash must not be retained in the scheme property of a Fund except to the extent that, where this may reasonably be regarded as necessary in order to enable:
  - (i) the pursuit of the Fund's investment objectives; or
  - (ii) redemption of shares; or

141

- (iii) efficient management of the Fund in accordance with its investment objectives; or
- (iv) other purposes which may reasonably be regarded as ancillary to the investment objectives of the Fund.
- (b) During the period of any initial offer, the scheme property of a Fund may however consist of cash and near cash without limitation.

### 22. General Powers to Borrow

- (a) The Company may in accordance with this paragraph and paragraph 21 borrow money for the use of a Fund on terms that the borrowing is to be repayable out of the Scheme Property of that Fund. This power to borrow is subject to the obligation of the Fund to comply with any restriction in the Instrument.
- (b) The Company may borrow under paragraph 22(a) only from an eligible institution or an approved bank as set out in the FCA Rules.
- (c) The ACD must ensure that any borrowing is on a temporary basis and that borrowings are not persistent, and for this purpose the ACD must have regard in particular to:
  - (i) the duration of any period of borrowing; and
  - (ii) the number of occasions on which resort is had to borrowing in any period.
- (d) The ACD must ensure that no period of borrowing exceeds three months, whether in respect of any specific sum or at all, without the prior consent of the Depositary. The Depositary may only give its consent as required under this paragraph on such conditions as appear to the Depositary appropriate to ensure that the borrowing does not cease to be on a temporary basisonly.
- (e) These borrowing restrictions do not apply to "back to back" borrowing for currency hedging purposes.
- (f) A company must not issue any debenture unless it acknowledges or creates a borrowing that complies with this paragraph 22.

## 23. Borrowing Limits

- (a) The ACD must ensure that a Fund's borrowing does not, on any business day, exceed 10% of the value of the scheme property of that Fund.
- (b) This paragraph does not apply to "back to back" borrowing for currency hedging purposes.
- (c) In this paragraph 23, "borrowing" includes, as well as borrowing in a conventional manner; any other arrangement (including a combination of derivatives) designed to achieve a temporary injection of money into the scheme property in the expectation that the sum will be repaid.

## 24. Restrictions on Lending of Money

- (a) None of the money in the scheme property of a Fund may be lent and, for the purposes of this prohibition, money is lent by a Fund if it is paid to a person ("the payee") on the basis that it should be repaid, whether or not by the payee.
- (b) Acquiring a debenture is not lending for the purposes of paragraph 24(a) nor is the placing of money on deposit or in a current account.
- (c) Paragraph 24(a) does not prevent the Company from providing an officer of the Company with funds to meet expenditure to be incurred by him for the purposes of the Company (or for the purposes of enabling him properly to perform their duties as an officer of the Company) or from doing anything to enable an officer to avoid incurring such expenditure.

# 25. Restrictions on Lending of Property Other than Money

- (a) The scheme property of a Fund other than money must not be lent by way of deposit or otherwise.
- (b) Transactions permitted by paragraph 30 are not lending for the purposes of paragraph 23(a).
- (c) The scheme property of a Fund must not be mortgaged.

## 26. Underwriting

Underwriting and sub-underwriting contracts and placings may also, subject to certain conditions set out in the FCA Rules, be entered into for the account of the Company.

### 27. Guarantees and Indemnities

- (a) The Company or the Depositary for the account of the Company must not provide any guarantee or indemnity in respect of the obligation of any person.
- (b) None of the scheme property of a Fund may be used to discharge any obligation arising under a guarantee or indemnity with respect to the obligation of any person.
- (c) Paragraphs 22 (a) and (b) do not apply to:
  - (i) any indemnity or guarantee given for margin requirements where the derivatives or forward transactions are being used in accordance with Chapter 5 of the FCA Rules.
  - (ii) any indemnity falling within the provisions of regulation 62(3) of the OEIC Regulations (Exemptions from liability to be void).
  - (iii) an indemnity (other than any provision in it which is void under regulation 62 of the OEIC Regulations) given to the Depositary against any liability incurred by it as a consequence of the safekeeping of any of the scheme property by it or by anyone retained by it to assist it to perform its function of the safekeeping of the scheme property; and
  - (iv) an indemnity given to a person winding up a scheme if the indemnity is given for the purposes of arrangements by which the whole or part of the property of that scheme becomes the first property of the Company and the holders of units in that scheme become the first shareholders in the Company.

# 28. Efficient Portfolio Management

- (a) Funds may use derivative transactions or forward currency transactions for the purpose of efficient portfolio management (EPM). However; such transactions must be:
  - economically appropriate (see (b) below);
  - (ii) fully covered by assets within the Fund (see (d) below); and
  - (iii) used to achieve one or more of the following:
    - (A) a reduction in risk,
    - (B) a reduction in cost,
    - (C) the generation of additional capital or income with a risk level which is consistent with the risk profile of the Fund and the risk diversification rules laid down in the FCA Rules (see (c) below).

Where a transaction for a Fund relates to the potential acquisition of transferable securities, the ACD must ensure that, where the Fund intends to invest in the said securities, it does so within a reasonable time unless it is not considered efficient to do so.

- (b) A transaction will be economically appropriate (for the purpose of 28(a) (i) above) if it is one which (alone or in combination with one or more others), in the ACD's reasonable opinion, may be realised in a cost effective way.
- (c) Transactions deemed to offer an appropriate level of risk under paragraph 28(a)(iii)(C) above may include, but are not limited to:
  - (i) transactions which take advantage of pricing imperfections in relation to the acquisition and disposal (or disposal and acquisition) of rights in relation to the same or equivalent property; or
  - (ii) transactions where the Fund receives a premium for the writing of a covered call or put option, even if the benefit arising is obtained at the expense of the chance of greater possible future benefit.
- (d) No transaction may be entered into for the purpose of efficient portfolio management unless the maximum potential exposure created by the transaction is covered to the extent required by the FCA Rules. The maximum potential exposure may be covered by cash or other assets of the Fund, which are reasonably deemed by the ACD to provide appropriate cover for the exposure; they may be so regarded even if there is not complete congruence between the cover and the exposure.

(e) For the purposes of efficient portfolio management, any derivatives transactions must be in a derivative which is traded or dealt in on an Eligible Derivatives Market (and effected in accordance with the rules of that market), or a "synthetic future" (i.e. a composite derivative created out of two separate options) or an off-exchange option.

Forward transactions must be entered into with approved counterparties (as defined in the Glossary).

- (f) The ACD uses a risk management process, as reviewed by the Depositary, enabling it to monitor and measure as frequently as appropriate the risk of a Fund's positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of the Fund. Before using the process, the ACD will notify the FCA of the methods for estimating risks in derivative and forward transactions and the types of derivatives and forwards to be used within a Fund together with their underlying risks and any relevant quantitative limits.
- (g) The ACD measures the creditworthiness of counterparties as part of the risk management process. The counterparties of these transactions will be highly rated financial institutions specialising in these types of transactions and approved by the ACD. A counterparty may be an associate of the ACD which may give rise to a conflict of interest.
- (h) Any income or capital generated by EPM (out of direct or indirect costs) will be paid to the Fund.

### 29. General

- (a) It is not intended that any Fund will have an interest in any immovable property or tangible movable property.
- (b) A potential breach of any of these limits does not prevent the exercise of rights conferred by investments held by the Fund but, in the event of a consequent breach, the ACD must then take such steps as are necessary to restore compliance with the investment limits as soon as practicable having regard to the interests of Shareholders.

## 30. Stock Lending

- (a) As an extension of EPM explained above, the Depositary at the request of the ACD, may enter into certain stock lending transactions and repo contracts in respect of a Fund when it reasonably appears to the ACD to be appropriate to do so with a view to generating additional income and capital for a Fund with an acceptable degree of risk. Briefly, such transactions are those where the Depositary delivers securities which are the subject of the transaction in return for which it is agreed that securities of the same kind and amount should be redelivered to the Depositary at a later date. The Depositary at the time of delivery receives assets as collateral to cover against the risk of the future redelivery not being completed. There is no limit on the value of Scheme Property which may be the subject of stock lending transactions.
- (b) Such transactions must always comply with the requirements of the Income and Corporation Taxes
  Act 1988 and any secondary legislation made under that Act. The transactions must also comply with
  the requirements of the FCA Rules and the guidance on stock lending issued by the FCA as
  amended from time to time.

# 31. Stock lending collateral

- (a) Collateral is typically a minimum of 100% of the market value of the lent securities.
- (b) The Funds do not currently expect to accept or reinvest cash collateral, although it has the ability to do so.
- (c) The Funds may accept non-cash collateral of the following types:
  - (i) negotiable debt obligations (collectively, "sovereign bonds") having a credit rating of at least AA from S&P and/or Aa3 from Moody's, respectively;
  - (ii) UK Equity Securities listed on the FTSE250;
  - (iii) other equities listed on UK or European exchanges at the ACD's discretion.
- (d) Non-cash collateral received by a Fund will not be sold, re-invested or pledged.

#### 32. Reverse Repurchase Agreements

- (a) Where a Fund enters into a reverse repurchase contract, it will have the right to recall the full amount of cash or to terminate the reverse repurchase contract on either an accrued or a mark-to-market basis at any time. Where the cash is recallable at any time on a mark-to-market basis, the mark-to-market value of the reverse repurchase contract shall be used for the purposes of the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund.
- (b) Where a Fund enters into repurchase contracts, the Fund will have the right to recall any securities subject to the agreement or to terminate the repurchase contract at any time.
- (c) Fixed term repurchase and reverse repurchase contracts that do not exceed seven days shall be regarded as arrangements on terms that allow the assets to be recalled at any time by the relevant Fund.

#### 33. Derivatives Exposure

- (a) A Fund may invest in derivatives and forward transactions as long as the exposure to which the Fund is committed by that transaction itself is suitably covered from within its Scheme Property. Exposure will include any initial outlay in respect of that transaction.
- (b) Cover ensures that a Fund is not exposed to the risk of loss of property, including money, to an extent greater than the Net Asset Value of the Scheme Property. Therefore, the Fund must hold Scheme Property sufficient in value or amount to match the exposure arising from a derivative obligation to which the Fund is committed.
- (c) Cover used in respect of one transaction in derivatives or forward transactions must not be used for cover in respect of another transaction in derivatives or a forward transaction.

#### 34. Cover for Investment in Derivatives

A Fund may invest in derivatives and forward transactions as part of its investment policy provided:

- (a) its global exposure relating to derivatives and forward transactions held in the Fund does not exceed the net value of the scheme property; and
- (b) its global exposure to the underlying assets does not exceed, in aggregate, the investment limits laid down above.

### 35. Daily Calculation of Global Exposure

- (a) The ACD must calculate the global exposure of a Fund on at least a daily basis.
- (b) For the purposes of this section, exposure must be calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, future market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions.

## 36. Calculation of Global Exposure

- (a) The ACD must calculate the global exposure of any Fund it manages either as:
  - (i) the incremental exposure and leverage generated through the use of derivatives and forward transactions (including embedded derivatives as referred to in paragraph 15 (Derivatives: general), which may not exceed 100% of the net value of the scheme property of a Fund, by way of the commitment approach; or
  - (ii) the market risk of the scheme property of a Fund, by way of the value at risk ("VaR") approach.
- (b) The ACD must ensure that the method selected above is appropriate, taking into account:
  - (i) the investment strategy pursued by the Fund;
  - (ii) the types and complexities of the derivatives and forward transactions used; and
  - (iii) the proportion of the scheme property comprising derivatives and forward transactions.
- (c) Where a Fund employs techniques and instruments including repo contracts or stock lending transactions in accordance with paragraph 30 (Stock lending) in order to generate additional leverage or exposure to market risk, the ACD must take those transactions into consideration when calculating global exposure.

#### 37. Commitment Approach

- (a) Where the ACD uses the commitment approach for the calculation of global exposure, it must:
  - (i) ensure that it applies this approach to all derivative and forward transactions (including embedded derivatives as referred to in paragraph 15 (Derivatives: general)), whether used as part of the Fund's general investment policy, for the purposes of risk reduction or for the purposes of efficient portfolio management in accordance with paragraph 30 (Stock lending); and
  - (ii) convert each derivative or forward transaction into the market value of an equivalent position in the underlying asset of that derivative or forward (standard commitment approach).
- (b) The ACD may apply other calculation methods which are equivalent to the standard commitment approach.
- (c) For the commitment approach, the ACD may take account of netting and hedging arrangements when calculating global exposure of a Fund, where these arrangements do not disregard obvious and material risks and result in a clear reduction in risk exposure.
- (d) Where the use of derivatives or forward transactions does not generate incremental exposure for the Fund, the underlying exposure need not be included in the commitment calculation.
- (e) Where the commitment approach is used, temporary borrowing arrangements entered into on behalf of the Fund need not form part of the global exposure calculation.
- (f) With the exception of the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund and the FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), all Funds currently calculate global exposure using the commitment approach.

#### 38. VaR approach

- (a) The "VaR" approach is an estimate of the predicted loss at a given confidence level, or probability, over a specific time period. Funds which calculate global exposure using the VaR approach may use either "Absolute VaR" or "Relative VaR" as set out in this section.
- (b) "Absolute VaR" is expressed as a percentage of the Net Asset Value of a Fund. The Absolute VaR limit of a Fund has to be set at or below 20% of its Net Asset Value.
- (c) "Relative VaR" is the VaR of a Fund expressed as a multiple of the VaR of the benchmark or reference portfolio. The reference portfolio for VaR purposes may be different from the benchmark used for performance calculation. For a Fund whose VaR is calculated using the relative VaR approach, the relative VaR limit on the Fund must be set at, or below, twice the VaR of the reference benchmark or portfolio.
- (d) VaR calculations are based on a confidence level of 99% with a holding period of not greater than 1 month (20 days), and a historical observation period of not less than 1 year (250 days). A 99% 1 month VaR means that the expectation is that 99% of the time, over a 1 month period, the Fund will lose less than the VaR number in percentage terms.
- (e) The FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) currently uses the Relative VaR method to calculate global exposure. The relative VaR reference benchmark for this Fund is a blended benchmark consisting of the Bloomberg Multiverse Index (50%), the Bloomberg Global High-yield Index (25%), the J.P. Morgan Emerging Markets Bond Index Global (EMBIG) (12.5%) and the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index Emerging Markets (GBI-EM) (12.5%).
- (f) The FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund currently uses the Absolute VaR method to calculate global exposure and adheres to a limit on the absolute VaR of the Fund of 20% of the Fund's net asset value. In applying the VaR method, the following quantitative standards are used:
  - (i) the confidence level is 99%;
  - (ii) the holding period is 20 days; and
  - (iii) the historical observation period is longer than one year.

This Fund must employ back testing and stress testing and comply with other regulatory requirements regarding the use of VaR. The VaR method is detailed in the Fund's risk management process for derivatives, which are described above under "Risk Management".

(g) The VaR approach does not directly limit leverage. Leverage is calculated as the sum of the notionals of all derivatives used in a Fund. Accordingly, the expected level of leverage in respect of FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) is not expected to exceed 200%. The level of leverage is not a regulatory limit, and the level of leverage may vary over time, and may be higher under certain circumstances.

### 39. Collateral Management Policy

The ACD is required to have a collateral management policy and to keep that policy under regular review. The policy defines "eligible" types of collateral which the Funds may receive to mitigate counterparty exposure (including any applicable haircuts). A haircut is a reduction to the market value of the collateral in order to allow for a cushion in case the market value of that collateral falls. Collateral will generally be of high quality and liquid e.g. cash and government securities. The policy will also include any additional restrictions deemed appropriate by the ACD. The ACD will accept the following permitted types of collateral: cash, government securities, certificates of deposit; bonds or commercial paper issued by "relevant institutions".

Collateral will be subject to a haircut depending on the class of assets received. The haircut policy depends on the quality of assets received, their price volatility, together with the outcome of any stress tests performed under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions.

Where cash collateral, is received, if it is reinvested, it will be diversified in accordance with the requirements of ESMA's Guidelines on ETFs and other UCITS issues (ESMA/2012/832EN). Where a Fund re-invests cash collateral in one or more permitted types of investment, there is a risk that the investment will earn less than the interest that is due to the counterparty in respect of that cash and that it will return less than the amount of cash that was invested.

#### 40. Total Return Swap Transactions

The ACD is required by the UK version of Regulation (EU) No 2015/2365 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on transparency of securities financing transactions and of reuse and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012, known as the Securities Financing Transactions Regulation or the "SFTR" and which forms part of UK law by virtue of the EUWA, to disclose certain information relating to the Funds' use of Securities Financing Transactions (each a "SFT") and total return swaps (each a "TRS").

The only SFTs that are currently used by a Fund are repurchase transactions. A repurchase transaction is a type of transaction in which one party sells a security to the other party with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase the security at a fixed and future date at a stipulated price typically reflecting a market rate of interest. A reverse repurchase transaction is a transaction whereby a party purchases securities from a party and simultaneously commits to resell the securities to the party at an agreed upon date and price.

Certain of the Funds may from time to time enter into repurchase transactions (including reverse repurchase transactions) and TRSs for investment and/or efficient portfolio management purposes, as more fully described below. Each Fund has maximum flexibility with respect to the types of assets that can be subject to an SFT or be the underlying of a TRS, subject always to the Fund's investment objective and policy, the investment restrictions contained in this Prospectus and COLL.

With the exception of the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund and the FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), a Fund which is authorised as per its investment policy to invest in TRSs but which does not enter into such transactions as of the date of this Prospectus may enter into TRSs provided that the maximum proportion of the net assets of that Fund that could be subject to such transactions does not exceed 30% and that the relevant section relating to this individual Fund is updated accordingly at the next available opportunity.

In respect of the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund and the FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment), currently the maximum proportion of the net assets of each Fund which may be subject to such transactions will not exceed 100%.

The counterparty to the transaction will be a counterparty approved and monitored by the ACD or the Investment Manager. Save for securities lending agents who may be associates of the ACD, none of such parties is a related party to the ACD or its affiliates. At no time will a counterparty in a transaction have discretion over the composition or the management of a Fund's investment portfolio or over the underlying asset of the total return swap. While there are no predetermined legal status or geographical criteria applied in the selection of the counterparties, these elements are typically taken into account in the selection process.

The following types of assets can be subject to total return swaps: equity, currency and/or commodity indices, volatility variance swaps as well as fixed income, most notably high yield corporate and bank loan related exposures.

The risk of counterparty default and the effect on investors returns are more fully described in the "Risk Factors" section.

In addition to the maximum limits set out above, where a Fund enters into TRSs as of the date of this Prospectus, the expected proportion of such Fund's net assets that could be subject to TRSs shall be calculated

as the sum of notionals of the derivatives used and is set out in the "Investment Objectives and Policies of the Funds" section for the relevant Fund. If and when a Fund enters into TRSs, it is for the purpose of generating additional capital or income and/or for reducing costs or risks.

All revenues arising from TRSs will be returned to the relevant Fund, and the ACD will not take any fees or costs out of those revenues additional to the annual management charge for the relevant Fund as set out in the "The ACD's Annual Management Charge" section. The Depositary's charges and expenses incurred in relation to stock lending may however be paid out of the Scheme Property of the relevant Fund.

The annual and half yearly reports of the Company will include information regarding use of SFTs and TRSs by the Funds.

# **Appendix 3**

#### Winding Up the Company and Termination of a Fund

The Company will not be wound up except as an unregistered company under Part V of the Insolvency Act 1986 or under Chapter 7.3 of the FCA Rules. A Fund may only be terminated under the FCA Rules.

Where the Company is wound up or a Fund terminated under the FCA Rules, such winding up or termination may only be commenced following approval by the FCA. The FCA may only give such approval if the ACD provides a statement (following an investigation into the affairs of the Company, or the Fund as the case may be) either that the Company or the Fund will be able to meet its liabilities within 12 months of the date of the statement or that the Company or the Fund will be unable to do so. The Company may not be wound up or a Fund terminated under the FCA Rules if there is a vacancy in the position of ACD at the relevant time. The Company may be wound up or a Fund terminated under the FCA Rules if:

- (a) an extraordinary resolution to that effect is passed by Shareholders, or
- (b) the period (if any) fixed for the duration of the Company or a particular Fund by the Instrument of Incorporation expires, or any event occurs on the occurrence of which the Instrument of Incorporation provides that the Company or a Fund is to be wound up, including where the Share capital of the Company is below its prescribed minimum or (in relation to any Fund) the Net Asset Value of the Fund is less than £100,000, or if a change in the laws or regulations of any country means that, in the ACD's opinion, it is desirable to terminate the Fund, or
- (c) the FCA agrees to a request by the ACD for the revocation of the authorisation order in respect of the Company or the relevant Fund.

On the occurrence of any of the above:

- (a) Chapters 5 (Investment and Borrowing Powers) and 6.2 (Dealing) and 6.3 (Valuation and Pricing) of the FCA Rules will cease to apply to the Company or the particular Fund;
- (b) the Company will cease to issue and cancel Shares in the Company or the particular Fund and the ACD shall cease to sell or redeem Shares or arrange for the Company to issue or cancel them for the Company or the particular Fund;
- (c) no transfer of a Share shall be registered and no other change to the register will be made without the sanction of the ACD;
- (d) where the Company is being wound up or a Fund terminated, the Company or the Fund will cease to carry on its business except in so far as it is beneficial for the winding up of the Company or for the termination of the Fund:
- (e) the corporate status and powers of the Company and, subject to the preceding provision of (a) and (d) above, the powers of the ACD will remain until the Company is dissolved.
- (f) The ACD will, as soon as practicable after the Company or the Fund falls to be wound up or terminated, realise the assets and meet the liabilities of the Company or the Fund and, after paying out or retaining adequate provision for all liabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of winding up or termination, arrange for the Depositary to make one or more interim distributions out of the proceeds to Shareholders proportionately to their rights to participate in the scheme property of the Company or the Fund. If the ACD has not previously notified Shareholders of the proposal to wind up the Company or to terminate a Fund, the ACD shall, as soon as practicable after the commencement of winding up of the Company or the termination of the Fund, give notice in writing to Shareholders. When the ACD has caused all of the scheme property to be realised and all of the liabilities of the Company or the particular Fund to be realised, the ACD will arrange for the Depositary to also make a final distribution to Shareholders on or prior to the date on which the final account is sent to Shareholders of any balance remaining, in proportion to their holdings in the Company or the particular Fund.

As soon as reasonably practicable after completion of the winding up of the Company or the termination of the particular Fund, the Depositary will notify the FCA that it has done so.

On completion of a winding up of the Company or the termination of a Fund, the Company will be dissolved or the Fund will be terminated and any money (including unclaimed distributions) standing to the account of the Company or the Fund, will be paid into court within one month of dissolution or termination.

Following the completion of a winding up of the Company or the termination of a Fund, the ACD must prepare a final account showing how the winding up or termination took place and how the scheme property was distributed. The auditors of the Company will make a report in respect of the final account stating their opinion as to whether the final account has been properly prepared. This final account and the auditors' report must be sent to the FCA and to each Shareholder.

# **Appendix 4**

# **List of Sub-Delegates**

Country/Market	Sub-delegates	Address		
Argentina	The Branch of Citibank, N.A. in the Republic of, Argentina	Ciudad de Buenos Aires		
Australia	Citigroup Pty Limited	Melbourne		
Australia	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong		
Austria	UniCredit Bank Austria AG	Vienna		
Bahrain	HSBC Bank Middle East Limited	Kingdom of Bahrain		
Bangladesh	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong		
Belgium	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV	Brussels		
Bermuda	HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited	Hamilton		
Botswana	Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited	Gaborone		
Brazil	Citibank N.A., Brazil	Sao Paulo		
Brazil	Banco Santander (Brasil) S.A.	Sao Paulo		
Bulgaria	Citibank Europe plc, Bulgaria Branch	Sofia		
Canada	CIBC Mellon Trust Company (CIBC Mellon)	Toronto		
Cayman Islands	The Bank of New York Mellon	New York		
Channel Islands	The Bank of New York Mellon	New York		
Chile	Banco Santander Chile	Santiago		
China	HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited	Shanghai		
China	Bank of China Limited	Beijing		
Colombia	Cititrust Colombia S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria	Bogota		
Costa Rica	Banco Nacional de Costa Rica	San José		
Croatia	Privredna banka Zagreb d.d.	Zagreb		
Cyprus	Citibank Europe Plc, Greece Branch	Athens		
Czech Republic	Citibank Europe plc, organizacni slozka	Prague		
Denmark	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (Publ)	Stockholm		
Egypt	HSBC Bank Egypt S.A.E.	Cairo		
Estonia	SEB Pank AS	Tallinn		
Estonia	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Asset Servicing, Niederlassung Frankfurt am Main	Frankfurt		
Euromarket	Clearstream Banking S.A.	Luxembourg		

Euromarket	Euroclear Bank SA/NV	Brussels	
Finland	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (Publ)	Stockholm	
France	BNP Paribas SA	Paris	
France	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV	Brussels	
Germany	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV	Frankfurt	
Ghana	Stanbic Bank Ghana Limited	Accra	
Greece	Citibank Europe Plc, Greece Branch	Athens	
Hong Kong	Citibank N.A. Hong Kong	Hong Kong	
Hong Kong	Deutsche Bank AG	Hong Kong	
Hong Kong	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong	
Hungary	Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office	Budapest	
Iceland	Landsbankinn hf.	Reykjavik	
India	Standard Chartered Bank, India Branch	Mumbai	
India	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong	
Indonesia	Standard Chartered Bank, Indonesia Branch (SCB)	Jakarta	
Ireland	The Bank of New York Mellon	New York	
Israel	Bank Hapoalim B.M.	Tel Aviv	
Italy	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV	Brussels	
Japan	Mizuho Bank, Ltd.	Tokyo	
Japan	MUFG Bank, Ltd.	Tokyo	
Jordan	Bank of Jordan	Amman	
Kazakhstan	Citibank Kazakhstan Joint-Stock Company	Almaty	
Kenya	Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited	Nairobi	
Kuwait	HSBC Bank Middle East Limited, Kuwait	Safat	
Latvia	AS SEB banka	Kekavas novads	
Latvia	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Asset Servicing, Niederlassung Frankfurt am Main	Frankfurt	
Lithuania	AB SEB bankas	Vilniu	
Lithuania	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Asset Servicing, Niederlassung Frankfurt am Main	Frankfurt	
Luxembourg	Euroclear Bank SA/NV	Brussels	
Malawi	Standard Bank PLC	Lilongwe	
Malaysia	Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad (SCB)	Kuala Lumpur	
Malta	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Asset Servicing, Niederlassung Frankfurt am Main	Frankfurt	

Mauritius	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Ebene	
Mexico	Banco Nacional de México S.A. Integrante del Grupo Financiero Banamex	Ciudad de Mexico	
Mexico	Banco S3 CACEIS Mexico, S.A., Institución de Banca	Ciudad de Mexico	
Morocco	Citibank Maghreb S.A.	Casablanca	
Namibia	Standard Bank Namibia Limited	Kleine Kuppe, Windhoek	
Netherlands	The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV	Brussels	
New Zealand	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Auckland	
Nigeria	Stanbic IBTC Bank Plc.	Lagos	
Norway	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (Publ)	Stockholm	
Oman	Standard Chartered Bank Oman branch	Ruwi	
Pakistan	Deutsche Bank AG	Karachi	
Panama	Citibank N.A., Panama Branch	Panama City	
Peru	Citibank del Peru S.A.	Lima	
Philippines	Standard Chartered Bank, Philippines Branch	Makati City	
Poland	Bank Polska Kasa Opieki S.A.	Warszawa	
Portugal	Citibank Europe Plc	Dublin	
Qatar	Qatar National Bank	Doha	
Qatar	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong	
Romania	Citibank Europe plc Dublin, Romania Branch	Bucharest	
Russia	AO Citibank	Moscow	
Russia	PJSC ROSBANK	Moscow	
Saudi Arabia	HSBC Saudi Arabia	Riyadh	
Serbia	UniCredit Bank Serbia JSC	Belgrade	
Singapore	DBS Bank Ltd	Singapore	
Singapore	Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore) Limited	Singapore	
Slovak Republic	Citibank Europe plc, pobocka zahranicnej banky	Bratislava	
Slovenia	UniCredit Banka Slovenija d.d.	Ljubljana	
South Africa	Standard Chartered Bank, Johannesburg Branch	Sandton	
South Africa	The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited	Johannesburg	
South Korea	Standard Chartered Bank Korea Limited (SCB)	Seoul	
South Korea	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Seoul Branch	Seoul	
Spain	Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.	Bilbao	
Spain	CACEIS Bank Spain, S.A.U.	Madrid	

Sri Lanka	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Hong Kong		
Sweden	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (Publ)	Stockholm		
Switzerland	UBS Switzerland AG	Zurich		
Taiwan	HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited	Taipei City		
Tanzania	Stanbic Bank Tanzania Limited	Dar es Salaam		
Thailand	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	Bangkok		
Tunisia	Union Internationale de Banques	Tunis		
Turkey	Deutsche Bank A.S.	Istanbul		
U.A.E.	HSBC Bank Middle East Limited (HBME)	Dubai		
U.K.	The Bank of New York Mellon	New York		
U.S.A.	The Bank of New York Mellon	New York		
U.S.A. Precious Metals	HSBC Bank, USA, N.A.	New York		
Uganda	Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited	Kampala		
Ukraine	JSC "Citibank" Full name Joint Stock Company "Citibank"	Kiev		
Uruguay	Banco Itaú Uruguay S.A.	Montevideo		
Vietnam	HSBC Bank (Vietnam) Ltd	Ho Chi Minh City		
WAEMU	Société Générale Côte d'Ivoire	Abidjan		
Zambia	Stanbic Bank Zambia Limited	Lusaka		
Zimbabwe	Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe Limited	Harare		

Note: Benin, Burkina-Faso, Guinea Bissau, Ivory Coast, Mali, Niger, Senegal and Togo are members of the West African Economic and Monetary Union (WAEMU).

# **Appendix 5**

# **Franklin Templeton Funds Performance Table**

The following table shows the performance in the Share price for each Share Class over (where applicable) the preceding five calendar years in percentage terms.

Fund	Share Class	01/01/24 to 31/12/24 %	01/01/23 to 31/12/23 %	01/01/22 to 31/12/22 %	01/01/21 to 31/12/21 %	01/01/20 to 31/12/20 %
Franklin Absolute Return Bond Fund⁴	W(acc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	-1.94
Franklin Mutual Shares Fund <sup>5</sup>	W(acc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	EB(acc)	1.53	9.22	-14.35	1.29	15.81
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	4.97
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	EB(inc)	1.57	9.16	-14.3	1.34	15.79
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	4.97
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	S(acc)	1.45	9.11	-14.4	1.13	15.74
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	4.97
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	S(inc)	1.47	9.04	-14.34	1.16	N/A
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	N/A
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	W(acc)	1.34	8.93	-14.54	0.96	15.5
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	4.97
FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund <sup>9</sup>	W(inc)	1.35	8.92	-14.57	1.00	15.44
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (100% GBP Hedged)		3.3	6.44	-12.12	-1.40	4.97
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	EB(acc)	4.24	-2.26	6.60	1.74	9.41
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	EB(inc)	4.22	-2.28	6.59	12.75	9.17
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	EB(inc)H2	7.74	1.24	-1.30	15.35	7.93
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(acc)	3.95	-2.43	6.32	N/A	N/A
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(acc)H2	7.36	0.80	N/A	N/A	N/A
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(acc) USD H2	8.02	3.15	N/A	N/A	N/A
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(inc) USD	2.31	3.15	N/A	N/A	N/A
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(inc)	4.1	-2.50	6.38	N/A	N/A

OFCD C7 Inflation Indox	I	7 77	I			I
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	S(inc)H2	7.55	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	W(acc)	3.85	-2.59	6.21	12.38	8.90
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	W(acc)H2	7.28	0.80	-1.70	14.98	7.73
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	W(inc)	3.77	-2.54	6.17	12.37	8.92
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund <sup>11</sup>	W(inc)H2	7.32	1.11	-1.67	15.05	7.72
OECD G7 Inflation Index + 5.5%		7.77	9.55	13.63	9.81	6.39
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	EB(inc)	18.05	8.67	3.29	28.1	N/A
S&P 500 Index		27.26	19.16	-7.79	29.89	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	S(acc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
S&P 500 Index		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	S(inc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
S&P 500 Index		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	W(acc)	17.78	8.32	3.00	27.68	3.14
S&P 500 Index		27.26	19.16	-7.79	29.89	14.74
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	W(inc)	17.79	8.33	2.95	27.68	3.15
S&P 500 Index		27.26	19.16	-7.79	29.89	14.74
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	W(inc)H2	15.59	13.43	-9.53	25.51	4.31
S&P 500 Index (Currency Hedged) (GBP)		24.55	24.27	-19.95	28.2	15.5
FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund <sup>12</sup>	EB(acc) EUR	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
S&P 500 Index (Currency Hedged) (EUR)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Value	EB(acc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Russell 1000 Value Index		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund <sup>13</sup>	EB(inc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Russell 1000 Value Index		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund <sup>13</sup>	S(acc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Russell 1000 Value Index		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund <sup>13</sup>	S(inc)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Russell 1000 Value Index	\ <i>.</i>	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund <sup>13</sup>	W(acc)	15.29	13.46	3.55	29.74	9.42
Russell 1000 Value Index	\A''	16.41	5.18	4.11	26.32	-0.38
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund <sup>3</sup>	W(acc)	1.68	9.2129	-16.51	-3.17	7.54
Markit iBoxx GBP Non- Gilts		1.71	8.5955	-17.72	-3.09	1.8
FTF Franklin Sterling Corporate Bond Fund <sup>3</sup>	W(inc)	1.73	9.1054	-16.49	-3.24	7.44
Markit iBoxx GBP Non- Gilts		1.71	8.5955	-17.72	-3.09	1.8

FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund <sup>3</sup>	W(acc)	-3.75	3.6065	-21.47	-5.93	7.8
FTSE UK Gilts (All) Government Total Return Index		-3.32	3.6858	-23.83	-5.16	8.27
FTF Franklin UK Gilt Fund <sup>3</sup>	W(inc)	-3.73	3.6159	-21.44	-5.92	7.77
FTSE UK Gilts (All) Government Total Return Index		-3.32	3.6858	-23.83	-5.16	8.27
FTF Franklin US Opportunities Fund	W(acc)	29.59	33.1489	-29.71	16.69	37.33
Russell 3000 Growth Index		34.88	33.9098	-20.51	27.23	33.9
S&P 500 Index		27.31	19.7593	-8.36	30.11	14.66
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>14</sup>	W(acc)	3.1	-9.90	-5.49	-9.29	15.16
MSCI AC Asia (Excluding Japan) Index		13.96	0.00	-9.55	-3.84	21.16
FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>14</sup>	W(inc)	3.1	-9.90	-5.39	-9.31	15.25
MSCI AC Asia (Excluding Japan) Index		13.96	0.00	-9.55	-3.84	21.16
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>15</sup>	EB(acc)	N/A	-0.34	-18.29	-2.97	23.09
MSCI Emerging Markets Index		N/A	3.63	-10.02	-1.64	14.65
FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>15</sup>	W(acc)	3.76	-0.62	-18.68	-2.89	22.7
MSCI Emerging Markets Index		9.43	3.63	-10.02	-1.64	14.65
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund <sup>16</sup>	EB(acc)	-7.83	18.42	-28.66	21.56	25.85
MSCI Europe ex UK Net Dividends Index		1.94	14.83	-7.62	16.73	7.49
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund <sup>16</sup>	W(acc)	-8.15	17.90	-28.98	21.05	25.21
MSCI Europe ex UK Net Dividends Index		1.94	14.83	-7.62	16.73	7.49
FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund <sup>16</sup>	W(inc)	-8.17	17.89	-28.97	21.05	25.23
MSCI Europe ex UK Net Dividends Index		1.94	14.83	-7.62	16.73	7.49
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund <sup>17</sup>	EB(inc)	6.65	17.71	25.51	1.67	5.6
MSCI All Countries World (Net Dividends) Index		19.59	15.31	-8.08	19.63	12.67
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund <sup>17</sup>	W(acc)	6.33	17.30	-24.79	16.63	6.82
MSCI All Countries World (Net Dividends) Index		19.59	15.31	-8.08	19.63	12.67
FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund <sup>17</sup>	W(inc)	6.33	17.28	-24.78	13.58	6.83
MSCI All Countries World (Net Dividends) Index		19.59	15.31	-8.08	19.63	12.67
FTF Martin Currie UK	S(acc)	6.63	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Equity Income Fund <sup>22</sup> FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund <sup>22</sup>	S(inc)	6.6	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund <sup>22</sup>	W(acc)	6.5	6.3873	2.32	17.88	-11.42
FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund <sup>22</sup>	W(inc)	6.47	6.3041	2.17	17.78	-11.49
FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82

FTF Martin Currie UK	S(acc)	7.56	3.0075	-10.39	18.22	-4.66
Managers' Focus Fund <sup>23</sup> FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK	W(acc)	7.35	2.8257	-10.56	17.98	-4.86
Managers' Focus Fund <sup>23</sup> FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK	W(inc)	7.29	2.7804	-10.71	17.94	7.02
Managers' Focus Fund <sup>23</sup> FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Mid	S(acc)	-0.61	9.7181	-19.6	19.3	-14.02
Cap Fund <sup>24</sup> FTSE 250 (ex-Investment		8.42	10.0279	-18.44	18.36	-8.48
Trusts) Index FTF Martin Currie UK Mid	S(inc)	-0.6	9.6898	-19.83	19.28	-14.04
Cap Fund <sup>24</sup> FTSE 250 (ex-Investment		8.42	10.0279	-18.44	18.36	-8.48
Trusts) Index FTF Martin Currie UK Mid	W(acc)	-0.8		-		
Cap Fund <sup>24</sup> FTSE 250 (ex-Investment	(33.2)	8.42	9.4981	-19.78	19.06	-14.19
Trusts) Index FTF Martin Currie UK Mid	W(inc)	-0.72	10.0279	-18.44	18.36	-8.48
Cap Fund <sup>24</sup>	v v (ii iC)		9.7181	-19.99	19.05	-14.25
FTSE 250 (ex-Investment Trusts) Index	NA.	8.42	10.0279	-18.44	18.36	-8.48
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>25</sup>	W(acc)	N/A	5.4751	2.02	18.34	-11.86
FTSE All-Share Index		N/A	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund (no Ionger available for investment) <sup>25</sup>	W(inc)	N/A	5.5285	1.7	18.22	-12.1
FTSE All-Share Index		N/A	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund <sup>26</sup>	W(acc)	6.65	7.0772	0.13	18.25	-7.53
FTSE All-Share Index		9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund <sup>26</sup>	W(inc)	6.57	6.9614	0.05	18.2	-7.59
FTSE All-Share Index	24 16	9.47	7.9162	0.34	18.32	-9.82
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund <sup>27</sup>	S(acc) <sup>6</sup>	4.5	-3.909	-27.52	26.11	7.94
Numis Smaller Companies (ex-Investment Trusts)	24. \7	9.48	10.1415	-17.87	21.92	-4.29
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund <sup>27</sup>	S(inc) <sup>7</sup>	4.45	-3.9864	-27.53	26.1	7.94
Numis Smaller Companies (ex-Investment Trusts)		9.48	10.1415	-17.87	21.92	-4.29
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund <sup>27</sup>	W(acc)	4.4	-4.0151	-27.6	26.01	7.74
Numis Smaller Companies (ex-Investment Trusts)		9.48	10.1415	-17.87	21.92	-4.29
FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund <sup>27</sup>	W(inc)	4.38	-4.1011	-27.59	26.01	7.79
Numis Smaller Companies (ex-Investment Trusts)		9.48	10.1415	-17.87	21.92	-4.29
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund <sup>19</sup>	W(acc)	14.92	20.16	-28.03	25.39	24.97
MSCI USA (Net Dividends) Index		26.81	19.36	-9.75	27.62	17.00
FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund <sup>19</sup>	W(acc)H2	13.11	25.67	-37.72	22.97	26.62
MSCI USA (Net Dividends) Index (Hedged) (GBP)		24.13	24.46	-21.67	25.99	17.73
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund <sup>20</sup>	W(acc)	3.48	16.12	-3.72	26.04	7.71
Russell 2000 Index		13.53	10.33	-10.41	15.88	16.26
FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund <sup>20</sup>	W(acc)H2	1.43	21.75	-16.03	23.59	8.32
Russell 2000 Index (GBP)		10.98	15.01	-22.31	14.27	16.35
(Hedged)						

157

FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	S(acc) <sup>8</sup>	8.63	7.911	-11.12	-3.66	15.38
MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index		9.43	3.6337	-10.02	-1.64	14.65
FTF Templeton Global Emerging Markets Fund	W(acc)	8.34	7.6139	-11.37	-3.85	15.38
MSCI Emerging Markets (Net Dividends) Index		9.43	3.6337	-10.02	-1.64	14.65
FTF Templeton Global Leaders Fund	W(acc)	16.68	25.6329	-10.09	11.85	15.88
MSCI All Country World (Net Dividends) Index		19.59	15.3096	-8.08	19.63	12.67
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	W(acc)	-5.78	0.1965	-0.61	-3.32	-11.48
Bloomberg Multiverse Index		0.43	0.0658	-5.43	-3.63	5.65
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	W(acc)H3	-7.78	4.9669	-12.67	-4.48	-9.4
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (USD)		-1.34	6.047	-16.01	-4.51	9.02
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	W(inc)	-5.67	0.2375	-0.66	-3.25	-11.37
Bloomberg Multiverse Index		0.43	0.0658	-5.43	-3.63	5.65
FTF Templeton Global Total Return Bond Fund (no longer available for investment)	W(inc)H3	-7.74	4.9861	-12.57	-4.93	-9.43
Bloomberg Multiverse Index (USD)		-1.34	6.047	-16.01	-4.51	9.02
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund <sup>18</sup>	W(acc)	-11.08	-10.91	-25.00	-16.33	40.5
Japan TSE 1 <sup>st</sup> Section (TOPIX) Index		9.99	13.27	-4.14	2.02	9.55
FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund <sup>18</sup>	W(acc) H2	0.99	5.75	-23.62	-8.1	36.63
Japan TSE 1 <sup>st</sup> Section (TOPIX) Index (Currency Hedged) (GBP)		25.65	34.51	-1.61	12.40	7.81
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>21</sup>	S(acc)	N/A	7.38	-11.21	0.75	4.03
SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%		N/A	4.69	1.40	0.06	0.19
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>21</sup>	S(inc)	N/A	7.37	-11.19	0.72	4.04
SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%		N/A	4.69	1.40	0.06	0.19
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>21</sup>	W(acc)	N/A	7.14	-11.35	0.44	3.85
SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%		N/A	4.69	1.40	0.06	0.19
FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) <sup>21</sup>	W(inc)	N/A	7.17	-11.40	0.51	3.79
SONIA Compounded Index + 3.5%		N/A	4.69	1.40	0.06	0.19

- 3. These funds were launched on 13 February 2017.
- 4. This fund was launched on 28 February 2018. This fund is no longer available for investment.
- 5. This fund is no longer available for investment.
- 6. This Share Class launched on 30 April 2021. Data prior to this date is for the W(acc) share class which has higher charges.
- 7. This Share Class launched on 30 April 2021. Data prior to this date is for the W(inc) share class which has higher charges.
- 8. This Share Class launched on 30 April 2021. Data prior to this date is for the W(acc) share class which has higher charges.
- 9. The FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Brandywine Global Income Optimiser Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.

- 10. This Fund launched on 16 September 2022. Past performance figures are therefore not yet available.
- 11. The FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund launched on 16 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF ClearBridge Global Infrastructure Income Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 12. The FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF ClearBridge US Equity Income Fund, a subfund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 13. The FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund was launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of FTF ClearBridge US Value Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of the Class X Acc. GBP in the merging fund.
- 14. The FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund (no longer available for investment) launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie Asia Unconstrained Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 15. The FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund (no longer available for investment) launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie Emerging Markets Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 16. The FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie European Unconstrained Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 17. The FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie Global Unconstrained Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 18. On 17 December 2024, the Fund changed its name to FTF Templeton Japan Equity Fund; , there was also a change of Investment Manager and some changes to the investment policy. The Fund was launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie Japan Equity Fund, a subfund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of the relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 19. The FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Martin Currie US Unconstrained Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 20. The FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Royce US Smaller Companies Fund, a subfund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 21. The FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund (no longer available for investment) launched on 23 September 2022 to receive the assets of the FTF Western Asset Global Multi Strategy Bond Fund, a sub-fund of Franklin Templeton Funds II (the "merging fund"). Past performance from the start of the above table until the launch date is simulated based on the past performance of relevant corresponding share classes in the merging fund.
- 22. FTF Franklin UK Equity Income Fund changed its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Equity Income Fund on 3 October 2022.
- 23. FTF Franklin UK Managers' Focus Fund changed its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Managers' Focus Fund on 3 October 2022.
- 24. FTF Franklin UK Mid Cap Fund changed its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Mid Cap Fund on 3 October 2022.
- 25. FTF Franklin UK Opportunities Fund changed its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Opportunities Fund on 3 October 2022. This fund is no longer available for investment.
- 26. FTF Franklin UK Rising Dividends Fund changes its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Rising Dividends Fund on 3 October 2022.
- 27. FTF Franklin UK Smaller Companies Fund changed its name to FTF Martin Currie UK Smaller Companies Fund on 3 October 2022

NB. Past performance is not a guide to future performance. Source: Franklin Templeton Investments. Performance details provided are in the Fund currency, include reinvested dividends and are net of fund charges and expenses. Sales charges and other commissions, taxes and other relevant costs to be paid by an investor are not included in the calculations.



Franklin Templeton Funds Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6HL www.franklintempleton.co.uk CONTACT US
UK freefone 0800 305 306
tel +44 20 7904 1843
fax +44 (0)20 7073 8701
email enquiries@franklintempleton.co.uk
www.franklintempleton.co.uk

Franklin Templeton Fund Management Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England: No 1938417 Registered office: Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6HL